
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Monday, 18 February 2013 
6.00 pm 

Pittville Room - Municipal Offices 
 

Membership 
Councillors: Duncan Smith (Chair), Klara Sudbury (Vice-Chair), Nigel Britter, 

Barbara Driver, Colin Hay, Helena McCloskey, Ian Bickerton, 
Andrew Wall, Jo Teakle, Diane Hibbert and Roger Whyborn 

The Council has a substitution process and any substitutions will be announced at the 
meeting 

 
Agenda  

    
1.   APOLOGIES  
    
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
    
3.   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

Agree minutes of the last meeting held on 23 January 2013 
(Pages 
1 - 18) 

    
4.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS, CALLS FOR ACTIONS AND 

PETITIONS 
 

    
5.   MATTERS REFERRED TO COMMITTEE  
    
6.   FEEDBACK FROM OTHER SCRUTINY MEETINGS 

ATTENDED 
Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel 6 February 2013 – 
feedback from Councillor McCloskey. 
 
Gloucestershire Health, Community and Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 8 February – feedback from Councillor 
Sudbury 

 

    
7.   DRAFT CORPORATE STRATEGY 2013/14 

Report of the Strategy and Engagement Manager 
(Pages 
19 - 42) 

    
8.   FINAL REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY TASK GROUP ON 

SEX TRADE IN CHELTENHAM 
The report of the scrutiny task group – sex trade in 
Cheltenham will be introduced by the chair of the task 
group, Councillor Barbara Driver. The O&S committee are 

(Pages 
43 - 58) 



    

 
2 
 

asked to satisfy themselves that the terms of reference 
have been met and endorse the recommendations before 
forwarding them to Council on 22 February.  

    
9.   UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY TASK GROUPS 

Review latest summary of scrutiny task groups. 
 
Receive an update from the Scrutiny Task Group UBICO 
regarding a special meeting of the group held on 
Wednesday 6 February to consider suspension of waste 
and recycling collections 18 to 25 January 2013.  
 
Receive an update from the Scrutiny Task Group regarding 
the provision of services for young people 

(Pages 
59 - 74) 

    
10.   REVIEW OF SCRUTINY WORKPLAN 

Consider a scrutiny registration form for Town Centre 
Deprivation proposed by Councillor Barbara Driver 

(Pages 
75 - 82) 

    
11.   DRAFT REPORT TO CABINET ON RICKSHAW CALL IN 

To approve the draft report to Cabinet from Overview and 
Scrutiny regarding the Call in of the Rickshaw decision (to 
follow) 

 

    
12.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

Date of next meeting: Monday18 March 2013 
 

    
 
Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 

Wednesday, 23rd January, 2013 
6.00  - 9.35 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors: Duncan Smith (Chair), Klara Sudbury (Vice-Chair), Nigel Britter, 
Barbara Driver, Rob Garnham (substitute), Colin Hay, 
Helena McCloskey, Ian Bickerton, Jo Teakle and Diane Hibbert 

Also in attendance:  Andrew North, Councillor Jon Walklett, Councillor Steve Jordan, 
Louis Krog, Councillor Peter Jeffries, Gary Spencer, Councillor 
Andrew Chard, Councillor Tim Harman, Councillor Diggory 
Seacome, David Halkyard, Pat Pratley and Mike Redman 

 
 

Minutes 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Councillor Andrew Wall and Councillor Rob 
Garnham was attending as his substitute. Councillor Penny Hall, as a signatory 
of the call-in request had also given her apologies that she could not be in 
attendance at the meeting. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Councillor Garnham declared a personal and prejudicial interest in agenda item 
7 as the company he worked for was engaged in promoting land at one of the 
potential development sites in the JCS area and would leave the room for this 
item. 
 
Councillor Driver declared a personal but non-prejudicial interest in agenda item 
8 as she resided in the same area as the applicant Mr Meyer. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
The minutes of the last meeting of 10 January 2013 were approved as a correct 
record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS, CALLS FOR ACTIONS AND PETITIONS 
A number of public questions had been received and the questions and 
responses are set out below. 
 
1. Question from Helen Wells, Chairman of Save the Countryside to the 

Chair of O&S, Councillor Duncan Smith (asked by Alistair Cameron 
in her absence) 

 As the public has not had access to your consultants’ work on Joint Core 
Strategy housing figures, can you tell us whether, as NPPF clause 50 
says, the current and future demographic trends were factored in? In 
other words, were the emerging local 2011 Census results given due 
importance, particularly in relation to average household sizes, and will 
the committee be reviewing the consultants’ work when the remaining 

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

local Census results become available in February? 
 Response from the Chair of O&S, Councillor Duncan Smith  
 The consultant’s report was published alongside the O&S agenda and 

was available to the public at the same time as members of O&S 
committee. 
 
The consultants identify the need to ensure that the  emerging census 
data and future relevant datasets are be taken into consideration in the 
JCS. 
 

2. Question from Alice Ross, a member of Save the Countryside to the 
Chair of O&S, Councillor Duncan Smith (asked by Alistair Cameron 
in her absence) 

 Can you confirm that the JCS Scenario A figure of 16 200 homes is 
contained within whatever total JCS housing figure your consultants have 
recommended and would it be sensible and desirable for these homes to 
form the first phase of JCS development as this would encourage 
continuing urban regeneration - and building of affordable homes where 
they are most needed - and allow a future assessment of whether or 
when urban sprawl into the Green Belt would become necessary? 

 Response from the Chair of O&S  
 The consultants were not asked to recommend a total housing figure – 

that is outside the scope of their report. 
 
The JCS will include proposals for a phased release of sites that meet the 
needs of the local communities.  
 

3. Question from Kit Braunholtz to the Chair of O&S, Councillor 
Duncan Smith 

 Does the JCS O&S group take the view that we take, that the sensible 
figure for the required number of new houses that should be planned for 
at this time should be towards the bottom end of the forecast range, in a 
plan, monitor & review process taking into account that there is even 
greater uncertainty than usual about the likely economic future of this 
country (and of this region) in the coming twenty years? This uncertainty 
arises from the wide discrepancies between different forecasts by 
different forecasters, but many authoritative forecasters - including the 
Governor of the Bank of England - forecast a long period of continued 
depression or even recession.  Indeed , even  the "man in the street" 
must be very dubious about  the  optimistic forecasts from bodies such as 
the Local Enterprise Partnership, in view of what has happened  - or 
rather NOT happened - in the Japanese eonomy in the last twenty five 
years, and more  especially in view of what HAS happened more recently 
in Europe, notably in Greece, and in Eire and Spain following housing 
booms, not to mention the  rapidly increasing competition from Asian 
countries - especially China - in our export markets.   

 Response from the Chair of O&S  
 The working group did not make any conclusions as to required numbers. 

It did however accept the consultants comments that the changing 
pattern of household formation and additional census data should be 
used to inform the assessment of housing requirements. 
 

Page 2



 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

In a supplementary question Mr Braunholtz asked;  In the light of the 
extremely uncertain future that I described in my written question, do you 
really consider it “prudent” for the JCS to set a goal for new dwellings in 
the period 2011-2031 at the upper end of the possible outcomes of 
housing need, thus implying that the JCS Councils consider the danger of 
possible under provision of dwellings is far greater than the danger of 
irreparable damage to their environment arising from setting too high a 
target?  Do you not consider it would be possible to deal with housing 
underprovision, if indeed this turns out to become a likely outcome, by 
modifying the strategy at an appropriate time, and thus avoiding both 
dangers?  Do you not think this would be a “sound” policy which could be 
justified by statistical evidence together with common sense to a Planning 
Inspector? 
 
Councillor Smith said he was in a difficult situation as Chair of O&S as he 
was not in a position to answer this question and he referred it to 
Councillor Tim Harman as chair of the working group. Councillor Harman 
said the task group would wait to see the outcome of further work on the 
JCS. The task group had been thorough in their work and he hoped that 
would reassure members of the public.  

4. Question from Kit Braunholtz to the Chair of O&S, Councillor 
Duncan Smith 

 Does the JCS O&S group take into account the fact that the requirement 
for a "five year land bank" in each authority will depend on the total 
forecast for the twenty year period, and therefore a higher forecast will 
result in a larger requirement for the five-year land bank?  Such an 
increased requirement would of course make it harder for local planning 
authorities to resist planning applications for development on sites which 
they might have preferred to remain undeveloped   (such as the former 
"White Land" in Leckhampton).         

 Response from the Chair of O&S 
 The working group did not resolve anything in relation to this matter. 

 
In a supplementary question Mr Braunholtz asked;  Are you aware that, 
whereas the graph shown in para 10.7 of the Cambridge report is alleged 
to show that 75% of the growth in number of households (2011-2031) is 
due to increase in population, the result of assuming a continued Average 
Household Size of 2.3 in the JCS area and a population increase of 
44,000 as generally agreed would by itself require only 44000 / 2.3 = 
19000 extra dwellings, far less than 75% of 28,500? 
 
In response Councillor Smith said he wasn’t aware of that and thanked 
the questioner for bringing it to his attention. 
 

5. Question from Margaret White to the Chair of O&S, Councillor 
Duncan Smith 

 Does the JCS O&S group recommend - in view of the considerations 
above - that a cautious figure should be adopted in the first place for the 
number of extra houses to be planned for, and that this should be 
reviewed periodically (perhaps every five years) in view of what has 
actually happened?  Phasing of proposed strategic developments would 
be difficult if the 5 year supply could not be demonstrated without 
strategic sites on open countryside forcing us into a planning by appeal in 

Page 3



 
 
 

 

 
- 4 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

the first part of the plan period. 
 Response from the Chair of O&S  
 The working group did not recommend anything in relation to this matter. 

 
In a supplementary question, Ms White asked; Can I ask the Lib/Dem 
Council, whether in agreeing to the greater than 20% increase in housing 
growth in the JCS area, over the next 20 years, they believe they are 
adhering to the main points of the Lib/Dem Manifesto, against which they 
were elected, which states as major item no 1: To resist urban sprawl 
while securing new development, economic growth and jobs – and 
sufficient units of social housing for local people – targeted on ‘brownland’ 
sites within the existing urban area while continuing to protect significant 
urban green spaces. 
 
The present proposal immediately endanger the green belt and green 
spaces, creating an immediate free for all from developers. 
 
In response, Councillor Duncan Smith said that as a Conservative 
member he could not speak on behalf of the Lib Dems and said he would 
refer the question to the Leader and ask him to provide a written 
response to the questioner.   

6. Question from Dr. Elizabeth Pimley to the Chair of O&S, Councillor 
Duncan Smith  

 Does the JCS O&S group recognise that the "historic " trend in AHS in 
England in the census record - a decrease of about 0.2 per decade - 
which applied during the period 1961 to 1991 - had already dropped to a 
decrease of only 0.1 for the 1991 - 2001 decade BEFORE the recession 
that started in about 2008?  And that therefore the flat-lining observed 
during the decade 2001 to 2011 of the AHS at 2.4 was not purely 
attributable to the recession but was at least partly due to changing 
patterns of household formation?                         

 Response from the Chair of O&S  
 The working group was happy to support the conclusions of the 

consultants in relation of changing patterns of household formation and 
average household size. 
 

7. Question from Margaret White to the Chair of O&S, Councillor 
Duncan Smith 

 Does the JCS O&S group take into account that there is now a strong 
demand for the Government to encourage and help older people living 
alone to live together in shared accommodation?  This policy would, if 
implemented, lead to a reduction in under-occupation and therefore 
increasing availability for family housing using the existing housing stock 
(as well as helping to reduce loneliness in old age and reducing pressure 
on social services). 

 Response from the Chair of O&S  
 This was not discussed by the working group as changes to government 

policy were not within its remit.  
 

  
 

5. MATTERS REFERRED TO COMMITTEE 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
- 5 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

A call-in request had been received and was dealt with under agenda item 8. 
 

6. FEEDBACK FROM OTHER SCRUTINY MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Councillor McCloskey updated the committee on a meeting of the 
Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel she had attended on 14 January 2013. 
The purpose of the meeting was to endorse the appointment of the new Chief 
Constable, Suzette Davenport. At the end of a long and difficult meeting, Ms 
Davenport was duly endorsed, however the Panel expressed concerns over the 
process of the appointment itself for the following reasons:   
• The extremely tight timescale between the interviews and Panel meeting 

had meant that the Panel had very little time to absorb the  complex 
paperwork 

• The Commissioner had announced the appointment of the new chief 
constable to the media prior to the Panel meeting 

• The Panel had only learnt of the announcement and the IPCC 
investigation of Ms Davenport from the media. 

She advised the panel made the following resolution:  
“The Police and Crime Panel accept the recommendation of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner for the appointment of Suzette Davenport as 
Gloucestershire's Chief Constable, subject to her categorical assurances 
regarding the IPCC investigation. However, the Police and Crime Panel 
must record our serious concerns over the appointment process 
undertaken by the Commissioner's office. We believe that the issue of 
the IPCC investigation was not properly considered. Specifically, 
interview panel members did not have sufficient information to balance 
the candidate's performance against the risks to Gloucestershire 
Constabulary.” 
She advised that the next meeting of the Panel was due to take place on 6  
February 2013 when they would be asked to endorse the Commissioner’s 
budget. The Commissioner has asked the public, businesses and other local 
organisations to comment on whether the precept should be increased. 
 
Members expressed concern that the new Chief Constable was under 
investigation and asked how the panel would validate her reassurances to the 
panel that she would be found completely innocent. What powers would the 
panel or the Police and Crime Commissioner have under the terms of the 
contract if that was not the case as this  could have considerable repercussions 
for Gloucestershire. 
 
Councillor McCloskey pointed out that the panel had no decision-making 
powers but they could veto decisions. In this case it would be a decision for the 
Police and Crime Commissioner.  
 
 

7. FINAL REPORT OF THE SCRUTINY TASK GROUP ON HOUSEHOLD 
FORMATION RATES 
The chair reminded the committee that their remit was to receive the report of 
the scrutiny task group and ensure that the task group had completed the task 
set by Council and met their terms of reference.  It was not within the remit of 
the committee to get into the detail of the contentious points but he would allow 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
- 6 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

time for members to ask questions. The consultant from the Cambridge Centre 
for Housing and Planning Research (CCHPR) was on the conference phone so 
would be able to listen to the debate and respond to any technical questions. 
 
 The chair invited Councillor Tim Harman, as the chair of the scrutiny task group 
- Joint Core Strategy and Liaison Working Group on household formation rates, 
to introduce their final report and recommendations. 
 
In his introduction, Councillor Harman thanked the members, the two co-opted 
members from Gloucester City and Tewkesbury Borough Council and officers 
for their contribution to this review. He referred to the background to this review 
set out in section 2 of the task report and he stressed the importance of a local 
authority ensuring that housing requirement figures set out in their local plan are 
soundly rooted in a robust evidence base.  The project brief set for the working 
group had challenging timescales but they had maximised the time available. 
They had considered a final report from the Cambridge Centre for Housing and 
Planning Research (CCHPR) on 14 January 2013 which had examined a whole 
range of issues including the important factors of changes with regard to young 
people and an ageing population and the economic climate. The working group 
concluded that there were no material errors in the way in which the DCLG 
household representative rates had been applied and they didn’t find any 
significant reason for deviating from them hence their recommendations set out 
in 9.1. He considered the working group had produced a sound report and the 
recommendations would support the council in ensuring it had the sound 
evidence base that was needed. He informed members that Councillor 
Bickerton, as a member of the working group, had not supported their report 
and presented some alternative evidence on household size predictions which 
he wished to present to the committee.  
 
Councillor Bickerton said he was happy with the work undertaken and it had 
provided lots of valid data but he did not consider that the work was complete. 
He referred to the graph on JCS District Average Household Size Compared to 
National Trend he had produced that had been circulated at the start of the 
meeting. At the task group meeting on 14 January he had presented an earlier 
version of this graph which had resulted in an action to verify some of the data 
used by CCHPR. Since then he had been in discussion with the Office of 
National Statistics and Neil McDonald from CCHPR had assisted him in 
correcting some of the earlier district figures he had used to produce the graph 
presented at the task group meeting. This had resulted in the revised figures in 
the graph he had circulated to the committee tonight. This supported his view 
that there was still more work to be done and he disagreed with the conclusions 
of the consultant regarding the impact of the ageing effect on household size. 
He wished this graph to go forward as a minority report to the task group report 
as permitted under the Council's constitution. 
 
The chair referred to the additional paper which had been circulated at the start 
of the meeting from Neil McDonald which provided some notes on Councillor 
Bickerton's graph on household size presented at the task group meeting and 
highlighted some errors in the data used. With regard to the revised graph 
circulated at this meeting, Neil McDonald advised that Councillor Bickerton 
appeared to have used rounded figures which indicated that average household 
size in England and Wales had been flat between 1991 and 2011. If the 
unrounded figures were used, the average household size was closer to 2.45 in 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
- 7 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

1991 and 2.37 in 2011 which demonstrated a fall in household size of around 
3.5%. 
 
Councillor Teakle, as a member of the working group, thanked CCHPR for a 
clear and accessible report and she encouraged the public to read it. She was 
pleased to see the acknowledgement in 14.1 b of the conclusions that if there 
was no change in household size between 2011 and 2031 around a third fewer 
extra households will be formed in the JCS area. She asked if the consultant 
could explain the statement in 14.1 c. and why it was unlikely that household 
size would remain static. 
 
In response, Neil McDonald advised that there were three key drivers of 
household size. These were the household formation rate – the tendency of 
groups to form households (currently younger people were tending to stay 
longer with their parents); the ageing effect (i.e. the tendency for the average 
household size to fall if the proportion of older people in the population grows, 
as older people tended to live in small households); and marital status (a 
relatively small factor). Over the next 20 years, there was likely to be  a faster 
increase in the older population in the JCS area than in the last 10 years.  This 
would cause the ‘ageing effect’ to be much stronger.  As a consequence it 
seemed highly improbable that, even if there was no economic recovery, there 
would a sufficiently strong continuation in the trend for single people not to form 
households to counter the ageing effect.  For that to happen that trend would 
need to go further than observed so far (rather than moving back towards the 
previous trend).  A continue fall in household size therefore seemed highly 
likely. 
 
 
Councillor Teakle responded that even if there was an economic recovery, she 
considered there were a number of other factors which may keep young people 
at home and they would not suddenly move into the housing market. She also 
questioned why household size did not appear to have been affected by the 
ageing population in the last 10 years.  She wished to highlight the 
recommendation in 9.1.2 of the task group report which recognised the need for 
a sensitivity analysis. The report also referred to phasing development. Whilst 
accepting the officer advice that the council needs to have a five-year plan to 
satisfy the planning inspectorate and encourage developers to provide the 
necessary investment for initial infrastructure, she stressed the importance of 
phasing development to match economic recovery.  
 
Councillor Bickerton suggested that the 2011 Census data appeared to 
demonstrate that the over 65 population had decreased in the last 10 years and 
therefore this needed to be re-examined. 
 
The chair advised the committee that they should not prolong the work of the 
task group but instead should bring any matters to the attention of the JCS 
project which they felt needed further consideration going forward.  He referred 
members to the terms of reference set for the working group and asked the 
committee to consider whether they had been met. The chair of the working 
group concluded that they had effectively discharged their obligations in the 
time given and any other matters could be taken forward by the working group. 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
- 8 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

Resolved that  
 

1. The minority report submitted by Councillor Bickerton be noted 
2. The recommendations of the task group be endorsed and their 

recommendations should be forwarded to the JCS joint member 
steering group together with the minority report.  

 
 

8. CALL-IN LICENSING OF RICKSHAWS IN CHELTENHAM 
The committee was asked to consider a call-in request regarding a decision 
made at Cabinet on 11 December 2012 regarding the licensing of rickshaws.  
As this was the first call-in to come to this committee, the chair explained how 
he intended to run the procedures. 
 
Councillor Garnham, as one of the four members who had signed the call-in 
request, was invited to put the case for the call-in.  Councillor Garnham felt that 
the council should be encouraging people like Mr Meyer who wanted to set up 
small businesses in the town however this was not the reason for the call-in. 
The reason he gave was that the Cabinet decision to defer any decision to an 
unknown date in the future, was not fair to the applicant and he should be given 
a yes or no answer.  There appeared to be examples in London and Hereford of 
both unlicensed and licenced rickshaws working effectively with no significant 
safety problems. He considered the decision was not proportionate, there had 
been insufficient consultation and no presumption in favour of openness for the 
reasons set out in the call-in request.  
 
In response to a question from a member, the Democratic Sevices Manager, 
advised that the witness questions circulated with the agenda had been drawn 
up based on the reasons given for the call-in and in consultation with the chair. 
They had been circulated to lead members of this committee and the 
signatorees of the call-in request for comment. As a result additional questions 
had been incorporated before circulating them to witnesses to assist them in 
their preparation for this meeting. 
 
The chair invited the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety to respond to the 
questions circulated to him in advance of the meeting and suggested members 
may wish to ask additional questions. Before answering the questions, the 
Cabinet Member referred members to the background set out in section 1.3 of 
the Cabinet report of 11 December 2012. He also advised members that 
nothing that the Cabinet or officers had done would stop Mr Meyer operating 
rickshaws in Cheltenham on an unlicensed basis. The issue in question was 
purely a licensing one.. 
 
Does the Cabinet Member think it is an acceptable outcome to defer the 
decision to an unspecified date in the future? 
In response, the Cabinet Member considered that it was acceptable and the 
decision was proportionate to the desired outcome.  Licensing was concerned 
with public safety and the Cabinet had considered it from a public safety angle 
and concluded that safety considerations would not be satisfied by trying to 
shoehorn the operation of rickshaws into the existing safety regulations.  
 
Can you explain the reasons for the delays in dealing with this matter? 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
- 9 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

The Cabinet Member noted that this committee had delayed the consideration 
of this call-in and similar sorts of delays happened in the Cabinet decision-
making process. The first delay was due to changes to the council's Constitution 
in May 2012. Previously a draft licensing policy would have been considered by 
the Licensing Committee and then forwarded to Council for approval.  The 
change in the Constitution required the draft policy to be considered by Cabinet 
in consultation with the Licensing Committee and then forwarded to Council by 
Cabinet for approval. Following the borough council elections there had been no 
Executive meetings in May and this together with the change in Cabinet 
Members and summer recess may have caused some delay.  He emphasised 
that this was part of the nature of Cabinet reporting and reminded members that 
this issue had been the subject of three Cabinet reports over a period of time 
including a public consultation period. He personally had tried to speed up the 
process by shortening the consultation period with the agreement of all parties. 
The City of Westminster has more rickshaws in operation than the whole 
of the rest of the UK.  In total, during 2011, there were upwards of two 
million journeys and there were just 8 collisions involving rickshaws.  No 
serious injuries resulted and no passengers were injured. Were you aware 
of that and if so given that experience why do you still have concerns 
about the safety of rickshaws if operated in Cheltenham?  
The Cabinet Member advised that following the receipt of responses from the 
consultation regarding safety issues, he had done some personal research on 
safety issues and had been horrified by what he had discovered. In London, the 
Metropolitan police, had to resort to an ancient Act of Parliament to deal with 
the large volume of unlicensed rickshaws.  As a result of this operation many of 
the operators had been stopped, fined or their vehicles impounded. They also 
found that many of the rickshaws in the town had been illegally adapted to run 
on car batteries. He also questioned the figure of only eight collisions involving 
rickshaws as this did not take into account accidents involving bicycles or 
pedestrians and therefore was not a true reflection of their safety. 
 
The chair asked how the Cabinet Member had applied his research to the 
operation of rickshaws in Cheltenham? Was his main concern that there 
would be a significant number of accidents or that a large amount of 
police time may be spent in monitoring the safety of rickshaws? 
 
The Cabinet Member considered that the differential in London was that the 
rickshaws were unlicensed and therefore were not being endorsed by the 
council as safe to carry passengers. In Edinburgh, rickshaws had been dealt 
with under street trading licences and in Edinburgh there had been two fatal 
accidents, one where someone had fallen out of a rickshaw and another where 
a female passenger had broken her neck when her scarf had got tangled in the 
rickshaw’s wheels. It would be a huge piece of work to pin down the safety 
information from all the research across the country and therefore it came down 
to making a judgement call. He had also referred to the report by the Transport 
Research Laboratory (TRL) which had highlighted safety related issues relating 
to rickshaws. His decision was based on the fact that there was evidence of lots 
of accidents and problems regarding rickshaws. If the council were to license 
rickshaws the public perception would be that the council were endorsing their 
safety. In his view he was not in a position to reduce the safety risks associated 
with rickshaws sufficiently to give such an endorsement. 
  

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
- 10 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

How may rickshaws had been requested in Mr Meyer’s application and if 
the Cabinet Member had not asked this question how was he able to 
quantify the risk and make an informed decision?    
 
The Cabinet Member advised that there had been no specified number in Mr 
Meyer's enquiry and subsequently he had received another two enquiries from 
other people.  He advised that if the council were to license rickshaws under the 
Hackney Carriage regulations then they would not be able to restrict the 
numbers in any way and therefore the resulting number of rickshaws could grow 
exponentially. 
 
Members questioned whether it would be preferable to go ahead and 
license rickshaws in some way rather than allow them to operate 
unlicensed way which research showed had been dangerous in London? 
Why hadn't the Cabinet Member looked at how rickshaws are being 
operated in Hereford where they appeared to be operating safely?  Surely 
licensing rickshaws would give the council a degree of control over 
rickshaw operation which they would not have if they were forced to 
operated in an unlicensed way?  
 
The Cabinet Member suggested that it was an easy assumption to make that 
any form of licensing was better than unlicensed operations. However in order 
to mitigate the safety risks, the policy for rickshaws would have to be very 
restrictive. The situation in Hereford was very different as they were not being 
operated as taxis. His understanding in this case was that the council was being 
asked to license rickshaws as a Hackney Carriage License. The licensing 
process was concerned with enhancing public safety. As the council was not in 
a position to enhance the safety of rickshaws, the decision had been taken to 
defer the decision until the necessary legislation was in place. Whatever was 
happening in other councils, the provision of a licensed rickshaw service in 
Cheltenham would provide the public with a choice of opting for a quality 
standard or going for an unlicensed provider.   
 
(At this point Mr Meyer clarified that his request had been for a rickshaw license 
and he had not made any specific reference to a Hackney Carriage License)  
 
Was it right that people trying to run a business should expect a response 
from the council in a reasonable time to allow them to plan their future 
operations particularly if the business was seasonal? Could the process 
have been speeded up by setting up a Cabinet Member working group to 
consider common practice and adopt the best practice available at this 
time?  What steps did the Cabinet Member take to drive the process 
forward in a reasonable time scale? 
 
In response the Cabinet Member referred to his previous response highlighting 
that there had been three reports and a consultation period. There had been a 
period of three months between the application and the first Cabinet report with 
an election in the middle of this period. He reminded members that licensing 
was a statutory process and a search making any changes was a long process. 
He would love to have been in a position to license rickshaws but he could not 
afford to put the council in a position which was open to legal challenge. 
Therefore it was right to defer any decision until the government had put the 
necessary legislation in place. 

Page 10



 
 
 

 

 
- 11 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

 
He added that capacity of officers was limited and resources were lean. The 
work plan for the licensing team was scheduled in advance and resources 
committed accordingly and the rickshaw issue had come from left field. Being a 
new Cabinet Member had not caused any delays and in fact he had made 
himself very available for attending meetings on this matter. The pace of moving 
it forward had been very much governed by the need to gather and carefully 
consider all the available information. 
 
If the Cabinet had made a decision to adopt the policy could there have 
been a risk to the council, the public or the operator that the government 
could then change the legislation regarding safety standards. Could the 
decision be considered to be proportional based on this risk? 
 
The Cabinet Member advised that after receiving the second report on this 
issue, Cabinet had decided that the existing policy could become unworkable if 
there was an attempt to change it to reduce the safety risks associated with 
rickshaws so in that sense the decision was proportional to the risk. 
 
Paragraph 1.3 of the Cabinet report of the 11 December, appeared to 
suggest that in September the Cabinet had been ready to instruct officers 
to produce a draft policy. If the consultation had not thrown up a few 
safety issues would the Cabinet have proceeded to adopt a policy? 
 
The Cabinet Member advised that he was not in a position to answer this 
hypothetical question.   
 
Had the Cabinet Member experienced rickshaw travel as part of his 
research? Member commented that he had travelled in a rickshaw 
recently in India and felt perfectly safe despite the crowded traffic 
conditions? 
 
The Cabinet Member said he had not travelled in a rickshaw. 
Louis Krog , the Business Support and Licensing Team Leader  
The chair invited Louis Krog to respond to questions notified by the committee 
and any additional ones members wish to ask. 
The officer wished to clarify a few points at the start. Firstly the Hackney 
Carriage licensing legislation that applied in London was different to that applied 
in Cheltenham and other towns outside London. He explained that if there was 
a desire to operate licensed rickshaws in Cheltenham then the council must first 
formulate a policy for dealing with applications for licences. This contrasted with 
operating non-motorised rickshaws on a private hire basis where the council 
would have no control under the current legislation. 
What professional advice did you give to Cabinet Members regarding the 
operation of rickshaws within other boroughs?   
Initially he had referred members to the experiences in London and Edinburgh 
and subsequently further research in a lot of other towns. This initial desktop 
exercise had made it very clear to officers that there was no uniform approach 
to the operation of rickshaws. It was a complicated area to deal with but they 

Page 11



 
 
 

 

 
- 12 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

had looked at the existing policy and procedures regarding Hackney Carriage 
licensing and incorporated some changes which had resulted in the draft policy 
presented to Cabinet.  
 
Did you refer the Cabinet to Hereford Council who appear to have been 
operating licensed rickshaws since 2006.   
 
Officers did not ignore the experiences of Hereford regarding safety. Regarding 
the licensing of rickshaws, it would not have been a helpful comparison since 
the operation in Hereford consisted of rickshaws that made no charge and had 
no fixed route.  
What advice did you give regarding safety?  
He had provided some advice in the June report to Cabinet on safety standards. 
During the consultation, it became apparent that a lot of the feedback was 
concerned with safety issues and therefore the focus for the December Cabinet 
report was on safety matters.  
The report from the TRL had provided further information on safety issues.  The 
report had suggested that the basic safety of rickshaws could not be enhanced, 
for example it was not possible to fit guards. The report concluded that 
rickshaws were reasonably safe if operated in a reasonable way and regularly 
inspected. 
Do you have any firm dates for when the decision on the “outcome of the 
taxi and private hire licensing law reform review by the Law Commission” 
- will actually be published?  Is it likely to be 2013 or 2014 or even later? 
 
In response he said that government were very aware of the need to update the 
ancient legislation in order to deal effectively with rickshaws. The Law 
Commission had indicated that they were fairly confident that the legislation 
would be in place by late 2014 or early 2015. 
 
Why was Cheltenham not leading the way on this issue and what was plan 
B. if the legislation was further delayed? 
 
That was not for officers to decide. 
 
In June 2012 Cabinet approved for the purpose of consultation a draft 
policy in respect of the licensing of rickshaws in the borough.   Were you 
happy with the safety requirements set out in that draft policy? In your 
professional capacity was it the best policy you could recommend which 
brought together best practice and would it have been workable? 
 
The safety standards set out in the draft policy were fairly standard and based 
on those for two or three wheeled bicycles. In the absence of anything more 
specific for rickshaws this was the approach that most councils had adopted. 
The function of the policy was to provide a method for determining whether a 
subsequent application was lawful. The policy would stipulate what type of 
vehicle the council was prepared to licence. The current adopted policy for 
Hackney Carriages excludes rickshaws and therefore they could not be 
licensed under that policy.  
 

Page 12



 
 
 

 

 
- 13 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

He confirmed that in the absence of a policy the only option for rickshaw 
operators was to run them unlicensed. The council could not impose any 
requirements on unlicensed operators and would not be in a position to check 
whether they were adequately insured. 
 
He advised members that a Court of Appeal had ruled that rickshaws could only 
be licensed as a Hackney carriage in so far as them standing or plying for public 
hire and anybody operating in such a way without a hackney carriage licence 
would be committing an offence?. 
 
In the December Cabinet report were you recommending to Cabinet that 
they license rickshaws and adopt the draft policy?  
 
It was for Cabinet to decide whether they wished to approve the licensing of 
rickshaws. If they chose to do so then officers were recommending the safety 
standards in the draft policy be adopted by Council.   
 
Are other councils wrong to license rickshaws and are we in the 
Cheltenham making too big an issue of it?  
 
In his professional opinion the current legislation was not able to deal effectively 
with rickshaws and all councils were struggling with this.  The government had 
recognized the increasing numbers of rickshaws and therefore the need to 
make the legislation workable to accommodate this increase in numbers. The 
current law forces councils to make the existing legislation work in order to 
protect the public and support the operators. Some councils have chosen to 
operate under the existing legislation and some have opted to wait until new 
legislation is put in place.   
 
Could we license rickshaws under street trading legislation? 
 
In theory this would be possible, but the problem with the street trading 
licensing policy was that it did not promote safety issues and therefore would 
offer inadequate protection to the public. It was not intended for that purpose 
and would stretch the street trading legislation too far. Following the Court of 
Appeal ruling that rickshaws should be licensed as Hackney Carriages, he had 
not included this as an option for Cabinet to consider. 
 
What negotiations did you have with the applicant to look at how 
rickshaws might operate in Cheltenham and therefore how best to move 
the issue forward? Did you consider a fixed route for rickshaws in 
Cheltenham as was operating in Hereford? 
 
Officers had an initial conversation with the applicant in March and following 
that there were ongoing discussions and many e-mails were exchanged. He 
acknowledged that relationships with Mr Meyer had gone sour and the issue 
had been the subject of complaints which have been dealt with under the 
council's complaint procedure. Recently there had been a meeting with the 
Cabinet Member, the applicant and the licensing officer’s line manager. 
 
The initial draft policy did propose an area for the ranking up of rickshaws which 
could also be used for spot checks but this was not well received by the 

Page 13



 
 
 

 

 
- 14 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

potential operators and therefore had not been included in the subsequent 
policy presented to Cabinet. 
 
When questioned, the officer said he had sympathy for the applicant regarding 
the delays but he assured members that there was no undue delay by officers 
in dealing with the application. Asked whether he advised the applicant in March 
that there was no chance of his licence being approved in time for the summer 
season, the officer said he did advise Mr Meyer in an e-mail that it was unlikely 
that it would be completed within three months. 
 
Is it true that the responses to the consultation regarding safety mostly 
came from taxi drivers and no major safety issues were raised by the 
police or the Road Safety Unit at the County Council? 
 
There had been about 10 to 12 respondents to the consultation who had raised 
issues of safety. The response from the police was to refer to the experiences 
of rickshaws operating in Westminster. There had also been a comprehensive 
response from rickshaw operators which had been taken into account and a 
number of changes were made to the draft policy as a result of their comments. 
 
The call-in request suggests that one of the grounds for call-in was that 
the decision should only have been taken following taking the 
professional advice of officers. Did you give clear advice to the Cabinet 
member and was it your advice that councils should adopt a policy? Did 
you have a personal opinion? 
 
The officer advised that he kept the Cabinet Member aware of developments at 
the time and he had had many discussions with Councillor Jeffries who had 
regularly come into the office to discuss the matter. Members needed to bear in 
mind that it was necessary to follow due process and it could be a lengthy 
procedure to get a report signed off. The officer referred to the 
recommendations in the report to Cabinet on 11 December 2012. He had given 
clear advice to Cabinet on the draft policy but it was for Cabinet to agree the 
principle of licensing rickshaws first. His role as an officer was to give 
professional advice and not a personal opinion? 
 
Hereford Licensing Manager 
 
The licensing manager from Hereford had been unable to attend the meeting 
tonight due to unfavourable weather conditions.  She had submitted a written 
response to all the questions and members had the opportunity to read this 
during an earlier brief adjournment. Members agreed that it was a very good 
report and answered all their questions and wished to pass on their thanks to 
the officer concerned. 
 
The applicant Mr James Meyer   
 
The chair invited Mr James Meyer to address the committee regarding his 
experiences. 
 
Mr Meyer informed the committee that this was his first experience of local 
government and he had found it a demotivating and upsetting experience.  His 
reason for submitting an application for rickshaws was that he felt it would be a 

Page 14



 
 
 

 

 
- 15 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

good thing for Cheltenham.  He did not see it as a serious moneymaking 
exercise, he simply wanted to cover his costs. He had experienced a great deal 
of obstructiveness, albeit that this may not have been intentional, and he was 
appalled that it had taken 10 months to reach a stage where the decision had 
been taken to defer the decision. In practical terms he considered his 
application had been turned down and it was misleading and frankly dishonest 
to say it had been deferred. Officers had advised that the Law Commission 
would be reporting in 2013/2014 but in his experience this was much more likely 
to be 2017/18. 
 
He referred several times to the 10 month delay and he did not consider that the 
Cabinet Member or the licensing officer had justified this delay in their earlier 
responses to the committee.  
 
Regarding his relationship with the licensing officer, he acknowledged that the 
officer had been very thorough and there had been numerous attempts for them 
to work together. He considered that any help that he tried to give to the 
licensing officer was put down and dismissed and he was given the impression 
that it was rather improper for the licensing officer to be talking to the applicant 
for any length of time. This had created an adversarial relationship.   
 
The reason given for the deferral was that the Hackney Carriage licencing 
policy was inappropriate for rickshaws. He acknowledged it may not be ideal but 
other local authorities have managed to use it successfully and Hereford was a 
good example. There was an important difference between theoretical concerns 
and practical application. Westminster's experience demonstrated this with only 
eight minor accidents reported and no passengers injured.  He understood 
there were theoretical safety concerns about rickshaws and the vehicles could 
be seen as flimsy but in practice it had proved a safe experience. He 
considered the safety concerns raised by the Cabinet Member were just a 
smokescreen for the delay and despite all the meetings there was no evidence 
which set out what and when particular safety concerns had been discussed 
and the outcome of those discussions. 
 
When first making his application, he had allocated 4 months and thought this 
was not an unreasonable estimate. There was a lead time of three months for 
rickshaw supply and at that time he had been given every indication that it 
would be possible to secure a licence in that sort of time frame.  He had now 
missed one summer season and with the further delay he would now miss the 
following season. His requirement was that he would be in a position to launch 
a licensed rickshaw operation by April/May this year and he considered it would 
be a safe service if sensibly licensed. At the time of its initial application he had 
one rickshaw and he had now purchased an additional three.  
 
A member commented that he had not been comfortable with some of the 
language Mr Meyer had used and he had focused unduly on the delay in his 
response to committee. He asked Mr Meyer whether he was open to 
considering any restrictions? Mr Meyer responded that yes he was open to this 
and had wanted all along to discuss the matter with officers and find a way 
round any problems. He felt he had been kept at arm's length and this was 
inappropriate.  
 

Page 15



 
 
 

 

 
- 16 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

Another member asked Mr Meyer whether everyone agreed with him that 
rickshaws would be good Cheltenham. In response he said there were fairly few 
people who had not rather liked the idea and overall 90% were positive and 
many thought it would be fun. 
 
The chair invited the Cabinet Member to respond to the evidence he had heard. 
 
The Cabinet Member wished to emphasise that there had been lots of meetings 
and correspondence with Mr Meyer. In his personal dealings with the applicant, 
he had found him to be obstructive and unwilling to listen but there had been 
lots of opportunities for discussion. 
 
The chair referred members to paragraph 14.13  in the council's Constitution 
which set out their options for dealing with the call-in now that they had 
considered all the facts and heard the evidence.   
 
In the discussion that followed members questioned whether the decision not to 
adopt a policy should have been referred to Council in the same way that 
Council would have been requested to adopt the draft policy if it had been 
approved by Cabinet. They asked whether it would be possible for Council to 
demand that Cabinet formulate a policy on this issue for their approval.  
 
The Chief Executive advised that the Cabinet decision was that they should not 
instigate a process for getting a policy drawn up and approved and this was not 
a decision that required Council approval.   This was confirmed by a solicitor 
from One Legal who was present at the meeting. He advised that the function 
regulations set out in the council's Constitution determine what decisions can be 
taken by Cabinet and which by Council. In this case Council would approve a 
licencing policy recommended to it by Cabinet but there would be no 
requirement for a referral to Council if Cabinet decided to defer taking any 
decision.  There would also be nothing to prevent a member raising a motion at 
Counci on this matter.  
 
After hearing the evidence, a member thought there were a number of issues 
which led him to conclude that a decision should be referred back to Cabinet. 
The delay had happened and that could not be changed however he was of the 
opinion that had there been more opportunities to negotiate with the applicant a 
solution may have been found.  
 
Councillor Sudbury wished it noted that she didn't feel the grounds for the call-in 
had been properly considered and these should be discussed by the committee 
before agreeing their next action. The chair noted her concerns but wished the 
committee to continue to consider its options set out in 14.13.  
 
Members concluded that the matter should be referred back to Cabinet to have 
a look at their decision to defer. The committee were not recommending that the 
Cabinet should adopt the draft policy but they were recommending that they 
should revisit the decision to defer and possibly whether a ‘yes’ or ‘no’ answer 
to the applicant would be preferable. This appeared to fall under option 14.13 ( 
c ). 
 
They agreed that this committee should forward a report to Cabinet in February 
if possible regarding this call-in and this would be drafted by the chair in 

Page 16



 
 
 

 

 
- 17 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 18 February 2013. 
 

consultation with the members of the committee. If Cabinet wish to then refer a 
policy to Council, this could be done in March and if a policy was agreed then 
the Licensing Committee would then be positioned to consider an application 
soon after. 
 
Resolved that the matter would be referred back to Cabinet with a request 
that they review the decision to defer.  
 
 
 

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting of the committee would be held at 6 pm on Monday 18 
February 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 

Duncan Smith 
Chairman 

 

Page 17



Page 18
This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 February 
2013 

 Corporate Strategy Action Plan 2013-14. Version 1 

 Page 1 Last updated 07 February 2013 
  
 

  

Information/Discussion Paper 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

18 February 2013 
Development of the corporate strategy action plan 

2013-14 
This note contains the information to keep Members informed of matters relating to 
the work of the Committee, but where no decisions from Members are needed 

1. Why has this come to scrutiny? 
1.1 The corporate strategy action plan for 2013-14 is being prepared and is due to go to 

Council for approval on 25 March 2013. To ensure that the views of elected members 
are captured in the process, the draft strategy is being considered by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. The draft action plans are attached as appendix A.  

 
2. What do we want the corporate strategy to do? 
2.1 The Corporate strategy sets out the following:  

� The overall context for the year ahead in terms of challenges and 
opportunities; 

� The outcomes that we will be working towards; 
� The council’s priority commissioning reviews and projects to deliver the 

outcomes and how these will be resourced; 
� The milestones, indicators and risks by which progress will be measured. 

 
3. How we have prepared the draft strategy 
3.1 The Senior Leadership Team and Cabinet members have discussed the following: 

� The significant resource that will be required to deliver the reviews and 
projects that we are already committed to means that we need to prioritise 
and push back or delay projects where there is no compelling need nor 
potential to deliver savings. 

� The corporate strategy needs to be specific and realistic in what the council 
can achieve given this resource challenge. We will therefore need to identify 
proposed resource requirements.  

� The commitment to market-test built environment should be slipped back to 
2014-15. 

� There are other projects that will have a draw on resources; such as plans to 
commemorate the First World War Centenary and the war memorial 
enhancement which will have an impact on the capacity of the council to 
deliver.  

 
 

3.2 In the light of the concerns about capacity and resources, the following directors have 

Agenda Item 7
Page 19



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 February 
2013 

 Corporate Strategy Action Plan 2013-14. Version 1 

 Page 2 Last updated 07 February 2013 
  
 

taken a formal role in preparing the draft action plans and have met accordingly with 
project leads and liaised with cabinet leads.  

 
Outcomes Lead 

Cheltenham has a clean and well-maintained environment. Jane Griffiths 
Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is enhanced and 
protected. 

Grahame Lewis 
Carbon emissions are reduced and Cheltenham is able to adapt to the 
impacts of climate change. 

Jane Griffiths 
Cheltenham has a strong and sustainable economy Grahame Lewis 
Communities feel safe and are safe. Grahame Lewis 
People have access to decent and affordable housing. Jane Griffiths 
People are able to lead healthy lifestyles. Pat Pratley 
Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community and involved in 
resolving local issues. 

Pat Pratley 
Arts and culture are used as a means to strengthen communities, 
strengthen the economy and enhance and protect our environment. 

Pat Pratley 
We will meet our ‘Bridging the Gap’ targets for cashable savings and 
increased income 

Pat Pratley 

 
3.3 As part of this, Senior Leadership team on 29 January met to review the prospective 

resource requirements required to deliver the 2013-14 corporate strategy and existing 
“business as usual” requirements. Particular pinch points were noted for Urban 
Design, the JCS team and Go Shared Services. SLT were asked to revisit the ‘pinch 
points’ identified in the document and take forward action as appropriate. 

 
4. Proposed improvement actions 2013-14 

Outcomes improvement actions 
Cheltenham has a clean and well-maintained 
environment. 

� We will progress the implementation of a joint waste 
committee 

� We will increase recycling rates and reductions in residual 
waste 

Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is 
enhanced and protected. 

� We will undertake a commissioning review of our Green 
Environment services 

� We will undertake a Commissioning Review of our 
Building Control Service (currently a 10 year shared 
service agreement with Tewkesbury BC which 
commenced November 1st 2009, though there is a 5 year 
review which will be carried out in 2014). 

� We will move towards the adoption of the Joint Core 
Strategy (JCS) 

� We will commence preparation of the Cheltenham Plan 
Carbon emissions are reduced and Cheltenham 
is able to adapt to the impacts of climate change. 

� We will implement the recommendations of the November 
2012 cabinet report, setting out how we will meet the 30% 
carbon reduction target by 2015 and our aspiration to 
reduce carbon emissions by 40% by 2020 

� We will develop ways of monitoring the impact of 
commissioned and retained services on climate change 

Cheltenham has a strong and sustainable 
economy 

� We will work with GFirst, our local enterprise partnership, 
to promote sustainable economic growth in Cheltenham. 

� We will implement the preferred option for the residual 
parking service 

� We will continue to support Cheltenham Development 
Task Force 

 
Communities feel safe and are safe. � We will continue to work in partnership to reduce 

incidents of anti-social behaviour and the harm it can 

Page 20



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 February 
2013 

 Corporate Strategy Action Plan 2013-14. Version 1 

 Page 3 Last updated 07 February 2013 
  
 

Outcomes improvement actions 
cause to communities. 

� We will work in partnership to tackle high profile crime in 
Cheltenham 

� We will protect the health and well-being of citizens, 
businesses and visitors and maintain a high level of 
consumer confidence in food businesses. 

� We will undertake a commissioning review of our Public 
Protection Service (licensing, environmental health, 
community safety) 

People have access to decent and affordable 
housing. 

� We will prepare our services and communities for welfare 
reforms that will impact on our communities from April 
2013 onwards 

� We will implement the preferred option emerging from the 
housing options commissioning review 

� We will implement the preferred option following a 
commissioning review of private sector housing 

� We will enable the delivery of more affordable housing 
� We will work with CBH to deliver the HRA capital 

programme  
� We will work with CBH to deliver enhanced Services to 

our tenants 
� We will work with CBH to ensure that resources are made 

available to deliver support services for older people via 
the Supporting People Programme. 

People are able to lead healthy lifestyles. � We will implement the preferred option for our leisure and 
culture services 

� We will conclude a sports facilities strategy for CBC-
owned sports facilities and a feasibility study for the 
Prince of Wales stadium 

Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community 
and involved in resolving local issues. 

� We will use asset-based community development and 
opportunities set out in the localism act to inspire more 
people to get actively involved in their communities 

� We will work in partnership to deliver the second year of 
the government’s troubled families programme, called 
Families First. 

� Potential review of CBC governance structures following 
outcome of Council Motion on 8 February. 

Arts and culture are used as a means to 
strengthen communities, strengthen the economy 
and enhance and protect our environment. 

� We will implement the preferred option for our leisure and 
culture services 

� We will re-open the Art Gallery and Museum 
� We will conclude the Town Hall feasibility study  
� We will conclude the box office procurement exercise & 

implement the new system 
We will meet our ‘Bridging the Gap’ targets for 
cashable savings and increased income 

� We will implement the shared ICT service with the Forest 
of Dean District Council 

� We will prepare for a commissioning review of the 
revenues and benefits services in 2015/16 

� We will implement the ‘Bridging the Gap’ programme and 
budget strategy for meeting the MTFS funding gap 

� We will deliver the Future Council programme for residual 
council services 

� We will agree an Accommodation Strategy and Asset 
Management Plan 

 
 
 

Page 21



Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 18 February 
2013 

 Corporate Strategy Action Plan 2013-14. Version 1 

 Page 4 Last updated 07 February 2013 
  
 

5. Next Steps 
5.1 Comments from Scrutiny will be addressed in the revised draft corporate strategy 

action plan which will go to Cabinet on 12 March before the final version goes to 
Council on 26 March for final approval. 

 
Background Papers  
Contact Officer Richard Gibson, Strategy and Engagement 

Manager, 01242 235 354, 
richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Accountability Leader of the Council 
Attachments Appendix A –Draft Corporate Strategy Action 

plan 2013-14 
 

Page 22



En
ha
nc
ing

 an
d p

ro
tec

tin
g o

ur
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
is 
a p

lac
e w

ith
 a 
cle

an
 an

d w
ell
-m
ain

tai
ne
d e

nv
iro
nm

en
t w

he
re 
wa
ste

 is
 m
ini
mi
se
d a

nd
 re
cy
cli
ng
, 

reu
sin

g a
nd
 co

mp
os
tin
g i
s p

ro
mo

ted
 

Wh
o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
:  

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity
 

Ja
ne
 G
rif
fith

s 
Ub

ico
 

Wh
at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
Alt

ho
ug

h m
os

t p
eo

ple
 un

de
rst

an
d t

he
 ne

ed
 to

 re
-us

e a
nd

 re
cy
cle

 th
ere

 is
 a 

ne
ed

 to
 co

nti
nu

e t
o r

ais
e a

wa
ren

es
s a

mo
ng

st 
tho

se
 w
ho

 do
 no

t re
cy
cle

.  T
he

 co
sts

 of
 la

nd
fill 

are
 

es
ca

lat
ing

 an
d i

t is
 im

po
rta

nt 
to 

mi
nim

ize
 th

e l
ev

el 
of 

res
idu

al 
wa

ste
.  H

ow
ev

er 
as

 cu
sto

me
r e

xp
ec

tat
ion

s, 
to 

rec
yc
le 

a w
ide

r v
ari

ety
 of

 m
ate

ria
ls,
 ris

e t
his

 co
uld

 im
pa

ct 
on

 bo
th 

co
sts

 an
d q

ua
lity

.  T
he

re 
is 
a g

rea
ter

 pr
es

su
re 

on
 m

an
ufa

ctu
rer

s a
nd

 re
tai

ler
s t

o t
ak

e o
n r

es
po

ns
ibi
lity

 fo
r th

e c
on

se
qu

en
ce

s o
f th

eir
 pa

ck
ag

ing
 w
hic

h m
ay

 re
su

lt i
n s

om
e 

ch
err

y p
ick

ing
 of

 lu
cra

tiv
e r

ec
yc
lin
g s

tre
am

s m
ak

ing
 co

lle
cti
on

 co
sts

 m
ore

 ex
pe

ns
ive

 fo
r th

os
e s

tre
am

s t
ha

t a
re 

lef
t fo

r th
e c

ou
nc

il t
o c

oll
ec

t.  
Th

ere
 is
 al

so
 pr

es
su

re 
fro

m 
the

 
rec

yc
lin
g i

nd
us

try
 fo

r b
ett

er 
qu

ali
ty 

rec
yc
lat

e. 
 So

cia
l c
ha

ng
es

 re
lat

ing
 to

 m
ore

 ho
us

es
 in

 m
ult

ipl
e o

cc
up

ati
on

 m
ay

 re
su

lt i
n a

 gr
ea

ter
 in

cid
en

ce
 of

 in
co

rre
ctl

y p
res

en
ted

 w
as

te 
wh

ich
 im

pa
cts

 on
 st

ree
t c

lea
nli
ne

ss
 an

d a
nti

 so
cia

l b
eh

av
iou

r. 
Ho

w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il a

gre
ed

 in
 20

11
 to

 es
tab

lish
 a 

joi
nt 

loc
al 

au
tho

rity
 co

mp
an

y w
ith

 C
ots

wo
ld 

Dis
tric

t C
ou

nc
il t
o d

eli
ve

r th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 se

rvi
ce

s: 
• 

W
as

te 
co

lle
cti
on

, k
erb

sid
e r

ec
yc
lin
g c

oll
ec

tio
ns

, o
rga

nic
 w
as

te 
co

lle
cti
on

s, 
se

rvi
cin

g o
f n

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
 re

cy
clin

g s
ite

s, 
op

era
tio

n o
f th

e S
win

do
n R

oa
d r

ec
yc
lin
g c

en
tre

, 
str

ee
t c

lea
nin

g, 
pu

bli
c t

oil
et 

cle
an

ing
, g

rou
nd

s m
ain

ten
an

ce
, g

rou
nd

s m
ain

ten
an

ce
 of

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Bo

rou
gh

 H
om

es
, fl

ee
t m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 m
ain

ten
an

ce
. 

Th
e c

ou
nc

il a
gre

ed
 in

 20
12

 to
 es

tab
lish

 a 
joi
nt 

wa
ste

 co
mm

itte
e w

ith
 G

lou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il, 
Fo

res
t o

f D
ea

n D
C 
an

d C
ots

wo
ld 

DC
.  A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e b
oro

ug
h c

ou
nc

il 
wil

l re
tai

n a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
de

cis
ion

s s
uc

h a
s b

ud
ge

t le
ve

ls 
the

 co
mm

itte
e w

ill c
on

sid
er 

the
 st

rat
eg

ic 
ou

tco
me

s f
or 

wa
ste

 an
d r

ec
yc
lin
g a

nd
 th

e b
ett

er 
co

-or
din

ati
on

 an
d a

lig
nm

en
t 

of 
wa

ste
 co

lle
cti
on

 an
d d

isp
os

al 
ac

tiv
itie

s a
cro

ss
 th

e p
art

ne
r c

ou
nc

ils.
 

Wh
at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

St
rat

eg
ic 
pr
oje

ct 
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill p
rog

res
s t

he
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f a

 jo
int

 
wa

ste
 co

mm
itte

e 
 

Ag
ree

 th
e b

us
ine

ss
 pl

an
 fo

r th
e J

W
C 

   Re
vie

w 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 of
 th

e j
oin

t w
as

te 
co

mm
itte

e a
nd

 JM
U 

an
d i

de
nti

fy 
an

y i
ss
ue

s m
em

be
rs 

ha
ve

 w
ith

 th
e w

ay
 in

 w
hic

h i
t 

is 
op

era
tin

g. 
 

Ju
ly 
20

13
 

   No
ve

mb
er 

20
13

 

Ja
ne

 G
riff

ith
s, 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

W
e w

ill i
nc

rea
se

 re
cy
clin

g r
ate

s a
nd

 re
du

cti
on

s i
n 

res
idu

al 
wa

ste
 

 
Bu

sin
es

s c
as

e p
rod

uc
ed

 fo
r th

e v
iab

ility
 of

 m
ixe

d p
las

tic
 

rec
yc
lin
g  

 Re
vie

w 
of 

bri
ng

 si
te 

fac
iliti

es
 

 Re
vie

w 
of 

bu
lky

 w
as

te 
co

lle
cti
on

s 
 On

go
ing

 aw
are

ne
ss
 ca

mp
aig

ns
 

Oc
tob

er 
20

12
 

JW
C/
JM

U 
(S
co

tt W
illia

ms
) 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

A 
– D

raf
t a

cti
on

 pl
an

s f
or

 20
13

-14
 

Page 23



Ho
w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 In
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e 

(M
arc

h 2
01
1) 
 

Ma
rch

 20
14
 Ta

rg
et 

Le
ad
 

De
liv
ery

 pa
rtn

er 
ind

ica
tor

s -
 

me
as
ur
ing

 ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
a 

de
liv
ery

 pa
rtn

er 
is 
res

po
ns
ibl
e 

for
 ye

t w
e r
em

ain
 ac

co
un

tab
le 

for
 

• 
Re

sid
ua

l h
ou

se
ho

ld 
wa

ste
 pe

r h
ea

d  
• 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 ho

us
eh

old
 w
as

te 
rec

yc
led

 
an

d c
om

po
ste

d  
• 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 co

lle
cti
on

s c
om

ple
ted

 on
 

sc
he

du
le 

(of
 to

tal
 co

lle
cti
on

s) 
• 

Im
pro

ve
d s

tre
et 

an
d e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 

cle
an

lin
es

s (
lev

els
 of

 lit
ter

, d
etr

itu
s, 

gra
ffit

i 
an

d f
ly 
po

sti
ng

) 
• 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 as

sis
ted

 co
lle
cti
on

s 
co

mp
let

ed
 on

 sc
he

du
le 

(of
 to

tal
 co

lle
cti
on

s) 
• 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
 se

rvi
ce

 co
mp

lai
nts

 re
ce

ive
d 

(of
 to

tal
 co

lle
cti
on

s) 
 

59
0k

g 
34

.4%
 

 
46

5k
g 

46
% 

 99
% 

 6%
 

  99
.5%

 
  0.5

% 

Ma
na

gin
g D

ire
cto

r, U
bic

o 

 

Page 24



 
En
ha
nc
ing

 an
d p

ro
tec

tin
g o

ur
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
is 
ab
le 
to 
ba
lan

ce
 ne

w 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
wi
th 
en
ha
nc
ing

 an
d p

ro
tec

tin
g t
he
 na

tur
al 
an
d b

uil
t e
nv
iro
nm

en
t  

Wh
o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity
 / C

ab
ine

t M
em

be
r B

uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en
t 

Gr
ah
am

e L
ew

is 
Mi
ke
 R
ed
ma

n 
Wh

at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
 CR

33
 - I

f th
e c

ou
nc

il d
oe

s n
ot 

ke
ep

 th
e m

om
en

tum
 go

ing
 w
ith

 re
ga

rds
 to

 th
e J

CS
 Th

e p
oli
cy
 va

cu
um

 le
ft b

y t
he

 ab
oli
tio

n o
f th

e R
SS

 an
d t

he
 re

su
lta

nt 
de

lay
 in

 pr
oje

cti
on

s a
nd

 
fra

me
wo

rk 
co

uld
 re

su
lt i
n i

na
pp

rop
ria

te 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 
 Ho

w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
 Fo

llo
win

g a
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 re
vie

w,
 th

e c
ou

nc
il a

gre
ed

 in
 20

11
 to

 co
nti

nu
e p

rov
idi
ng

 bu
ilt 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s t

hro
ug

h i
ts 

in-
ho

us
e p

rov
ide

r. T
he

se
 se

rvi
ce

s a
re 

as
 fo

llo
ws

: 
Bu

ild
ing

 C
on

tro
l (s

ha
red

 w
ith

 Te
wk

es
bu

ry)
, S

tra
teg

ic 
La

nd
 U
se

, D
ev

elo
pm

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t, U
rba

n D
es

ign
 an

d H
eri

tag
e a

nd
 C
on

se
rva

tio
n. 

Th
e i

n-h
ou

se
 se

rvi
ce

 w
ill b

e 
tes

ted
 ag

ain
st 

the
 m

ark
et 

in 
20

14
.  

 Wh
at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 R
ev
iew

s 
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill u
nd

ert
ak

e a
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 re
vie

w 
of 

ou
r 

Gr
ee

n E
nv

iro
nm

en
t s

erv
ice

s 
 

• 
Co

mm
en

ce
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 re
vie

w 
pro

ce
ss
, fo

rm
ali
se

 
Me

mb
er 

en
ga

ge
me

nt 
an

d c
arr

y o
ut 

ini
tia

l s
co

pin
g. 

• 
Be

gin
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 re
lev

an
t s

tak
eh

old
ers

. 
• 

Fo
rm

ula
te 

dra
ft p

rop
os

als
 ab

ou
t m

os
t a

pp
rop

ria
te 

org
an

isa
tio

na
l fi
t fo

r re
tai

ne
d a

cti
vit
ies

 an
d r

ep
ort

 to
 

Ca
bin

et.
 

• 
Im

ple
me

nt 
pre

fer
red

 op
tio

n 

Ju
ne

 20
13

 
 Ju

ly 
20

13
 

Oc
t 2

01
3 

  Ma
rch

 20
14

 
 

Gr
ah

am
e L

ew
is.
 

W
e w

ill u
nd

ert
ak

e a
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 R
ev

iew
 of

 ou
r 

Bu
ild
ing

 C
on

tro
l S

erv
ice

 (c
urr

en
tly
 a 

10
 ye

ar 
sh

are
d-s

erv
ice

 ag
ree

me
nt 

wit
h T

ew
ke

sb
ury

 BC
 

wh
ich

 co
mm

en
ce

d N
ov

em
be

r 1
st 

20
09

, th
ou

gh
 

the
re 

is 
a 5

 ye
ar 

rev
iew

 w
hic

h w
ill b

e c
arr

ied
 ou

t in
 

20
14

). 
 

• 
Co

mm
en

ce
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 re
vie

w 
pro

ce
ss
, fo

rm
ali
se

 
Me

mb
er 

en
ga

ge
me

nt 
an

d c
arr

y o
ut 

ini
tia

l s
co

pin
g. 

• 
Co

mm
en

ce
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 w
ith

 in
ter

na
l a

nd
 ex

ter
na

l 
cu

sto
me

rs 
an

d a
ss
es

s t
he

 in
ter

na
l a

nd
 ex

ter
na

l 
ap

pe
tite

 fo
r d

ev
elo

pin
g a

lte
rna

tiv
e d

eli
ve

ry 
mo

de
ls.
  

• 
Fo

rm
ula

te 
pro

po
sa

ls 
an

d f
ina

lise
 re

po
rt t

o c
ab

ine
t. 

 
• 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
. 

 

Ap
ril 

20
13

 
 Ju

ly 
/ A

ug
us

t 
20

13
 

 No
ve

mb
er 

20
13

 
 Ap

ril 
to 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
14

 
     

Gr
ah

am
e L

ew
is.
 

Page 25



St
rat

eg
ic 
Pr
oje

cts
 

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

Jo
int

 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y (

JC
S)
 an

d C
he

lte
nh

am
 Lo

ca
l 

Pla
n  

      Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Pla

n 

• 
Ag

ree
 an

d p
ub

lish
 JC

S p
ref

err
ed

 op
tio

n f
or 

ne
w 

ho
us

ing
 an

d e
mp

loy
me

nt 
lan

d a
llo
ca

tio
ns

 to
 20

31
 fo

r 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
• 

Pr
efe

rre
d o

pti
on

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 

• 
Se

cre
tar

y o
f S

tat
e d

ec
isio

n 
• 

Ad
op

t J
CS

 as
 th

e s
tra

teg
ic 
lev

el 
of 

the
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 

Lo
ca

l P
lan

 
 
• 

Co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 sc
op

e o
f C

he
lte

nh
am

 Pl
an

  
• 

Pu
bli
c c

on
su

lta
tio

n o
n d

raf
t C

he
lte

nh
am

 Pl
an

 (n
on

-
sta

tut
ory

) 
• 

Pu
bli
c c

on
su

lta
tio

n o
n p

rop
os

ed
 su

bm
iss

ion
 pl

an
 -  

 
• 

Ex
am

ina
tio

n a
nd

 ad
op

tio
n 

 Ju
ne

 20
13

 
 Ju

ly/
Au

g 2
01

3 
Ju

ly 
20

14
 

 Au
gu

st 
20

14
 

 Su
mm

er 
20

13
 

Sp
rin

g 2
01

4  
 Au

tum
n/W

int
er 

20
14

  
 Su

mm
er 

20
15

 

Mi
ke

 R
ed

ma
n, 

Dir
ec

tor
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

      Tra
ce

y C
rew

s, 
He

ad
 of

 Pl
an

nin
g 

Ho
w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 In
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e 

(M
arc

h 2
01
1) 
 

Ma
rch

 20
14
 Ta

rg
et 

Le
ad
 

Se
rvi

ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 
– m

ea
su
rin

g 
ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
we

 ar
e d

ire
ctl
y 

res
po

ns
ibl
e f
or
 an

d t
ha
t w

e w
ill 

be
 ac

co
un

tab
le 
for

 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

ap
pli
ca

tio
ns

:  
Re

ce
ive

d /
 D
ete

rm
ine

d /
 Ap

pro
ve

d /
 R
efu

se
d /

 
Ap

pe
ale

d 
 15

90
 / 1

34
6 /

 
12

95
 / 5

7 /
 29

 
 18

00
 / 1

60
0 /

 15
00

/ 
60

 / 3
0 

Mi
ke

 R
ed

ma
n, 

Dir
ec

tor
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Av
era

ge
 nu

mb
er 

of 
da

ys
 to

 pr
oc

es
s a

n 
ap

pli
ca

tio
n f

rom
 re

ce
ipt

 to
 is
su

ing
 of

 de
cis

ion
 

65
 da

ys
 

60
 da

ys
 

Mi
ke

 R
ed

ma
n, 

Dir
ec

tor
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Nu
mb

er 
/ p

erc
en

tag
e o

f p
lan

nin
g a

pp
ea

ls 
all
ow

ed
 

42
% 

35
% 

Mi
ke

 R
ed

ma
n, 

Dir
ec

tor
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

pro
jec

ts 
im

ple
me

nte
d a

s a
 re

su
lt o

f 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l in
ter

es
t g

rou
ps

 on
 st

ree
t 

red
es

ign
 pr

oje
cts

 
1 

2 
W
ilf 
To

ma
ne

y, 
Ur

ba
n D

es
ign

 M
an

ag
er 

  

Page 26



 
En
ha
nc
ing

 an
d p

ro
tec

tin
g o

ur
 en

vir
on
me

nt 
Ca
rb
on
 em

iss
ion

s a
re 
red

uc
ed
 an

d C
he
lte
nh
am

 is
 ab

le 
to 
ad
ap
t to

 th
e i
mp

ac
ts 
of 
cli
ma

te 
ch
an
ge
. 

Wh
o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Su

sta
ina

bil
ity
 

Ja
ne
 G
rif
fith

s 
Da

ve
 R
ob

ert
s, 
He

ad
 of
 Pr

op
ert

y S
erv

ice
s 

Wh
at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
• 

If t
he

 co
un

cil 
do

es
 no

t im
ple

me
nt 

the
 ac

tio
ns

 id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 th

e c
lim

ate
 ch

an
ge

 ad
ap

tat
ion

 ris
k a

ss
es

sm
en

ts 
the

re 
is 
a r

isk
 th

at 
res

ou
rce

s w
ill n

ot 
be

 us
ed

 to
 be

st 
eff

ec
t, w

hic
h 

co
uld

 im
pa

ct 
on

 fin
an

cia
l, e

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 an

d s
erv

ice
 de

cis
ion

s a
nd

 af
fec

t s
erv

ice
 de

live
ry.

 (C
orp

ora
te 

ris
k C

R2
9) 

• 
If c

arb
on

 em
iss

ion
s a

re 
no

t re
du

ce
d t

he
n t

he
 co

un
cil 

co
uld

 fa
ce

 hi
gh

er 
en

erg
y a

nd
 fu

el 
bil
ls,
 fa

il t
o d

eli
ve

r o
ne

 of
 its

 co
rpo

rat
e o

bje
cti
ve

s a
nd

 ex
pe

rie
nc

e a
 ne

ga
tiv
e i

mp
ac

t 
on

 its
 re

pu
tat

ion
 lo

ca
lly.

 (Id
en

tifi
ed

 in
 ca

bin
et 

rep
ort

 da
ted

 13
/11

/12
) 

• 
No

 fu
nd

ing
 se

t a
sid

e s
pe

cif
ica

lly 
for

 ca
rbo

n r
ed

uc
tio

n o
r c

lim
ate

 ch
an

ge
 ad

ap
tat

ion
 pr

oje
cts

 
Ho

w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 se

t th
e s

tra
teg

ic 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 th
is 
ou

tco
me

. 
 Wh

at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

St
rat

eg
ic 
Pr
oje

ct 
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill i
mp

lem
en

t th
e r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
of 

the
 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

2 c
ab

ine
t re

po
rt, 

se
ttin

g o
ut 

ho
w 
we

 w
ill m

ee
t th

e 3
0%

 
ca

rbo
n r

ed
uc

tio
n t

arg
et 

by
 20

15
 an

d o
ur 

as
pir

ati
on

 to
 re

du
ce

 ca
rbo

n e
mi

ss
ion

s 
by

 40
% 

by
 20

20
 

• 
Ex

plo
re 

the
 po

ten
tia

l fo
r S

ma
rt m

ete
rin

g t
o h

elp
 in

 br
idg

ing
 th

e g
ap

 
• 

Co
nti

nu
e t

o e
xp

lor
e o

the
r in

itia
tiv
es

 to
 de

live
r fi

na
nc

ial
 an

d c
arb

on
 sa

vin
gs

 
• 

Sta
rt t

o l
oo

k i
n m

ore
 de

tai
l a

t th
e c

as
e f

or 
ins

tal
lin
g a

 bi
om

as
s b

oil
er 

at 
Le

isu
re@

 as
 a 

po
ten

tia
l re

pla
ce

me
nt 

for
 th

e c
om

bin
ed

 he
at 

an
d p

ow
er 

un
it o

n 
ex

pir
y o

f th
e l

ea
se

 in
 20

15
 

  

30
.11

.13
 

On
go

ing
 

 31
.03

.14
 

    

Da
ve

 R
ob

ert
s, 

He
ad

 of
 Pr

op
ert

y 
Se

rvi
ce

s 
      

W
e w

ill d
ev

elo
p w

ay
s o

f m
on

ito
rin

g t
he

 
im

pa
ct 

of 
co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 an
d r

eta
ine

d 
se

rvi
ce

s o
n c

lim
ate

 ch
an

ge
 

Me
ch

an
ism

 in
 pl

ac
e f

or 
eff

ec
tiv
ely

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

ing
 se

rvi
ce

s 
 

30
.06

.13
 

 
Ja

ne
 G

riff
ith

s, 
Dir

ec
tor

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 

Ho
w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 In
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e 

(M
arc

h 2
01
1) 
 

Ma
rch

 20
14
 Ta

rg
et 

Le
ad
 

Se
rvi

ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 
– m

ea
su
rin

g a
cti
vit
y 

tha
t w

e a
re 
dir

ec
tly
 re

sp
on

sib
le 
for

 an
d 

tha
t w

e w
ill 
be
 ac

co
un

tab
le 
for

 
Re

du
cti
on

 in
 C
O2

 em
iss

ion
s f

rom
 en

erg
y u

se
, 

fue
l u

se
 

 Ga
s a

nd
 el

ec
tric

ity
 co

ns
um

pti
on

 
 W
ate

r u
se

 – 
we

 w
ill b

eg
in 

to 
mo

nit
or 

thi
s i
n 

20
13

/14
 on

 a 
qu

art
erl

y b
as

is 

5,1
14

 to
nn

es
 

CO
2e 

(20
05

/06
)  

 11
,76

2,4
74

 
(M

arc
h 2

01
2) 

  

30
% 

red
uc

tio
n (

1,5
34

 
ton

ne
s) 

by
 20

15
 

Gi
ll M

orr
is,
 C
lim

ate
 C
ha

ng
e a

nd
 

Su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 O

ffic
er 

Page 27



 
St
ren

gth
en
ing

 ou
r e
co
no
my

 
Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
ha
s a

 st
ro
ng
 an

d s
us
tai
na
ble

 ec
on
om

y 
Wh

o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
 

Le
ad
er 
of 
the

 C
ou

nc
il 

Gr
ah
am

e L
ew

is 
Mi
ke
 R
ed
ma

n /
 Je

rem
y W

illi
am

so
n 

Wh
at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
Th

ere
 is
 a 

ris
k t

ha
t c

uts
 to

 ou
r fu

nd
ing

 re
du

ce
 ou

r a
bil
ity
 to

 pr
om

ote
 an

d s
us

tai
n C

he
lte

nh
am

’s 
ec

on
om

ic 
gro

wt
h; 

no
t b

ein
g c

om
mi

tte
d t

o a
n e

co
no

mi
c g

row
th 

ag
en

da
 co

uld
 

lea
d t

o a
 lo

ss
 of

 in
ve

stm
en

t in
 th

e t
ow

n, 
wit

h a
 re

su
lta

nt 
im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e p
eo

ple
’s 
job

s a
nd

 liv
es

, a
nd

 th
e d

es
ira

bil
ity
 of

 th
e t

ow
n a

s b
us

ine
ss
/to

uri
sm

 de
sti
na

tio
n. 

In 
ad

dit
ion

, 
wit

h t
he

 in
tro

du
cti
on

 of
 bu

sin
es

s r
ate

s r
ete

nti
on

, th
e c

ou
nc

il f
ina

nc
es

 ar
e n

ow
 m

ore
 di

rec
tly
 lin

ke
d t

o e
co

no
mi

c g
row

th 
in 

the
 to

wn
. 

 CR
45

 - I
f s

ite
s i
de

nti
fie

d w
ith

in 
for

me
r C

ivic
 pr

ide
 pr

og
ram

me
 do

 no
t g

en
era

te 
su

ffic
ien

t n
et 

rec
eip

ts 
the

n t
he

 w
ide

r a
sp

ira
tio

ns
 e.

g. 
pu

bli
c r

ea
lm

 w
ill n

ot 
be

 de
live

rab
le 

Ho
w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 di

rec
tly
 pr

ov
ide

 an
 ec

on
om

ic 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

fun
cti
on

 bu
t h

as
 al

rea
dy

 co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 D
ev

elo
pm

en
t T

as
k F

orc
e t

o t
ak

e t
he

 le
ad

 in
 

bri
ng

ing
 fo

rw
ard

 pl
an

s f
or 

the
 re

vit
ali
sa

tio
n o

f o
ur 

tow
n c

en
tre

. T
he

 co
un

cil 
wil

l a
lso

 w
ork

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith

 bu
sin

es
se

s a
nd

 th
eir

 re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e b

od
ies

 w
ho

 m
ak

e-u
p 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Bu

sin
es

s P
art

ne
rsh

ip,
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 C
ha

mb
er 

of 
Co

mm
erc

e a
nd

 th
e G

lou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 Lo

ca
l E

nte
rpr

ise
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 de
live

r th
is 
ou

tco
me

.  
Wh

at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 R
ev
iew

 
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill i
mp

lem
en

t th
e p

ref
err

ed
 

op
tio

n f
or 

the
 re

sid
ua

l p
ark

ing
 

se
rvi

ce
 

 

• 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
str

uc
tur

e a
nd

 m
ec

ha
nis

m 
ag

ree
d b

y C
ab

ine
t J

an
ua

ry 
20

13
. 

• 
En

su
re 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n a

nd
 se

am
les

s t
ran

sit
ion

 to
 ne

w 
en

for
ce

me
nt 

arr
an

ge
me

nts
 of

 C
BC

 ca
r p

ark
s. 

• 
On

-go
ing

 m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 re
vie

w.
 

 

Ja
n 2

01
3 

Ma
rch

 20
13

 
 De

c 2
01

3 

Gr
ah

am
e L

ew
is 

St
rat

eg
ic 
pr
oje

cts
 

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 G
Fir

st,
 ou

r lo
ca

l 
en

ter
pri

se
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
, to

 pr
om

ote
 

su
sta

ina
ble

 ec
on

om
ic 
gro

wt
h i

n 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m.

 

� 
Co

mm
en

ce
 bu

sin
es

s s
up

po
rt s

erv
ice

 pr
ov

ide
d b

y G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 En
ter

pri
se

s L
td.

  
� 

W
ork

 w
ith

 LE
P, 

Ch
am

be
r o

f C
om

me
rce

 an
d C

he
lte

nh
am

 Bu
sin

es
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

to 
en

su
re 

we
 m

ax
im

ise
 ec

on
om

ic 
be

ne
fits

 fo
r C

he
lte

nh
am

 

 
Ma

rtin
 Q

ua
nto

ck
 

Bu
sin

es
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Ma
na

ge
r 

W
e w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 su

pp
ort

 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Ta

sk
 

Fo
rce

 
 

• 
Ca

rry
 ou

t a
 re

vie
w 
CD

TF
 bu

sin
es

s p
lan

 an
d a

ss
es

s p
erf

orm
an

ce
 an

d r
ep

ort
 

fin
din

gs
 to

 th
e C

DT
F B

oa
rd 

an
d t

he
n t

o C
ab

ine
t. 

 
• 

Co
ns

ide
r p

lan
nin

g a
pp

lica
tio

n f
or 

No
rth

 Pl
ac

e/P
ort

lan
d S

tre
et 

• 
W
ork

 w
ith

 de
ve

lop
ers

 to
 en

ab
le 

the
m 

to 
sta

rt c
on

str
uc

tio
n w

ork
 on

 th
e B

rew
ery

 / 
Hig

h S
tre

et 
sit
e 

• 
W
ork

 w
ith

 de
ve

lop
ers

 to
 en

ab
le 

the
m 

to 
bri

ng
 fo

rw
ard

 pl
an

nin
g a

pp
lica

tio
ns

 fo
r th

e 
Alb

ion
 St

ree
t b

loc
k  

  • 
W
ork

 w
ith

 G
CC

 ov
er 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n L

oc
al 

Su
sta

ina
ble

 Tr
an

sp
ort

 Fu
nd

 in
clu

din
g: 

• 
Pe

de
str

ian
 w
ay

-fin
din

g 

Au
gu

st 
20

13
 

  Ap
ril 

20
13

 
Ma

rch
 20

14
 

 Oc
tob

er 
20

13
 

     

Je
rem

y W
illia

ms
on

 

Page 28



• 
Cy

cle
 ro

ute
s 

• 
Ju

nc
tio

n i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 

• 
Mo

da
l s
hif

t 
• 

Bo
ots

 C
orn

er 
 

• 
W
ork

 w
ith

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 pa
rtn

ers
 to

 en
ab

le 
a p

rog
ram

me
 of

 pu
bli
c r

ea
lm

 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 to
 be

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 

inc
lud

ing
 

• 
Pr
om

en
ad

e p
ha

se
 3 

 
• 

Pe
de

str
ian

ise
d P

rom
en

ad
e 

• 
St 

Ma
ry’

s c
hu

rch
ya

rd 

       Ap
ril 

20
13

 
Ma

rch
 20

14
 

Ma
rch

 20
14

 
Ho

w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 In
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e 

(M
arc

h 2
01
1) 
 

Ma
rch

 20
14
 Ta

rg
et 

Le
ad
 

Co
mm

un
ity
-ba

se
d i
nd

ica
tor

s 
me

as
ur
ing

 ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
a r

an
ge
 

of 
pa
rtn

ers
 w
ill 
co
ntr

ibu
te 
to 

an
d t
ha
t w

e a
re 
no

t d
ire

ctl
y 

ac
co
un

tab
le 
for

. 

Un
em

plo
ym

en
t le

ve
ls 
- c

lai
ma

nt 
rat

e  
% 

of 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 no
t in

 ed
uc

ati
on

, 
em

plo
ym

en
t o

r tr
ain

ing
 

3.3
% 

(Ja
nu

ary
 

20
12

) 
 5.7

% 
(Ja

nu
ary

 
20

12
) 

 
Ric

ha
rd 

Gi
bs

on
, S

tra
teg

y a
nd

 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 
Oc

cu
pa

nc
y r

ate
 in

 to
wn

 ce
ntr

e 
 

 
Ma

rtin
 Q

ua
nto

ck
 

Bu
sin

es
s P

art
ne

rsh
ip 

Ma
na

ge
r 

  

Page 29



 
St
ren

gth
en
ing

 ou
r c
om

mu
nit
ies

. 
Co
mm

un
itie

s f
ee
l s
afe

 an
d a

re 
sa
fe.
 

Wh
o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Ho

us
ing

, S
afe

ty 
an
d C

om
mu

nit
y D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Gr
ah
am

e L
ew

is 
So

nia
 Ph

illi
ps
 

Wh
at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
If w

e d
o n

ot 
ali
gn

 ou
r re

so
urc

es
 be

hin
d s

up
po

rtin
g l

oc
al 

po
lici

ng
 ac

tiv
itie

s a
nd

 co
mm

un
ity
 sa

fet
y a

cti
vit
ies

 se
t o

ut 
in 

the
 Po

lice
 an

d C
rim

e C
om

mi
ss
ion

ers
’ P

oli
ce

 an
d C

rim
e 

Pla
n, 

the
n w

e m
ay

 no
t m

ax
im

ise
 ou

r im
pa

ct 
on

 re
du

cin
g c

rim
e a

nd
 m

ak
ing

 ou
r c

om
mu

nit
ies

 fe
el 

sa
fe.

  
 Ho

w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 di

rec
tly
 pr

ov
ide

 a 
ran

ge
 of

 se
rvi

ce
s t

ha
t s

up
po

rt t
his

 ou
tco

me
 in

clu
din

g t
he

 w
ork

 of
 th

e P
ub

lic 
Pr
ote

cti
on

 Te
am

 w
ho

 le
ad

 on
 lic

en
sin

g, 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l h
ea

lth
, p

rom
oti

ng
 co

mm
un

ity
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 ta

ck
lin
g a

nti
-so

cia
l b

eh
av

iou
r. T

he
 co

un
cil 

is 
als

o c
om

mi
tte

d t
o w

ork
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith

 th
e G

lou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 

Po
lice

 an
d C

rim
e C

om
mi

ss
ion

er 
wh

o w
ill b

e i
n p

os
t fr

om
 N
ov

em
be

r 1
5th

 an
d a

 w
ide

 ra
ng

e o
f o

the
r a

ge
nc

ies
 to

 su
pp

ort
 de

live
ry 

of 
thi

s o
utc

om
e. 

 Wh
at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 R
ev
iew

 
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w
ork

 in
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 to
 re

du
ce

 in
cid

en
ts 

of 
an

ti-s
oc

ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
an

d 
the

 ha
rm

 it 
ca

n c
au

se
 to

 
co

mm
un

itie
s. 

 

W
e w

ill d
ev

elo
p o

ur 
fra

me
wo

rk 
for

 de
ali
ng

 w
ith

 an
ti-s

oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
to 

ref
lec

t in
 pr

op
os

ed
 

na
tio

na
l c
ha

ng
es

 to
 to

ols
 an

d p
ow

ers
. 

 
31

.3.
14

 
Tre

vo
r G

lad
din

g 
 

W
e w

ill e
xp

lor
e h

ow
 be

st 
the

 
co

un
cil 

ca
n w

ork
 in

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
to 

tac
kle

 hi
gh

 pr
ofi

le 
cri

me
 in

 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 th
e n

ew
 Po

lice
 & 

Cr
im

e C
om

mi
ss
ion

er 
to 

en
su

re 
tha

t w
e g

ain
 th

eir
 su

pp
ort

 
for

 en
ha

nc
ing

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ork

ing
 in

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 to

 ta
ck
le 

cri
me

. 
 

31
.3.

14
 

Ba
rba

ra 
Ex

ley
\Yv

on
ne

 
Ho

pe
/Ja

ne
 G

riff
ith

s 
 

W
e w

ill p
rot

ec
t th

e h
ea

lth
 an

d 
we

ll-b
ein

g o
f c

itiz
en

s, 
bu

sin
es

se
s a

nd
 vi
sit
ors

 an
d 

ma
int

ain
 a 

hig
h l

ev
el 

of 
co

ns
um

er 
co

nfi
de

nc
e i

n f
oo

d 
bu

sin
es

se
s. 

 

W
e w

ill d
eli
ve

r a
 pr

og
ram

me
 of

 st
atu

tor
y i
ns

pe
cti
on

s o
f li
ce

ns
ed

 pr
em

ise
s 

W
e w

ill u
nd

ert
ak

e a
n i

ns
pe

cti
on

 pr
og

ram
me

 of
 hi

gh
 ris

k f
oo

d b
us

ine
ss
es

 to
 en

su
re 

foo
d s

afe
ty 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 
 

31
.3.

14
 

 
Ba

rba
ra 

Ex
ley

\Yv
on

ne
 

Ho
pe

  
 

W
e w

ill u
nd

ert
ak

e a
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
w 
of 

ou
r 

Pu
bli
c P

rot
ec

tio
n S

erv
ice

 
(lic

en
sin

g, 
en

vir
on

me
nta

l 
he

alt
h, 

co
mm

un
ity
 sa

fet
y) 

 

Ag
ree

 sc
op

e o
f re

vie
w 
 

De
ter

mi
ne

 ne
ed

s &
 ou

tco
me

s. 
En

ga
ge

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs.

 
Ag

ree
me

nt 
by

 ca
bin

et 
to 

the
 ne

xt 
ste

ps
 fo

r th
e c

om
mi

ss
ion

ing
 ex

erc
ise

. 
 

 
 

Page 30



Ho
w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 in
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e (
20
10
-11

)  
Ma

rch
 20

14
 

Ta
rg
et 

Le
ad
 

Co
mm

un
ity
-ba

se
d 

ind
ica

tor
s m

ea
su
rin

g 
ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
a r

an
ge
 of
 

pa
rtn

ers
 w
ill 
co
ntr

ibu
te 
to 

an
d t
ha
t w

e a
re 
no

t d
ire

ctl
y 

ac
co
un

tab
le 
for

. 

% 
of 

lice
ns

ed
 pr

em
ise

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
 % 

of 
foo

d p
rem

ise
s, 

wh
ich

 ar
e 

bro
ad

ly 
co

mp
lia
nt 

wit
h F

oo
d S

afe
ty 

Le
gis

lat
ion

  
 % 

of 
foo

d b
us

ine
ss
es

 in
clu

de
d i

n t
he

 
Fo

od
 H
yg

ien
e R

ati
ng

 Sc
he

me
  

 Nu
mb

er 
of 

sa
mp

lin
g v

isit
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n  
 % 

of 
wo

rk 
rel

ate
d m

an
da

tor
y 

inc
ide

nts
 an

d a
cc
ide

nts
 in

ve
sti
ga

ted
 

in 
ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th

e H
SE

’s 
inc

ide
nt 

se
lec

tio
n c

rite
ria

 
 To

tal
 vo

lum
e o

f re
co

rde
d c

rim
e p

er 
an

nu
m 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

an
ti-s

oc
ial
 be

ha
vio

ur 
inc

ide
nts

 
Se

rio
us

 ac
qu

isit
ive

 cr
im

e i
nc

ide
nts

 
Do

me
sti
c b

urg
lar

y i
nc

ide
nts

 
Inc

ide
nts

 of
 re

co
rde

d v
iol
en

ce
 in

 th
e 

To
wn

 C
en

tre
 (F

rid
ay

 & 
Sa

t e
ve

.) 
Inc

ide
nts

 an
d r

ep
ea

t in
cid

en
ts 

of 
do

me
sti
c a

bu
se

 

                  10
,18

7 
 70

24
 

 24
06

 
12

51
 

29
5 

 20
7 i

nc
ide

nts
 an

d 7
9 r

ep
ea

t 
inc

ide
nts

 (3
8.1

6%
).  

 
                 Ric

ha
rd 

Gi
bs

on
, S

tra
teg

y a
nd

 En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge

r 

  

Page 31



 
St
ren

gth
en
ing

 ou
r c
om

mu
nit
ies

. 
Pe
op
le 
ha
ve
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 de

ce
nt 
an
d a

ffo
rd
ab
le 
ho
us
ing

. 
Wh

o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Ho

us
ing

, S
afe

ty 
an
d C

om
mu

nit
y D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Ja
ne
 G
rif
fith

s 
Ma

rti
n S

tac
y/M

ike
 R
ed
ma

n /
Ch

elt
en
ha
m 
Bo

ro
ug

h H
om

es
 

Wh
at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
W
elf

are
 re

for
m 

wil
l im

pa
ct 

on
 fa

mi
lie
s a

nd
 in

div
idu

als
’ a

bil
ity
 to

 su
sta

in 
the

ir o
wn

 ho
me

 an
d t

his
 ris

k i
s b

ein
g m

an
ag

ed
 th

rou
gh

 C
BH

, H
ou

sin
g O

pti
on

s t
ea

m,
 C
CP

 (o
ur 

ho
us

ing
 

ad
vic

e p
rov

ide
r) a

nd
 th

e h
ou

sin
g b

en
efi

ts 
tea

m.
  T

he
 la

ck
 of

 af
for

da
ble

 ho
us

ing
 w
ith

in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
 an

d t
he

 lim
it o

n a
va

ila
ble

 si
tes

 w
ill a

lso
 im

pa
ct 

on
 pe

op
le’
s a

bil
ity
 to

 ac
ce

ss
 

de
ce

nt 
an

d a
ffo

rda
ble

 ho
us

ing
.  T

his
 ris

k i
s w

ell
 kn

ow
n a

nd
 is
 so

me
thi

ng
 w
hic

h i
s c

urr
en

tly
 be

ing
 co

ns
ide

red
 th

rou
gh

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f th

e j
oin

t c
ore

 st
rat

eg
y a

nd
 th

e 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Pla
n. 

 As
 fu

el 
pri

ce
s c

on
tin

ue
 to

 ris
e, 

an
d w

ith
 th

e c
on

tin
uin

g e
co

no
mi

c c
on

dit
ion

s m
ore

 an
d m

ore
 fa

mi
lie
s a

re 
fal

lin
g i

nto
 fu

el 
po

ve
rty

 w
hic

h i
mp

ac
ts 

on
 th

e e
lde

rly
 

an
d v

uln
era

ble
.  T

he
 su

pp
ort

ing
 pe

op
le 

fun
din

g i
s r

ed
uc

ing
 an

d n
ew

 co
ntr

ac
ts 

are
 be

ing
 le

t w
hic

h m
ay

 im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e w

ay
 in

 w
hic

h s
erv

ice
s a

re 
de

live
red

. 
Ho

w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il h

as
 an

 ar
ms

-le
ng

th 
rel

ati
on

sh
ip 

wit
h C

he
lte

nh
am

 Bo
rou

gh
 H
om

es
 th

at 
ma

na
ge

s c
ou

nc
il p

rop
ert

ies
 on

 its
 be

ha
lf a

nd
 th

e c
ou

nc
il t
hro

ug
h i

ts 
HR

A b
us

ine
ss
 pl

an
 is
 

ab
le 

to 
inv

es
t in

 se
rvi

ce
 im

pro
ve

me
nts

 w
hic

h b
en

efi
t c

ou
nc

il t
en

an
ts 

an
d a

dd
res

s s
om

e o
f th

e k
no

wn
 ris

ks
. T

he
 du

ty 
to 

pro
vid

e h
ou

sin
g a

dv
ice

 is
 de

live
red

 th
rou

gh
 co

ntr
ac

ts 
wit

h C
ou

nty
 C
om

mu
nit

y P
roj

ec
ts 

an
d .

CH
AC

.  T
he

 co
un

cil 
is 
a p

art
ne

r in
 th

e s
up

po
rtin

g p
eo

ple
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
hic

h l
oo

ks
 on

 a 
co

un
ty 

wid
e b

as
is 
on

 ho
w 
it c

an
 de

live
r h

ou
sin

g 
rel

ate
d t

o s
up

po
rt t

o a
 ra

ng
e o

f v
uln

era
ble

 an
d e

lde
rly

 re
sid

en
ts.

 
Wh

at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
ws

 
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill i
mp

lem
en

t th
e p

ref
err

ed
 op

tio
n e

me
rgi

ng
 fro

m 
the

 
ho

us
ing

 op
tio

ns
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 re
vie

w 
 

Re
po

rt t
o c

ab
ine

t o
n t

he
 pr

efe
rre

d o
pti

on
 an

d 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n p
lan

 
 Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 pr
efe

rre
d o

pti
on

 

Ju
ne

 20
13

 
  Ma

rch
 20

14
  

Gr
ah

am
e L

ew
is 
 

   
W
e w

ill i
mp

lem
en

t th
e p

ref
err

ed
 op

tio
n f

oll
ow

ing
 a 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
w 
of 

pri
va

te 
se

cto
r h

ou
sin

g 
Re

po
rt t

o c
ab

ine
t 

Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 pr

efe
rre

d o
pti

on
 

Ma
rch

 20
14

 
Oc

t 2
01

4 
Gr

ah
am

e L
ew

is 

St
rat

eg
ic 
Pr
oje

cts
 

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill p
rep

are
 ou

r s
erv

ice
s a

nd
 co

mm
un

itie
s f

or 
we

lfa
re 

ref
orm

s t
ha

t w
ill i

mp
ac

t o
n o

ur 
co

mm
un

itie
s f

rom
 Ap

ril 
20

13
 on

wa
rds

 
 

De
ve

lop
 a 

co
-or

din
ate

d r
es

po
ns

e t
o w

elf
are

 re
for

ms
 

thr
ou

gh
 ex

ist
ing

 an
d n

ew
 ne

tw
ork

s e
ns

uri
ng

 cl
ea

r 
co

mm
un

ica
tio

n t
o t

ho
se

 im
pa

cte
d b

y t
he

 ch
an

ge
 

 Mo
nit

or 
ho

w 
the

 H
RA

 fu
nd

ing
 in

ve
stm

en
t b

ein
g p

ut 
int

o C
BH

 fo
r w

elf
are

 re
for

m 
is 
me

eti
ng

 th
e o

utc
om

es
 

 To
 en

su
re 

a s
mo

oth
 tra

ns
itio

n t
o t

he
 ne

w 
dir

ec
t 

ac
ce

ss
 fo

r ro
ug

h s
lee

pin
g c

on
tra

ct 

Ma
rch

 20
14

 
   Ma

rch
 20

14
 

  Ap
ril 

20
13

 

Ma
rtin

 St
ac

y, 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d C

om
mu

nit
ies

 
Ma

na
ge

r 
  Ma

rtin
 St

ac
y, 

Ho
us

ing
 an

d C
om

mu
nit

ies
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 Ma
rtin

 St
ac

y, 
Ho

us
ing

 an
d C

om
mu

nit
ies

 
Ma

na
ge

r 
W
e w

ill e
na

ble
 th

e d
eli
ve

ry 
of 

mo
re 

aff
ord

ab
le 

ho
us

ing
 

 
Ga

rag
e S

ite
s (
14
 un

its
) 

W
ork

 co
mm

en
ce

s –
 ga

rag
e s

ite
s 

 St
 Pa

uls
 Ph

as
e 2

 (5
9 u

nit
s –

 35
 pr

iva
te 
sa
le 
+ 2

4 
CB

H 
ow

ne
d u

nit
s) 

W
ork

 co
mm

en
ce

s 

 Ap
ril 

20
13

 
  Ja

nu
ary

 
20

14
 

 Pa
ul 

Ste
ph

en
so

n (
CB

H)
 

  Pa
ul 

Ste
ph

en
so

n (
CB

H)
 

 

Page 32



W
e w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 C
BH

 to
 de

live
r th

e H
RA

 ca
pit

al 
pro

gra
mm

e  
 

PV
 pa

ne
ls 
on

 ro
ofs

 - £
1.3

m 
inv

es
tm

en
t 

  No
n t

rad
itio

na
l s
toc

k u
pg

rad
e -

 £2
60

k i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

 Ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d W

ork
s -

 £5
15

k i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

 Int
ern

al 
co

mm
un

al 
im

pro
ve

me
nts

 - £
10

0k
 in

ve
stm

en
t 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
13

 
 Ma

rch
 20

14
 

 Ma
rch

 20
14

 
 Ma

rch
 20

14
 

Ch
ris

 W
illia

ms
 (C

BH
) 

  Ch
ris

 W
illia

ms
 (C

BH
) 

 Ch
ris

 W
illia

ms
 (C

BH
) 

 Ch
ris

 W
illia

ms
 (C

BH
) 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 C
BH

 to
 de

live
r e

nh
an

ce
d S

erv
ice

s t
o 

ou
r te

na
nts

 
 

De
live

ry 
of 

en
ha

nc
ed

 se
rvi

ce
s t

o t
en

an
ts 

ov
er 

the
 

ne
xt 

thr
ee

 ye
ars

 w
ith

 fo
cu

s o
n t

he
 fo

llo
win

g a
rea

s:-
 

• 
W
elf

are
 R
efo

rm
 

• 
Vu

lne
rab

le 
pe

op
le 

• 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s a

nd
 C
om

mu
nit

ies
 

 

Ap
ril 

20
13

 
on

wa
rds

 
Ka

thi
e P

ea
rce

 (C
BH

) 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 C
BH

 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t re

so
urc

es
 ar

e m
ad

e 
av

ail
ab

le 
to 

de
live

r s
up

po
rt s

erv
ice

s f
or 

old
er 

pe
op

le 
 

CB
H 
to 

be
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 th
rou

gh
 su

pp
ort

ing
 pe

op
le 

pro
gra

mm
e t

o d
eli
ve

r h
ou

sin
g s

up
po

rt s
erv

ice
s f

or 
old

er 
pe

op
le 

Ma
rch

 20
14

 
Ma

rtin
 St

ac
y, 

Ho
us

ing
 an

d C
om

mu
nit

ies
 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 
Ho

w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 in
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e (
20
11
-12

)  
Ma

rch
 20

14
 

Ta
rg
et 

Le
ad
 

Se
rvi

ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 
– 

me
as
ur
ing

 ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
we

 
are

 di
rec

tly
 re

sp
on

sib
le 
for

 
an
d t
ha
t w

e w
ill 
be
 

ac
co
un

tab
le 
for

. 

Th
e n

um
be

r o
f h

ou
se

ho
lds

 liv
ing

 in
 

Te
mp

ora
ry 

Ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 
 Th

e n
um

be
r o

f h
om

ele
ss
ne

ss
 

ac
ce

pta
nc

es
  

 Nu
mb

er 
of 

dis
ab

led
 pe

rso
ns

 ab
le 

to 
sta

y i
n t

he
ir o

wn
 ho

me
 

 Nu
mb

er 
of 

em
pty

 dw
ell
ing

s b
ou

gh
t 

ba
ck
 in

to 
us

e a
s a

 di
rec

t re
su

lt o
f 

co
un

cil 
ac

tio
n  

 Nu
mb

er 
of 

pri
va

te 
se

cto
r d

we
llin

gs
 

ma
de

 sa
fe 

as
 di

rec
t re

su
lt o

f c
ou

nc
il 

ac
tio

n 

13
 as

 at
 D
ec

 20
12

 
  45

 (e
sti
ma

te 
20

11
/12

) 
  10

0 
  85

 
   22

0 

20
 

  45
 

  10
0 

  85
 

   22
0 

Ma
rtin

 St
ac

y, 
Ho

us
ing

 & 
Co

mm
un

itie
s 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 Ma
rtin

 St
ac

y, 
Ho

us
ing

 & 
Co

mm
un

itie
s 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 Ma
rk 

Ne
lso

n, 
En

for
ce

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
r 

  Ma
rk 

Ne
lso

n, 
En

for
ce

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
r 

   Ma
rk 

Ne
lso

n, 
En

for
ce

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 
Co

mm
un

ity
-ba

se
d 

ind
ica

tor
s m

ea
su
rin

g 
ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
a r

an
ge
 of
 

pa
rtn

ers
 w
ill 
co
ntr

ibu
te 
to 

an
d t
ha
t w

e a
re 
no

t d
ire

ctl
y 

ac
co
un

tab
le 
for

. 

Gr
os

s h
ou

sin
g c

om
ple

tio
ns

 
  

20
10

-11
: 

Gr
os

s c
om

ple
tio

ns
 - 1

50
 

Ne
t c

om
ple

tio
ns

 - 1
36

 
Aff

ord
ab

le 
co

mp
let

ion
s -

 23
 

 

12
6 

 25
 be

d s
pa

ce
s 

(Y
MC

A)
 

Mi
ke

 R
ed

ma
n, 

Dir
ec

tor
 Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt 

 

Page 33



 
St
ren

gth
en
ing

 ou
r c
om

mu
nit
ies

. 
Pe
op
le 
are

 ab
le 
to 
lea

d h
ea
lth
y l
ife
sty

les
. 

Wh
o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Sp

or
t a
nd

 C
ult
ur
e 

Pa
t P

rat
ley

 
So

nia
 Ph

illi
ps
 

Wh
at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
 Le

isu
re 

an
d C

ult
ure

 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 R
ev

iew
 – 

Ris
ks
 ar

e i
nc

lud
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 bu
sin

es
s c

as
e f

or 
the

 es
tab

lish
me

nt 
of 

a n
ew

 tru
st.

 Th
e m

os
t s

ign
ific

an
t ri

sk
s a

re:
 

• 
If t

he
 re

vie
w 
fai

ls 
to 

en
ga

ge
 fu

lly 
or 

su
cc
es

sfu
lly 

wit
h a

ll s
tak

eh
old

ers
 ac

ros
s t

he
 co

un
cil,

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 m

ay
 be

 m
iss

ed
, e

.g.
 fo

r g
ain

ing
 co

mm
un

ity
 su

pp
ort

 
• 

If t
he

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
s f

or 
the

 ne
w 
tru

st 
are

 to
o o

pti
mi

sti
c t

he
n i

t m
ay

 no
t b

e p
os

sib
le 

to 
de

live
r th

em
 

• 
If t

he
re 

is 
ins

uff
icie

nt 
int

ern
al 

ca
pa

cit
y o

r if
 ot

he
r fa

cto
rs 

len
gth

en
 tim

es
ca

les
 th

en
 re

ali
sa

tio
n o

f b
en

efi
ts 

ma
y b

e d
ela

ye
d. 

 If t
he

 C
ou

nc
il  
do

es
 no

t h
av

e a
 de

ve
lop

ed
 Sp

ort
s S

tra
teg

y &
 Fe

as
ibi
lity

 St
ud

y f
or 

the
 PO

W
 : 

• 
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 w
ill b

e v
oid

 of
 a 

str
ate

gic
 pl

an
 & 

vis
ion

 fo
r it

s s
po

rts
 pr

ov
isio

n &
 th

e f
utu

re 
co

mm
erc

ial
 & 

sp
ort

ing
 po

ten
tia

l fo
r fa

cili
tie

s w
ill n

ot 
be

 m
ax

im
ise

d. 
 

• 
Th

e f
ac

iliti
es

 w
ill b

e u
na

ble
 to

 at
tra

ct 
ex

ter
na

l fu
nd

ing
 so

urc
es

 w
hic

h w
ill r

es
ult

 in
 th

e n
ee

d f
or 

inc
rea

se
d p

rop
ert

y m
ain

ten
an

ce
 bu

dg
ets

 \ c
ap

ita
l in

ve
stm

en
t b

y t
he

 
Co

un
cil.

  
• 

Fu
tur

e c
ap

ita
l  i
nv

es
tm

en
t w

ill b
e w

ith
ou

t a
de

qu
ate

 pl
an

nin
g &

 m
ay

 re
su

lt  
in 

a d
ec

lin
e i

n c
on

dit
ion

 of
 fa

cili
tie

s  
 Ho

w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
 In 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
12

, th
e c

ou
nc

il a
gre

ed
 th

e e
sta

bli
sh

me
nt 

of 
a n

ew
 ch

ari
tab

le 
tru

st 
(su

bje
ct 

to 
the

 ou
tco

me
 of

 a 
pro

cu
rem

en
t p

roc
es

s) 
as

 its
 pr

efe
rre

d o
pti

on
 fo

r th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

its
 le

isu
re 

an
d c

ult
ure

 se
rvi

ce
s w

hic
h i

nc
lud

e t
he

 Ar
t G

all
ery

 an
d M

us
eu

m,
 To

wn
 H
all
 an

d P
ittv

ille
 Pu

mp
 R
oo

m.
 

 Wh
at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
ws

 
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill i
mp

lem
en

t th
e p

ref
err

ed
 

op
tio

n f
or 

ou
r le

isu
re 

an
d c

ult
ure

 
se

rvi
ce

s 
  

Su
bje

ct 
to 

the
 ou

tco
me

 of
 a 

pro
cu

rem
en

t p
roc

es
s, 

cre
ate

 a 
ne

w 
ch

ari
tab

le 
tru

st 
to 

op
era

te 
ou

r le
isu

re 
an

d c
ult

ure
 se

rvi
ce

s f
rom

 20
14

-15
. 

En
d M

arc
h 

20
14

 
Pa

t P
rat

ley
, E

xe
cu

tiv
e D

ire
cto

r 

W
e w

ill c
on

clu
de

 a 
sp

ort
s f

ac
iliti

es
 

str
ate

gy
 fo

r C
BC

-ow
ne

d s
po

rts
 

fac
iliti

es
 an

d a
 fe

as
ibi
lity

 st
ud

y f
or 

the
 Pr

inc
e o

f W
ale

s s
tad

ium
 

     

W
e w

ill h
av

e a
 de

ve
lop

ed
 Sp

ort
s S

tra
teg

y  
& P

OW
 fe

as
ibi
lity

 St
ud

y f
or 

ap
pro

va
l 

by
 C
ab

ine
t 

Ju
ly 
20

13
 

So
nia

 Ph
illip

s 

Page 34



Ho
w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 in
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e (
20
11
-12

)  
Ma

rch
 20

14
 

Ta
rg
et 

Le
ad
 

Se
rvi

ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 
– 

me
as
ur
ing

 ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
we

 
are

 di
rec

tly
 re

sp
on

sib
le 
for

 
an
d t
ha
t w

e w
ill 
be
 

ac
co
un

tab
le 
for

. 

Att
en

da
nc

es
 du

rin
g t

he
 an

nu
al 

Su
mm

er 
of 

Sp
ort

 in
itia

tiv
e 

10
,00

0 a
tte

nd
an

ce
s i
n 2

01
1 

10
,20

0 
Cr

aig
 M

ort
ibo

ys
, H

ea
lth

y C
om

mu
nit

ies
 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 M
an

ag
er 

Ov
era

ll f
oo

tfa
ll a

t le
isu

re@
 

29
45

00
 

30
70

00
 

Ste
ph

en
 Pe

the
ric

k, 
Co

mm
erc

ial
 M

an
ag

er 
Att

en
da

nc
e f

ree
 un

de
r 1

6 s
wim

 
49

70
0 

53
00

0 
Att

en
da

nc
e a

t A
cti
ve

 Li
fe 

(50
+) 

se
ss
ion

s 
35

00
0 

59
00

0 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
GP

 re
fer

ral
s 

25
0 

42
0 

Un
ive

rsa
l c
ard

 ho
lde

rs 
75

0 
95

0 
Un

ive
rsa

l M
em

be
rsh

ip 
50

 
10

0 
  

Page 35



 
St
ren

gth
en
ing

 ou
r c
om

mu
nit
ies

. 
Ou

r r
es
ide

nts
 en

joy
 a 
str
on
g s

en
se
 of
 co

mm
un
ity
 an

d i
nv
olv

ed
 in
 re
so
lvi
ng
 lo
ca
l is

su
es
. 

Wh
o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Ho

us
ing

, S
afe

ty 
an
d C

om
mu

nit
y D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Pa
t P

rat
ley

 
Ja
ne
 G
rif
fith

s 
Wh

at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
Fa

mi
lie
s F

irs
t (t

he
se

 ris
ks
 ar

e i
nc

lud
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 In
sp

irin
g F

am
ilie

s b
us

ine
ss
 ca

se
).  

 
• 

Th
e u

p s
ca

lin
g o

f th
e p

roj
ec

t b
as

ed
 on

 na
tio

na
l d

ire
cti
ve

s w
ill p

res
en

t c
ap

ac
ity
 un

ce
rta

int
ies

 
• 

An
y a

dd
itio

na
l fu

nd
ing

  c
uts

 to
 pa

rtic
ipa

tin
g o

rga
nis

ati
on

s m
ay

 re
str

ict
 th

eir
 ab

ility
 to

 re
sp

on
d t

o r
eq

ue
sts

 fo
r s

up
po

rt e
ith

er 
in 

pro
vid

ing
 tru

ste
d i

nd
ivid

ua
ls 
or 

ad
dit

ion
al 

se
rvi

ce
s f

or 
the

 fa
mi

ly 
pla

n 
• 

Th
e I

F p
roj

ec
t h

as
 be

en
 ba

se
d o

n e
qu

ali
ty 

an
d j

oin
t o

wn
ers

hip
 w
ork

ing
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

.  S
ho

uld
  a

ny
 si
ng

le 
ag

en
cy
 be

 se
en

 to
 do

mi
na

te 
the

 es
tab

lish
ed

 co
lle
cti
ve

 
wo

rki
ng

 ap
pro

ac
h m

ay
 be

 co
mp

rom
ise

d 
• 

Th
e f

un
din

g a
va

ila
ble

 w
ith

in 
the

 se
t ti

me
 sc

ale
s m

ay
 be

 in
su

ffic
ien

t to
 en

ac
t e

ffe
ct 

an
d s

us
tai

n c
ha

ng
e f

or 
so

me
 fa

mi
lie
s 

 Un
ce

rta
int

y a
rou

nd
 ca

pa
cit
y r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 su
pp

ort
 pa

ris
h c

ou
nc

ils 
or 

co
mm

un
ity
 or

ga
nis

ati
on

s i
f th

ey
 de

cid
e t

ha
t th

ey
 w
an

t to
 un

de
rta

ke
 ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

d p
lan

s. 
  

Ho
w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
• 

W
e w

ill u
se

 th
e o

pp
ort

un
itie

s p
res

en
ted

 in
 th

e L
oc

ali
sm

 Ac
t to

 em
po

we
r lo

ca
l p

eo
ple

 an
d t

o e
ns

ure
 th

at 
we

 us
e c

om
mu

nit
y e

ng
ag

em
en

t to
 su

pp
ort

 co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

ex
erc

ise
s. 

• 
W
e w

ill e
ng

ag
e i

n n
eig

hb
ou

rho
od

 m
an

ag
em

en
t in

 or
de

r to
 ad

dre
ss
 is
su

es
 of

 lo
ca

l c
on

ce
rn 

an
d t

o s
tre

ng
the

n c
om

mu
nit

ies
. 

 Wh
at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

St
rat

eg
ic 
pr
oje

cts
 

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill u
se

 as
se

t-b
as

ed
 

co
mm

un
ity
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

an
d 

op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 se

t o
ut 

in 
the

 
Lo

ca
lism

 Ac
t to

 in
sp

ire
 m

ore
 

pe
op

le 
to 

ge
t a

cti
ve

ly 
inv

olv
ed

 in
 

the
ir c

om
mu

nit
ies

 

� 
Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 lo
tte

ry-
fun

de
d B

ig 
Lo

ca
l p

roj
ec

t in
 th

e S
t. P

ete
rs 

an
d t

he
 

Mo
ors

 ar
ea

  
� 

Su
pp

ort
 de

live
ry 

of 
as

se
t-b

as
ed

 pr
oje

cts
 in

 Th
e E

lm
s a

nd
 Sp

rin
gb

an
k 

� 
En

su
re 

pa
ris

h c
ou

nc
ils 

an
d n

eig
hb

ou
rho

od
 gr

ou
ps

 ar
e i

nv
olv

ed
 at

 th
e 

ea
rlie

st 
sta

ge
 in

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f th

e C
he

lte
nh

am
 Pl

an
.   

� 
Pr
ov

ide
 co

mm
un

itie
s w

ish
ing

 to
 un

de
rta

ke
 ne

igh
bo

urh
oo

d p
lan

s w
ith

 
ad

vic
e, 

inf
orm

ati
on

 an
d s

up
po

rt. 
  

 

Ma
rch

 20
14

 
Ric

ha
rd 

Gi
bs

on
, S

tra
teg

y a
nd

 
En

ga
ge

me
nt 

Ma
na

ge
r 

 He
len

 D
ow

n, 
Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n T

ea
m 

Le
ad

er 
/ C

lai
re 

Cu
lle
n –

 Jo
ne

s, 
Str

ate
gic

 La
nd

 U
se

 O
ffic

er 

W
e w

ill w
ork

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 to

 
de

live
r th

e s
ec

on
d y

ea
r o

f th
e 

go
ve

rnm
en

t’s
 tro

ub
led

 fa
mi

lie
s 

pro
gra

mm
e, 

ca
lle
d F

am
ilie

s F
irs

t. 
 

Ins
pir

ing
 Fa

mi
lie
s p

roj
ec

t to
 ga

in 
co

ns
en

t o
f 1

50
 Fa

mi
lie
s t

o b
e p

art
 of

 th
e 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

 Ins
pir

ing
 Fa

mi
lie
s t

o h
av

e s
tar

ted
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith

 10
0 F

am
ilie

s o
n t

he
ir s

ing
le 

fam
ily 

pla
n 

 Re
vie

w 
of 

de
live

ry 
in 

Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
an

d s
ub

mi
ss
ion

 of
 re

vis
ed

 pr
op

os
als

 to
 se

cu
re 

thi
rd 

ye
ar 

fun
din

g 
 

Ma
rch

 20
14

 
  Ma

rch
 20

14
 

  De
ce

mb
er 

20
13

 

Tra
cy
 Br

ow
n, 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s 
Te

am
 Le

ad
er 

Page 36



Po
ten

tia
l re

vie
w 
of 

CB
C 

go
ve

rna
nc

e s
tru

ctu
res

 an
d 

ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
d m

an
ag

em
en

t / 
co

mm
un

ity
 go

ve
rna

nc
e s

tru
ctu

res
 

fol
low

ing
 ou

tco
me

 of
 C
ou

nc
il 

Mo
tio

n o
n 8

 Fe
bru

ary
. 

 

 
 

 

Ho
w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 in
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e (
ye
ar)

  
Ma

rch
 20

14
 

Ta
rg
et 

Le
ad
 

Co
mm

un
ity
-ba

se
d 

ind
ica

tor
s m

ea
su
rin

g 
ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
a r

an
ge
 of
 

pa
rtn

ers
 w
ill 
co
ntr

ibu
te 
to 

an
d t
ha
t w

e a
re 
no

t d
ire

ctl
y 

ac
co
un

tab
le 
for

. 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

VC
S o

rga
nis

ati
on

s 
su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 G
AV

CA
 

18
 (S

ep
t 2

01
1) 

25
 

Ric
ha

rd 
Gi
bs

on
, S

tra
teg

y a
nd

 En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge

r 

Pe
rce

nta
ge

 of
  id

en
tifi
ed

 ‘tr
ou

ble
d 

fam
ilie

s’ 
wh

o n
o l

on
ge

r m
ee

t th
e 

cri
ter

ia 
0  

30
% 

Tra
cy
 Br

ow
n, 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s T
ea

m 
Le

ad
er 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

res
ide

nts
 di

rec
tly
 en

ga
ge

d 
wit

h t
hre

e a
ss
et-

ba
se

d c
om

mu
nit

y 
pro

jec
ts:

 
Sp

rin
gb

an
k 

Th
e E

lm
s 

Big
 Lo

ca
l  

en
d o

f 2
01

2-1
3 

  ? ? 0 

   10
0 

10
0 

10
0 

   Ric
ha

rd 
Gi
bs

on
, S

tra
teg

y a
nd

 En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge

r 

  

Page 37



 
En
ha
nc
ing

 th
e p

ro
vis

ion
 of
 ar
ts 
an
d c

ult
ur
e. 

Ar
ts 
an
d c

ult
ur
e a
re 
us
ed
 as

 a 
me

an
s t
o s

tre
ng
the

n c
om

mu
nit
ies

, s
tre
ng
the

n t
he
 ec

on
om

y a
nd
 en

ha
nc
e a

nd
 

pr
ote

ct 
ou
r e
nv
iro
nm

en
t. 

Wh
o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Sp

or
t a
nd

 C
ult
ur
e 

Pa
t P

rat
ley

 
So

nia
 Ph

illi
ps
 

Wh
at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
Le

isu
re 

an
d C

ult
ure

 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 R
ev

iew
 – 

Ris
ks
 ar

e i
nc

lud
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 bu
sin

es
s c

as
e f

or 
the

 es
tab

lish
me

nt 
of 

a n
ew

 tru
st.

 Th
e m

os
t s

ign
ific

an
t ri

sk
s a

re:
 

• 
If t

he
 re

vie
w 
fai

ls 
to 

en
ga

ge
 fu

lly 
or 

su
cc
es

sfu
lly 

wit
h a

ll s
tak

eh
old

ers
 ac

ros
s t

he
 co

un
cil,

 op
po

rtu
nit

ies
 m

ay
 be

 m
iss

ed
, e

.g.
 fo

r g
ain

ing
 co

mm
un

ity
 su

pp
ort

 
• 

If t
he

 bu
sin

es
s p

lan
s f

or 
the

 ne
w 
tru

st 
are

 to
o o

pti
mi

sti
c t

he
n i

t m
ay

 no
t b

e p
os

sib
le 

to 
de

live
r th

em
 

• 
If t

he
re 

is 
ins

uff
icie

nt 
int

ern
al 

ca
pa

cit
y o

r if
 ot

he
r fa

cto
rs 

len
gth

en
 tim

es
ca

les
 th

en
 re

ali
sa

tio
n o

f b
en

efi
ts 

ma
y b

e d
ela

ye
d. 

Ho
w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
In 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
12

, th
e c

ou
nc

il a
gre

ed
 th

e e
sta

bli
sh

me
nt 

of 
a n

ew
 ch

ari
tab

le 
tru

st 
(su

bje
ct 

to 
the

 ou
tco

me
 of

 a 
pro

cu
rem

en
t p

roc
es

s) 
as

 its
 pr

efe
rre

d o
pti

on
 fo

r th
e d

eli
ve

ry 
of 

its
 le

isu
re 

an
d c

ult
ure

 se
rvi

ce
s w

hic
h i

nc
lud

e t
he

 Ar
t G

all
ery

 an
d M

us
eu

m,
 To

wn
 H
all
 an

d P
ittv

ille
 Pu

mp
 R
oo

m.
 

Wh
at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 R
ev
iew

s 
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill i
mp

lem
en

t th
e p

ref
err

ed
 op

tio
n f

or 
ou

r 
lei
su

re 
an

d c
ult

ure
 se

rvi
ce

s 
 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

the
 ou

tco
me

 of
 a 

pro
cu

rem
en

t p
roc

es
s, 

cre
ate

 a 
ne

w 
ch

ari
tab

le 
tru

st 
to 

op
era

te 
ou

r le
isu

re 
an

d c
ult

ure
 

se
rvi

ce
s f

rom
 20

14
-15

. 
En

d 
Ma

rch
 

20
14

 
Pa

t P
rat

ley
, E

xe
cu

tiv
e D

ire
cto

r 

St
rat

eg
ic 
Pr
oje

cts
 

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill r
e-o

pe
n t

he
 Ar

t G
all
ery

 an
d M

us
eu

m 
 

W
e w

ill c
om

ple
te 

the
 re

ca
nti

ng
 & 

reo
cc
up

ati
on

 pr
og

ram
me

s 
in 

rea
din

es
s f

or 
a ‘

so
ft-o

pe
nin

g’ 
 W
e w

ill h
os

t th
e O

pe
n W

es
t E

xh
ibi
tio

n  
  W
e w

ill h
old

 an
 of

fic
ial
 op

en
ing

 ce
rem

on
y 

  W
e w

ill h
os

t th
e C

oli
n R

ee
d E

xh
ibi
tio

n 

31
.7.

13
 

  31
.8.

13
 – 

22
.09

.13
 

 04
.10

.13
 - 

31
.12

.13
 

 04
.10

.13
 - 

05
.01

.14
 

Ja
ne

 Li
llys

ton
e, 

Mu
se

um
, A

rts
 an

d 
To

uri
sm

 M
an

ag
er 

 

W
e w

ill c
on

clu
de

 th
e T

ow
n H

all
 fe

as
ibi
lity

 st
ud

y  
 

W
e w

ill h
av

e a
 de

ve
lop

ed
 fe

as
ibi
lity

 st
ud

y f
or 

the
 To

wn
 H
all
 

for
 ap

pro
va

l b
y C

ab
ine

t 
Ju

ly 
20

13
 

Ga
ry 

Ne
jru

p. 
En

ter
tai

nm
en

t &
 Bu

sin
es

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
W
e w

ill c
on

clu
de

 th
e b

ox
 of

fic
e p

roc
ure

me
nt 

ex
erc

ise
 & 

im
ple

me
nt 

the
 ne

w 
sy
ste

m 
 

W
e w

ill a
wa

rd 
the

 bo
x o

ffic
e c

on
tra

ct 
  W
e w

ill w
ork

 w
ith

 th
e n

ew
 se

rvi
ce

 pr
ov

ide
r to

 im
ple

me
nt 

the
 

ne
w 
bo

x o
ffic

e  
 

01
.04

.01
3 

  01
.08

.13
 

Ga
ry 

Ne
jru

p, 
En

ter
tai

nm
en

t &
 Bu

sin
es

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 

Page 38



Ho
w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 in
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e (
20
11
/12

)  
Ma

rch
 20

14
 

Ta
rg
et 

Le
ad
 

Se
rvi

ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 
– 

me
as
ur
ing

 ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
we

 
are

 di
rec

tly
 re

sp
on

sib
le 
for

 
an
d t
ha
t w

e w
ill 
be
 

ac
co
un

tab
le 
for

. 
 AG

M 
= A

rt G
all
ery

 an
d 

Mu
se

um
 

 TH
/PP

R 
= T

ow
n H

all
 an

d 
Pit

tvi
lle
 Pu

mp
 R
oo

m 

AG
M 

– F
oo

tfa
ll f
igu

res
 (p

art
ial
 ye

ar)
 

     TH
/PP

R 
– t

ick
et 

sa
les

 
TH

/PP
R 
– h

ire
 in

co
me

 ge
ne

rat
ed

 
TH

/PP
R 
– C

ate
rin

g C
om

mi
ss
ion

 
TH

/PP
R 
– T

ota
l in

co
me

 
 TH

/PP
R 
– W

eb
 Si

te 
Vis

its
 

 

39
,06

7 (
vis

ito
r fi

gu
res

 to
 th

e 
AG

&M
 fo

r th
e l

as
t fu

ll o
pe

nin
g –

 
eq

uiv
ale

nt 
pe

rio
d) 

   £7
4,8

00
 

£3
59

,00
0 

£1
09

,40
0 

£5
43

,20
0 

 12
0,0

00
 

 

57
,50

0 
 

Ja
ne

 Li
llys

ton
e, 

Mu
se

um
, A

rts
 an

d 
To

uri
sm

 M
an

ag
er 

       Ga
ry 

Ne
jru

p, 
En

ter
tai

nm
en

t &
 bu

sin
es

s 
ma

na
ge

r 
 

  

Page 39



 
De
liv
eri
ng
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 se

rvi
ce
s 

We
 w
ill 
me

et 
ou
r ‘B

rid
gin

g t
he
 G
ap
’ ta

rg
ets

 fo
r c
as
ha
ble

 sa
vin

gs
 an

d i
nc
rea

se
d i
nc
om

e 
Wh

o i
s a

cc
ou

nta
ble

 fo
r t
his

 ou
tco

me
 

Ca
bin

et 
lea

d: 
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

er 
lea

d: 
 

Pr
ov
ide

r le
ad
 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Co

rp
or
ate

 Se
rvi

ce
s, 
Ca

bin
et 
Me

mb
er 
Fin

an
ce
 an

d C
om

mu
nit
y D

ev
elo

pm
en
t, C

ab
ine

t m
em

be
r B

uil
t E

nv
iro

nm
en
t 

Pa
t P

rat
ley

 
Ma

rk 
Sh

eld
on

 
Wh

at 
are

 th
e r

isk
s t
o t
he
 de

liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

 an
d w

he
re 
are

 th
ey
 ca

ptu
red

? 
CR

3 -
 If 

the
 co

un
cil 

is 
un

ab
le 

to 
co

me
 up

 w
ith

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 so
lut

ion
s w

hic
h b

rid
ge

 th
e g

ap
 in

 th
e m

ed
ium

 te
rm

 fin
an

cia
l s
tra

teg
y t
he

n i
t w

ill f
ind

 it 
inc

rea
sin

gly
 di

ffic
ult

 to
 pr

ep
are

 
bu

dg
ets

 ye
ar 

on
 ye

ar 
wit

ho
ut 

ma
kin

g u
np

lan
ne

d c
uts

 in
 se

rvi
ce

 pr
ov

isio
n 

Ho
w 
the

 co
un

cil
 co

mm
iss

ion
s t
his

 ou
tco

me
 to
 se

cu
re 
lon

ge
r-t
erm

 de
liv
ery

 of
 th
is 
ou

tco
me

, d
eli
ve
r im

pr
ov
ed
 va

lue
 fo
r m

on
ey
 an

d t
o a

dd
res

s r
isk

s 
Th

e c
ou

nc
il h

as
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed

 G
o S

ha
red

 Se
rvi

ce
s t

o d
eli
ve

r it
s f

ina
nc

ial
, h

um
an

 re
so

urc
es

, p
ay

rol
l a

nd
 pr

oc
ure

me
nt 

se
rvi

ce
s. 

It h
as

 al
so

 ag
ree

d t
o e

nte
r in

to 
a s

ha
red

 
se

rvi
ce

s a
rra

ng
em

en
t w

ith
 Fo

res
t o

f D
ea

n D
ist
ric

t C
ou

nc
il f
or 

the
 de

live
ry 

of 
its
 IC

T s
erv

ice
s 

Wh
at 
are

 ou
r p

lan
ne
d i
mp

ro
ve
me

nt 
ac
tio
ns
 in
 20

13
-14

 to
 de

liv
er 
thi
s o

utc
om

e a
nd

 to
 ad

dr
es
s r

isk
s?
 

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 R
ev
iew

s 
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill i
mp

lem
en

t th
e s

ha
red

 
IC
T s

erv
ice

 w
ith

 th
e F

ore
st 

of 
De

an
 D
ist
ric

t C
ou

nc
il 

 

• 
TU

PE
 C
BC

 st
aff

 to
 FO

D 
on

 1/
4/1

3 
 
• 

Im
ple

me
nt 

ye
ar 

1 o
f th

e I
CT

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e u

pg
rad

e s
tra

teg
y f

or 
CB

C 
an

d a
lig
n t

ec
hn

olo
gie

s w
ith

 
FO

D 
(18

mt
h i

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 pr

og
ram

me
)  

 
• 

Im
ple

me
nt 

rec
ipr

oc
al 

bu
sin

es
s c

on
tin

uit
y a

rra
ng

em
en

ts 
for

 IC
T d

isa
ste

r re
co

ve
ry 

wit
h F

OD
 

01
/04

/13
  

31
/03

/14
   

31
/5/

13
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

  

W
e w

ill p
rep

are
 fo

r a
 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
w 
of 

the
 

rev
en

ue
s a

nd
 be

ne
fits

 
se

rvi
ce

s i
n 2

01
5/1

6 
 

• 
Im

ple
me

nt 
a r

es
tru

ctu
rin

g w
ith

in 
the

 re
ve

nu
e a

nd
 be

ne
fits

 te
am

s t
o d

eli
ve

r B
tG

 sa
vin

gs
 ta

rge
t o

f 
£8

8,0
00

 fo
r 2

01
3/1

4. 
• 

Im
ple

me
nt 

the
 ne

w 
co

un
ty 

wid
e c

ou
nc

il t
ax

 di
sc
ou

nt 
sc
he

me
 fo

r 2
01

3/1
4 a

nd
 de

sig
n a

 lo
ca

l c
ou

nc
il 

tax
 di

sc
ou

nt 
sc
he

me
 fo

r 2
01

4/1
5 f

or 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 in
 th

e s
um

me
r o

f 2
01

3 a
nd

 ap
pro

va
l b

y c
ou

nc
il in

 
De

ce
mb

er 
20

13
. 

 
• 

Su
pp

ort
 th

e t
ran

sit
ion

 to
 th

e ‘
un

ive
rsa

l c
red

it’ 
be

ne
fits

 sy
ste

m 
for

 ne
w 
cla

im
an

ts 
in 

Oc
tob

er 
20

13
 to

 
be

 ad
mi

nis
ter

ed
 by

 D
W
P a

nd
 to

 de
ter

mi
ne

 th
e i

mp
ac

t o
n t

he
 re

sid
ua

l b
en

efi
t s

erv
ice

. 

30
/06

/13
  

31
/12

/20
13

    
31

/03
/14

 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

St
rat

eg
ic 
Pr
oje

cts
 

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Da
tes

 
Le
ad
 

W
e w

ill i
mp

lem
en

t th
e 

‘Br
idg

ing
 th

e G
ap

’ p
rog

ram
me

 
an

d b
ud

ge
t s

tra
teg

y f
or 

me
eti

ng
 th

e M
TF

S f
un

din
g g

ap
 

 

• 
De

ve
lop

 th
e b

ud
ge

t s
tra

teg
y f

or 
20

14
/15

 fo
r a

pp
rov

al 
by

 C
ab

ine
t  

 
• 

Ide
nti

fy 
BtG

 pr
og

ram
me

 sa
vin

gs
 / i

nc
om

e t
o m

ee
t fu

nd
ing

 ga
p t

arg
et 

for
 20

14
/15

 an
d d

ev
elo

p 
fur

the
r th

e b
ud

ge
t s

tra
teg

y f
or 

clo
sin

g t
he

 M
TF

S f
un

din
g g

ap
. 

 
• 

Su
pp

ort
 th

e m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f th
e G

lou
ce

ste
rsh

ire
 bu

sin
es

s r
ate

s p
oo

l fo
r 2

01
3/1

4, 
de

ter
mi

ne
 

wh
eth

er 
to 

po
ol 

in 
20

14
/15

 an
d e

va
lua

te 
the

 im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e M

TF
S o

f b
us

ine
ss
 ra

tes
 re

ten
tio

n. 

31
/10

/13
  

28
/02

/14
   

31
/02

/14
 

 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

W
e w

ill d
eli
ve

r th
e F

utu
re 

Co
un

cil 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 

res
idu

al 
co

un
cil 

se
rvi

ce
s 

• 
W
ork

 st
rea

m 
1 –

 id
en

tify
 th

rou
gh

 m
an

ag
em

en
t re

str
uc

tur
ing

 / e
ffic

ien
cy
 m

ea
su

res
 sa

vin
gs

 to
 m

ee
t a

 
tar

ge
t fo

r 2
01

3/1
4 o

f £
15

0k
 re

su
ltin

g f
rom

 th
e l

os
s o

f o
n s

tre
et 

pa
rki

ng
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

an
d t

o e
va

lua
te 

the
 im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e r
eta

ine
d o

rga
nis

ati
on

. 
01

/04
/13

   
Gr

ah
am

e 
Le

wis
 

 

Page 40



 
 
• 

W
ork

 st
rea

m 
2 –

rep
ort

 to
 co

un
cil 

pro
po

sin
g t

he
 ne

w 
se

nio
r m

an
ag

em
en

t s
tru

ctu
re 

to 
de

live
r s

av
ing

s 
of 

£2
00

k/y
r 

 
31

/12
/13

 
 Ch

ief
 

Ex
ec

uti
ve

 
W
e w

ill a
gre

e a
n 

Ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 St
rat

eg
y  

 
• 

De
ve

lop
 th

e b
us

ine
ss
 ca

se
, in

clu
din

g f
un

din
g s

tra
teg

y, 
for

 th
e r

elo
ca

tio
n o

f th
e c

ou
nc

il’s
 of

fic
es

. 
 • 

Ne
go

tia
te 

an
d a

gre
e p

art
ne

r c
om

mi
tm

en
t to

 an
 al

ter
na

tiv
e o

ffic
e l

oc
ati

on
. 

 
• 

Co
mp

let
e t

he
 m

ark
eti

ng
 ex

erc
ise

 of
  th

e M
un

icip
al 

Of
fic
es

 fo
r re

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
 • 

De
ter

mi
ne

 th
e b

us
ine

ss
 IC

T r
eq

uir
em

en
t / 

str
ate

gy
 fo

r n
ew

 of
fic
es

 
 
• 

De
ter

mi
ne

 sp
ac

e r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

to 
su

pp
ort

 th
e ‘

fut
ure

 co
un

cil’
 an

d a
ss
es

s f
utu

re 
bu

sin
es

s n
ee

ds
, 

inc
lud

ing
 m

ee
tin

g a
nd

 fro
nt 

of 
ho

us
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts,
 in

 re
loc

ate
d o

ffic
es

. 
 
• 

Ag
ree

 a 
vis

ion
 an

d r
oa

dm
ap

 fo
r th

e r
ati

on
ali
sa

tio
n o

f in
for

ma
tio

n /
 da

ta 
sto

rag
e t

o s
up

po
rt a

n o
ffic

e 
rel

oc
ati

on
 ba

se
d o

n r
ed

uc
ed

 ph
ys
ica

l s
tor

ag
e s

pa
ce

 

30
/06

/13
   

30
/06

/13
  

31
/03

/14
  

31
/03

/14
  

31
/03

/14
   

31
/03

/14
 

Gr
ah

am
e 

Le
wis

 
Je

rem
y 

W
illia

ms
on

  
Da

vid
 R
ob

ert
s, 

 
 Ma

tt T
ho

ma
s 

 Da
vid

 R
ob

ert
s 

  Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 
W
e w

ill a
gre

e a
n A

ss
et 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Pla

n 
• 

De
ve

lop
 a 

ca
r p

ark
ing

 st
rat

eg
y t

o i
nfo

rm
 th

e A
ss
et 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Pla

n 
 • 

De
ve

lop
 an

d a
pp

rov
e a

n A
ss
et 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Pla

n w
hic

h c
ap

tur
es

 th
e a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 fo
r th

e c
ou

nc
il’s

 
pro

pe
rty

 po
rtfo

lio
. 

• 
De

ve
lop

 an
d a

pp
rov

e a
 fu

nd
ing

 st
rat

eg
y t

o s
up

po
rt t

he
 AM

P 

30
/06

/13
   

30
/09

/13
  

28
/02

/14
 

Je
rem

y 
W
illia

ms
on

 
 Da

vid
 R
ob

ert
s 

 Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

Ho
w 
wi
ll w

e k
no

w 
wh

at 
dif
fer

en
ce
 w
e h

av
e m

ad
e i
n 2

01
3-1

4 
Ty
pe
 of
 in
dic

ato
r 

Me
as
ur
ed
 by

 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

 
Ba

se
lin
e (
ye
ar)

  
Ma

rch
 20

14
 

Ta
rg
et 

Le
ad
 

Se
rvi

ce
 in
dic

ato
rs 
– 

me
as
ur
ing

 ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
we

 
are

 di
rec

tly
 re

sp
on

sib
le 
for

 
an
d t
ha
t w

e w
ill 
be
 

ac
co
un

tab
le 
for

 

De
live

r B
tG

 pr
og

ram
me

 sa
vin

gs
 / i

nc
om

e t
arg

ets
 

for
 20

13
/14

  
 No

. d
ay

s l
os

t d
ue

 to
 si
ck
ne

ss
 ab

se
nc

e 
 % 

sta
ff a

pp
rai

sa
ls 
co

mp
let

ed
 

 � 
nu

mb
er 

of 
sta

ge
 3 

co
mp

lai
nts

 
� 

nu
mb

er 
of 

co
mp

lai
nts

 fo
rw

ard
ed

 to
 th

e L
GO

. 
� 

nu
mb

er 
of 

Fo
I in

ter
na

l re
vie

ws
 

20
13

/14
 

  20
12

/13
 

 20
12

/13
 

     

£1
.35

8m
 

  7d
ys
 pe

r F
TE

 
 10

0%
 

 Re
du

ce
 

  

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 R
es

ou
rce

s 
 Ju

lie
 M

cC
art

hy
 – 

Op
era

tio
ns

 M
an

ge
r - 

GO
 

Ja
n B

rid
ge

s, 
HR

 Le
arn

ing
 & 

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge

r –
 G

O 
 Ka

ren
 W

ats
on

, c
us

tom
er 

rel
ati

on
s 

ma
na

ge
r 

De
liv
ery

 pa
rtn

er 
ind

ica
tor

s -
 

me
as
ur
ing

 ac
tiv
ity
 th
at 
a 

de
liv
ery

 pa
rtn

er 
is 

res
po

ns
ibl
e f
or
 ye

t w
e 

rem
ain

 ac
co
un

tab
le 
for

 

GO
 - u

se
r s

ati
sfa

cti
on

 su
rve

y -
 %

 of
 us

ers
 th

at 
are

 
sa

tis
fie

d o
r h

igh
ly 
sa

tis
fie

d w
ith

 se
rvi

ce
 

 GO
 – 

de
live

r s
av

ing
s t

arg
et 

for
 sh

are
d s

erv
ice

 

TB
C 

  20
13

/14
 

 

TB
C 

  £2
54

,40
0 

 

 

Page 41



Page 42
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
$xdft2qvp.doc Page 1 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2013 
 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY TASK GROUP REPORT 
 

SEX TRADE IN CHELTENHAM 
 

JANUARY 2013 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The issue of the sex trade in Cheltenham, particularly the illegal trade of sexually exploited young 

or otherwise vulnerable people, was first raised in a motion at Council on 25th June 2012 by 
Councillor Barbara Driver. Referring to recent exposés in both the national and international press 
that seem to highlight Cheltenham as a ‘hotspot’ of activity, the motion called on the Council to 
take action to address these issues. After a good debate it was decided to request Overview and 
Scrutiny to investigate the matter further and report back to Council on their findings. Members 
were invited to join a scrutiny task group to look at this issue, the terms of reference for which are 
laid out in full at 2.2. The group was tasked with working with partners to determine if trafficking 
and sexual exploitation of the vulnerable is a problem on the scale suggested by these news 
reports, and if so recommend actions that the Council could take to assist in the prevention of 
these crimes, the protection of their victims and the prosecution of their perpetrators.   

1.2 This report sets out the findings and recommendations arising from the scrutiny review by the 
scrutiny task group.  

2. MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 
2.1 Membership of the task group: 

• Councillor Barbara Driver (Chair) 
• Councillor Andrew Chard 
• Councillor Paul Massey 
• Councillor Anne Regan 
• Councillor Diggory Seacome 

 
2.2 Terms of Reference agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

• Gain an understanding of the work currently being done by partnerships and the police to 
address this issue and to establish the extent of the issue in Cheltenham  

• Examine how CBC contributes to this work and review whether this is the most effective way 
that CBC can assist in tackling the issue.  

• Examine whether there is anything that needs to be done within Licensing regime to combat 
this issue  

• Examine whether there is anything that needs to be done in respect of the night time 
economy to combat the sex trade  

• Establish a council strategy to identify current working and responsibilities and to guide the 
council in it’s future role in working with partners to address this issue  
 

Agenda Item 8
Page 43



 

   
$xdft2qvp.doc Page 2 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2013 
 

3. METHOD OF APPROACH 
3.1 The task group met on 4 occasions to gather evidence on current practices and the potential 

need for further action on trafficking for sexual exploitation from the following: 
• Detective Chief Inspector Richard Cooper – Deputy Head of Public Protection Bureau  
• Detective Inspector Sue Bradshaw : Public Protection Bureau 
• Ian Godfrey – Children in Care Service Manager (U16) : Gloucestershire County Council 
• Lynne Speak – Operations Manager for Youth Support Services (16+) : Gloucestershire 

County Council 
• Amanda Wilsdon : Gloucestershire Domestic Violence Support and Advocacy Project 

(GDVSAP) 
• Chris Brierley - reporter : BBC Radio Gloucestershire  

3.2 We were supported in the review by the following officers:  
• Andrew North  – Chief Executive : Sponsor for the task group 
• Rosalind Reeves – Democratic Services Manager : Facilitator for the task group 
• Sidgorée Nelson – Gloucester County Council : Additional support to the task group 

3.3 The task group reviewed a variety of evidence including:  
• Gloucestershire Constabulary’s approach to policing trafficking and sexual exploitation in 

Gloucestershire and their professional opinion on the scale of these problems in Cheltenham 
and Gloucestershire as a whole. 

• The Public Protection Bureau’s multi-agency approach to dealing with prostitution, child 
protection and trafficking and any special measures they put in place during the Cheltenham 
Festival race week regarding the licensed and unlicensed sex trade.   

• Information on the County Council’s Children in Care Service for those under 16 including 
professional opinion on the scale of trafficking and child sexual exploitation issues in 
Cheltenham and Gloucestershire. 

• Information on the County Council’s targeted Youth Support Service for those over 16 and the 
professional view on the scale of the trafficking and child sexual exploitation problems in 
Cheltenham and Gloucestershire as a whole.  

• A presentation on People Trafficking and Child Sexual Exploitation and supporting question 
and answer session delivered by GDVSAP that provided information on the national context 
of trafficking and child sexual exploitation as well as local activities around this issue. 

• Excerpts from reports on the sex trade and trafficking for sexual exploitation broadcast on 
BBC Radio Gloucestershire in 2009. They included interviews with a working girl in 
Gloucestershire, a punter, and importantly, a victim of trafficking.  

• The Dispatches programme ‘The Hunt for Britain’s Sex Traffickers’ originally broadcast in 
2010 that first raised the issue of trafficking for sexual exploitation within Cheltenham. 

4.4 Members would like to thank all those, including partner agencies that contributed towards the 
success of the task group by providing evidence on their activities and suggesting constructive 
ways to continue addressing issues of trafficking and sexual exploitation in Cheltenham. Members 
would also like to thank the officers who attended meetings and contributed to the review.  

4.  OUR FINDINGS 
4.1  What do we mean by trafficking and sexual exploitation? 

Page 44



 

   
$xdft2qvp.doc Page 3 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2013 
 

4.1.1 This is defined “as the recruitment, transportation, transfer, harbouring or receipt of persons, by 
means of the threat or use of force or other forms of coercion, of abduction, of fraud, of deception, 
of the abuse of power or of a position of vulnerability or of the giving or receiving of payments or 
benefits to achieve the consent of a person having control over another person, for the purpose of 
exploitation.” – Protocol to Prevent, Suppress and Punish Trafficking in Persons, United Nations 

4.1.2 Sexual exploitation is just one type of trafficking, however the Home Affairs Select Committee 
believes that 98% of those trafficked into the United Kingdom are trafficked for sexual purposes. 

4.2 What did Gloucestershire Police and Public Protection Bureau tell us? 
4.2.1 Cheltenham does not have a dedicated team in the form of a vice squad. Strategically, the multi-

agency Public Protection Bureau takes the lead on prostitution, child protection and trafficking, but 
that day-to-day policing of prostitution is conducted by local officers with local knowledge 
operating locally.   

4.2.2 There is no red light district in Cheltenham and most prostitution in the town was said to happen 
in residential buildings within 1 mile of the town centre. The police response depends on the level 
of harm each incident is judged to cause, with evidence of drugs, anti-social behaviour, coercion 
and violence classed as high in harm. Responses are commonly tactics of disruption that vary in 
strength and pro-activeness depending on the level of harm.  Within the last 2 years there had 
been 11 search warrants executed in relation to suspected brothels. 

4.2.3 The starting point for the police is to treat prostitutes as potential victims of exploitation. Only 
rarely are trafficked or exploited women discovered in Cheltenham, and national and regional 
comparisons with similar towns appear to show that there is no significant problem to be 
concerned by. This does not correspond to the media perception of the town, but the police 
suggested this to be a consequence of the intelligence of prostitution in Cheltenham being good 
and leading to some highly visible operations. 

4.2.4 The police informed the task group that while there is undoubtedly participation by vulnerable 
young people in the unlicensed sex trade, that this is not a highly visible issue and that evidence 
suggests it is not a high level of participation. 

4.2.5 The police estimated that less that a low percentage of women participating in the trade in 
Cheltenham are doing so unwillingly due to violent coercion, but that a higher percentage would 
at one time have been coerced into the trade before reaching Cheltenham.  

4.2.6 The police told us that they had seen no evidence of a link between the licensed and unlicensed 
sex trade. 

4.2.7 The Gloucestershire Public Protection Bureau reinforced the message of good intelligence 
leading to proactive, highly visible policing. They felt that good support for women wanting to 
move away from the sex trade was also important as typically this could take up to 7 years.  

4.2.8 The task group were keen to find out if seasonal events such as ‘race week’ leads to vulnerable 
young people being targeted for sex. They were informed that the evidence suggests that 
generally only willing prostitutes move into the area to meet increased demand and that this is not 
an organised activity. The police would rely on intelligence from other forces to alert them to any 
organised gangs moving into the town for the event.   

4.2.9 The response to ‘race week’ was described as being a mixture of raising awareness, coupled with 
increased officer presence on the racecourse and checks on licensed premises. .  

4.3 Overall what we have learned through the evidence gathering process 
4.3.1 The main thrust of evidence heard suggests that to the best of our knowledge, Cheltenham faces 

no more prevalent a problem of trafficking and sexual exploitation of the vulnerable than any other 
similar town. This evidence was welcomed by the task group, however it should be noted that all 
partners working to combat these crimes recognise that our collective knowledge of the scale and 
extent of these issues in Cheltenham, and indeed the County, is imperfect. An  intelligence-led 
area of policing and of social care intervention, this is due to a variety of factors including victims 
being reluctant or unable to come forward, and as such there is very much a shared feeling that 

Page 45



 

   
$xdft2qvp.doc Page 4 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2013 
 

the stone remains unturned when it comes to identifying the true extent of these issues. 
4.3.2 We understand that there is still more to learn as we turn the stone over. But what is already 

clearly understood by the task group and partners is the sheer horror of these crimes, the 
devastating effects they can have on victims, and the absolute need to continue to recognise 
them as organisational priorities and act accordingly. Child sexual exploitation is a particularly 
heinous example, and one that the task group recognises is receiving the attention it deserves.  

4.4 Who does what? 
For a full run-down of all the agencies involved in the fight against trafficking and sexual 
exploitation, and what they are responsible for, please see appendix 2. What we would like to 
highlight here, is how impressed we have been by the level of work and commitment between 
partners across the County to address these problems. This is typified by the 2009 creation of the 
multi-agency Public Protection Bureau in 2009 to lead strategically on issues of prostitution, child 
protection and trafficking, and demonstrated by new protocols and procedures being put in place 
to make sure that the early signs of child sexual exploitation are detected.  
 

4.5 Issues with current practices 
Helping victims and prosecuting criminals 

4.5.1 Crimes of trafficking and sexual exploitation are difficult to prosecute. The message from the 
Police and the Public Protection Bureau is that victims are often understandably too traumatised, 
distrustful of authority, or scared of their abusers to help build a solid case to present to the Crown 
Prosecution Service before their limited time in protective custody ends. 

4.5.2 This message was supported by evidence from GDVSAP, who expressed frustration at the small 
window of time in which they have to offer emotional support to victims of trafficking or sexual 
exploitation. The group learned about the National Referral Mechanism and that good practice 
dictates that adult victims of trafficking need to be moved out of Cheltenham almost immediately 
after they request help, to keep them safe from their traffickers.  They felt it would be good if there 
was somewhere for the victims of trafficking to stay for a couple of days in Cheltenham. 

4.5.3 That being the case, all three organisations brought up the idea of some kind of emergency 
accommodation resource, recognised safe, that would allow the police time to gather the 
evidence they need for prosecution in a non-threatening environment, and allow the voluntary 
sector to support victims more effectively. This was an idea the task group was happy to explore 
further.  

4.5.4 Officers approached Cheltenham Borough Homes on our behalf.  They were supportive of the 
proposal but felt that there needed to be a clearer assessment of the need before this could be 
considered in any detail . They suggested that the option of using existing refuges in 
Gloucestershire should be explored.      
Raising awareness of the warning signs of exploitation 

4.5.5 The importance of raising awareness of sexual exploitation was mentioned by each organisation 
and individual that gave evidence to the task group. Sexual exploitation along with other sexual 
offences have a history of being under-reported, and as we heard, this is often because victims 
cannot or will not report abuse themselves. 

4.5.6 Whatever the reason: be it lack of English; fear of the Police; fear of their exploiter; fear of the 
consequences for their family; or even emotional attachment to their exploiter, this makes it all the 
more important that professionals that might come into contact with victims, and ordinary 
members of the public be aware of what sexual exploitation is and what the signs of it may be. It 
is important to note that children and young people often do not even realise that they are being 
abused.  

4.5.7 The importance of this kind of awareness-raising is particularly striking when it comes to child 
sexual exploitation. The task group was pleased to hear about the overwhelmingly positive youth 
response to educational efforts such as the play ‘Chelsea’s Choice’, designed to raise awareness 

Page 46



 

   
$xdft2qvp.doc Page 5 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2013 
 

of child sexual exploitation amongst young people in years 8 & 9 in Gloucestershire’s schools. 
However, it also heard evidence from both the County Council’s Children in Care Services and 
Youth Support Services about the vulnerability of the young to exploitation.  

4.5.8 It was stressed that children in care and those otherwise in contact with social services are not 
safe from exploitation, and that sometimes social workers become concerned by the adults in the 
lives of young people once they have established relationships with them. Similarly, in talking 
about the Youth Support Service on offer to children and young people in the County, it was 
recognised that as a service targeted at the most vulnerable, it often comes into contact with 
vulnerable children at potential risk of abuse. 

4.5.9 The social workers and youth workers of these services are then in a good position to spot the 
signs of exploitation and take action; but only if they are equipped with the tools to do so. 
Responding to this need, the task group was pleased to hear that all social workers and youth 
workers are being trained to spot exploitation through use of a new multi-agency screening tool as 
part of the GSCB’s new responsibility to provide training on safeguarding and welfare.  

4.5.10 It agrees with these professionals that more needs to be done to raise awareness of sexual 
exploitation and its warning signs amongst those who work with children and young people in 
non-social care and youth work settings, and ordinary members of the public. The task group is 
happy to assist with this as it can. 

4.6 The extent of the problem 
4.6.1 This review was kick-started by reports in the press that painted a picture of Cheltenham as a 

‘hotspot’ for trafficking and sexual exploitation. The task group is pleased to note that what 
evidence we have available seems not to support this suggestion.  

4.6.2 In their session before the group, both the Police and Public Protection Bureau challenged this 
view, stating that rarely are trafficked or exploited people discovered in Cheltenham. They 
estimate that a low percentage of participants in the sex trade in Cheltenham are unwillingly, and 
in comparing Cheltenham with similar national and regional towns, it was suggested that the 
media perception of Cheltenham was perhaps a consequence of the Constabulary having 
launched several highly visible operations in the last few years. 

4.6.3 We support the Police’s decision to be open and public when taking actions such as Operation 
Pentameter, Pentameter 2 and ad hoc raids to address exploitation, as they demonstrate to the 
public and potential criminals that where exploitation is suspected it will be acted upon. However 
we recognise that such public action can increase the public perception of the town as a ‘hotspot’ 
of exploitation and it is important to balance raising awareness with unnecessarily damaging the 
reputation of the town. 

4.7 Gaps in our knowledge and the drive to improve 
4.7.1 Despite this evidence, over the course of this review, the difficulty in establishing a truly robust 

understanding of the extent of trafficking and sexual exploitation in Cheltenham has been made 
clear. However, given what we do know locally; international research which seems to suggests 
that trafficking is the second largest illegal trade in the world and the fastest growing international 
crime; and the apparent national increase in child exploitation, it is important those organisations 
(including CBC) with a statutory duty of care towards the vulnerable remain vigilant and continue 
to enhance our toolkits and be aware of good practice on these issues.  

4.7.2 We know that as there will always be users of exploitative sexual services willing to overlook the 
damage their desires are doing to victims; there will always be perpetrators of trafficking and 
sexual exploitation willing to prey on the vulnerable in order to satisfy that demand. Considering 
the vast sums of money that can be earned from a single victim, estimated at between £26-
52,000 per annum by the Home Affairs Select Committee, this is unsurprising.    

4.7.3 As we know the market exists and is not going away, and as we know that there is crime going on 
that we do not know about, the task group believes that the only way to prevent, protect and 
prosecute is by increasing our efforts at actively searching out these crimes. Several pieces of 
work are now ongoing to increase our intelligence, for example the scoping analysis of child 

Page 47



 

   
$xdft2qvp.doc Page 6 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2013 
 

sexual exploitation in Gloucestershire currently being undertaken by the Police on behalf of the 
Gloucestershire Safeguarding Children’s Board (GSCB). More still needs to be done. 
 

5. OUTCOMES REGARDING TERMS OF REFERENCE SET FOR THE REVIEW 
5.1 When the O&S committee receives our report, we understand that part of their role is to review 

whether the task group has achieved the original objectives set by that committee. Therefore we 
feel it is important to set out what we have achieved regarding each of those objectives. 

5.2 Gain an understanding of the work currently being done by partnerships and the police to 
address this issue and to establish the extent of the issue in Cheltenham  

5.3 This was the initial focus of the review as the task group wished to establish at an early stage 
whether there was a real problem in Cheltenham with sexual exploitation or whether it was simply 
a matter of perception. Either way it was important for the task group to review the evidence and 
form an opinion. If there was a problem, then the task group could then go on to consider how it 
could be tackled and if it was purely a problem of perception then through documenting their 
findings the task group hoped to give reassurance to the public that Cheltenham was a safe place 
to live or visit. Broadly speaking the task group established that it was not a significant issue in the 
town but there was no room for complacency. 

5.4 Examine how CBC contributes to this work and review whether this is the most effective 
way that CBC can assist in tackling the issue.  

5.5 At the start of this review, officers from Public Protection were keen to stress to the task group, 
the limited powers that they had to act on this issue as it was very much police and county led.  

5.6 The most effective way that CBC can contribute to tackling this issue is by working in partnership 
with other agencies. The task group noted the council worked in partnership on safeguarding 
issues and can play a key role in promotion and raising awareness. This will include working with 
voluntary agencies such as CCP who care for homeless young people.  

5.7 Examine whether there is anything that needs to be done within Licensing regime to 
combat this issue  

5.8 CBC as a licensing authority have the power to grant licences for sex establishments such as sex 
shops, sex cinemas and sexual entertainment venues (such as lap dancing, strip tease and pole 
dancing clubs). In 2010, the Council adopted special legislation to specifically regulate sexual 
entertainment venues that, in the past, have been able to rely on temporary licences to host 
sexual entertainment.  As a result of the adoption of the new legislation, premises could no longer 
reply on temporary licences. Furthermore, whereas before sexual entertainment could be held for 
up to four days using a temporary licence, the new legislation narrowed that period down to one 
24 hour period per month. Any premises wishing to offer sexual entertainment for a period 
exceeding the 24 which were not licensed. This would be a matter for the police.  

5.9 The focus for CBC licensing officers is in visiting premises where sexual entertainment is held to 
ensure it is conducted in an appropriate matter or, where the premises is licensed, to ensuring 
conditions of the licences are being met. In this they work in partnership with the police and are 
particularly visible during race week and establishments have been closed down if they break the 
terms of their license. In this role, the council follows statutory and local procedures. The police 
also told the working group that they had seen no evidence of a link between the licensed and 
unlicensed sex trade.  Sue Bradshaw from the Gloucestershire Public Protection Bureau 
commented that there was a good working relationship with the council in carrying out stringent 
checks on any licensing applications regarding the sex establishments. 

5.10 CBC have no powers to visit brothels or unlicensed establishments where there might be 
concerns regarding sexual exploitation as the council had no right of entry to domestic premises 
which were not licensed. This would be a matter for the police. 

Page 48



 

   
$xdft2qvp.doc Page 7 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2013 
 

5.11 On that basis the task group did not feel there was anything more that could be done within the 
Licensing regime. However they would request that licensing officers along with other relevant 
officers should be on the look out for signs of unlicensed activity and report any suspicions to the 
police.  

5.12 Examine whether there is anything that needs to be done in respect of the night time 
economy to combat the sex trade  

5.13 The task group recognized that the sex trade is part of the night-time economy and it may be 
fuelled by drugs and alcohol.  However the scope of this review was not to deal with prostitution 
per se but sexual exploitation. Whilst acknowledging that alcohol and drugs supplied as part of 
the night-time economy may be a contributory factor to people seeking prostitutes, we saw no 
evidence that the night-time economy has any close links with sexual exploitation in private 
establishments.  

5.14 For this reason the task group did not identify any specific actions in respect of the night-time 
economy although it may provide potential outlets for promoting awareness and information.   

5.15 Establish a council strategy to identify current working and responsibilities and to guide 
the council in it’s future role in working with partners to address this issue  

5.16 As mentioned previously, combating sexual exploitation is not a primary role for the council and 
therefore the task group does not think it necessary to establish a council strategy.  However 
working in partnership to address the issue is very important and we would expect the council to 
be clear of its role and responsibilities and contribute to the overall action plan of all the 
partnerships it is involved in. 

5.17 In summary we feel that all the objectives set have been addressed during the course of the 
review.  

6. CONSULTATION AND FEEDBACK 
6.1 In undertaking its assessment of current practices and drawing up recommendations for future 

actions, the task group consulted widely with partners and other organisations working in the 
areas of trafficking and sexual exploitation. (Consultees are listed in full in 3.1). 

6.2 We involved the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety and he attended one of our meetings. We 
are pleased to see that he recognises the importance of this issue and has already worked with 
officers and the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Forum to set up a safeguarding seminar for 
members on 4 February 2013. This supports our second recommendation and we would 
encourage all members to attend.  

6.3 Its findings and recommendations will be presented to the next convenient meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and then go on to Council for further consideration.    

6.4 Members have already verbally fed back to all those who contributed towards the success of the 
task group, however all will be sent a copy of the report and invited to the meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee at which this report will be considered.   

7. RECOMMENDATIONS 
7.1 Taking all these findings into consideration, the task group would like to make some 

recommendations to Council. We recommend: 
i. That the council should work with the Police, Public Protection Bureau and voluntary 

organisations to identify emergency facilities where vulnerable people can be housed safely 
for a short period. This will allow for victims to receive appropriate emotional support from 
trained professionals whilst also allowing the Police a sufficient period of time to interview 
them and build a case for prosecution.   

Page 49



 

   
$xdft2qvp.doc Page 8 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2013 
 

ii. That all Councillors should attend awareness sessions on safeguarding issues, particularly 
to learn about the warning signs that children, young people and vulnerable adults often 
exhibit if they are being abused or exploited. As community representatives with local 
knowledge and local intelligence, Councillors are in a good position to contribute towards 
this agenda.  

iii. That the council assist the Police and Public Protection Bureau in producing, promoting and 
distributing information to those who may be at risk of sexual exploitation or already be 
victims of it, to let them know where they can go for help and assistance. The task group 
recognises the challenges involved in making this information accessible to those who are 
fearful of authority or many not speak English as a first language.   

iv. That the council support the work of the Public Protection Bureau in raising awareness of  
prostitution and potential sexual exploitation. One issue focuses around making hoteliers 
more aware of the potential for their premises to be used for prostitution and exploitation 
purposes, and in response the task group recommends that the council use its links to the 
Cheltenham Hoteliers Associate to raise awareness of this issue, particularly in relevant 
periods such as the run up to ‘race week’ .   

v. That a greater focus should be placed on producing high quality quantitative data on the 
scale and nuance of sexual exploitation in Cheltenham, and Gloucestershire as a whole. 
The task group recognises that the Police are already taking steps to address this issue, 
however as an intelligence-led area of policing, the importance of understanding the true 
scale of the issues we face so that we can work together with as partners to coordinate 
appropriate levels of response, cannot be underestimated.   

vi. That Gloucestershire’s new Police and Crime Commissioner and new Police and Crime 
Panel are sent a copy of this review and its recommendation to make them aware that 
issues of human trafficking and sexual exploitation remain an area of concern and focus to 
Cheltenham Borough Council.  

8. TAKING FORWARD THE RECOMMENDATIONS FROM SCRUTINY  
8.1 In taking forward these recommendations, it is important to recognise that issues relating to 

human trafficking and sexual exploitation cannot be addressed by Cheltenham Borough Council 
alone. These are multi-agency issues that require partners to work together to achieve the best 
outcomes for the people of Cheltenham. As such, the Borough Council will be looking to partners 
to take forward these recommendations where appropriate.    

8.2 7.1 i: the possibility of using vacant Cheltenham Borough Homes properties for this purpose has 
already been investigated. The initial response has been positive, and we learned that there are 
already proprieties for victims of domestic violence that could be made more widely available for 
this purpose. However more work needs to be done around establishing the true numerical need 
for such a resource, and also to investigate potential funding sources. The task group believes 
that in order for the council to progress this request further, the Police and Public Protection 
Bureau need to provide this information but we feel the council can take a lead on facilitating 
these discussions.. 

8.3 7.1 ii: the new multi-agency ‘working together protocol’ developed for use in Gloucestershire to 
help all social and youth workers learn the signs of abuse and exploitation could be a possible 
source of training material for any awareness raising training for our councillors. However, the 
task group recognises that officers are in the best position to determine how such training is 
delivered.   

8.4 7.1 iii: the importance of preventative and protective actions to combat trafficking and sexual 
exploitation is seen in both the national and local contexts. As such, the task group would like to 
see swift action on this recommendation. 

Page 50



 

   
$xdft2qvp.doc Page 9 of 9 Last updated 30 January 2013 
 

8.5 7.1 iv: the task group recognises that officers are in the best position to determine how a 
communication such as this on behalf of the Council be worded. The group does note however, 
that the Cheltenham Festival is coming up fast.  

8.6 7.1 vi: this is straightforward and should be actioned without delay following Council.  
8.7 The task group expects to report its findings and recommendations to the next appropriate 

meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee before taking the report to Council for debate. 
Assuming that our recommendations are accepted by Cabinet, the task group asks to be kept 
informed of any developments, and also believes that a review of the implementation of the 
recommendations should be conducted six months after being accepted by Cabinet.  

Report author Contact officer: Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager     
Rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk,  01242 77 4937 
Sidgorée Nelson: Democratic Services, Gloucestershire County 
Council 

Appendices 1. Terms of Reference agreed by O&S committee 
2. Organisational roles of responsibilities regarding sex trafficking and 

safeguarding children and vulnerable adults 
Background 
information 

Minutes of the Council meeting on 25 June 2012 

 
  

Page 51



Page 52
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 

SCRUTINY REVIEW – ONE PAGE STRATEGY 
 

FOR COMPLETION BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Broad topic area Sex Trade in Cheltenham 
Specific topic area Sex trade and exploitation of young women and vulnerable 

people arising from people smuggling and the sex trade in 
Cheltenham.  
 

Ambitions for the 
review 

• Gain an understanding of the work currently being done by 
partnerships and the police to address this issue and to 
establish the extent of the issue in Cheltenham  

• Examine how CBC contributes to this work and review 
whether this is the most effective way that CBC can assist in 
tackling the issue.  

• Examine whether there is anything that needs to be done 
within Licensing regime to combat this issue  

• Examine whether there is anything that needs to be done in 
respect of the night time economy to combat the sex trade  

• Establish a council strategy to identify current working and 
responsibilities and to guide the council in it’s future role in 
working with partners to address this issue (not extensive 
could be a 2 page summary)   

Outcomes A safer environment in Cheltenham  
How long should the 
review take? 

Report to Council in December  
Recommendations to 
reported to: 

Council via O&S committee 
Membership: Councillors Chard, Driver, Seacome, Regan  and Massey  
Sponsoring officer Andrew North 
Facilitator Rosalind Reeves 
 

Page 53



Page 54
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

Roles and Responsibilities regarding sex trafficking and 
safeguarding children and vulnerable adults   
 
Introduction 
An early meeting of the task group suggested it would be good for them to have a better  
understanding of the roles and responsibilities of the various agencies involved in the 
sex trafficking and protection issues. This summary was produced from some initial 
research over the web and circulated to relevant officers for comment before being 
presented to members.  
 
LA - children’s social care 
 
LA children’s social care has a general duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of all 
children in need in their area, regardless of their immigration status. They have 
responsibilities for unaccompanied children, as well as those who arrive in the UK with 
their parents and for whom there are concerns regarding their safety and welfare. 
 
Local authority children missing education teams  
In England, local authorities have a statutory duty to identify children missing from 
education. The named contact or team responsible for identifying children missing from 
education should be competent and confident to respond to children who may have 
been trafficked. 
Education services  
Children trafficked into the country may be registered at a school for a term or longer, 
before being moved to another part of the UK or abroad. This pattern of registration and 
de-registration may be an indicator that a child has been trafficked. 
Health services – Gloucestershire Primary Trust 
Trafficked children may be seen at the full range of health settings.  Professionals should 
be alert to potential signs of abuse and trafficking including inconsistencies in addresses, 
any deliberate vagueness with children or carers being unable to give details of next of 
kin, names, telephone numbers or other personal details.  
Youth offending teams  
Staff working in Youth Offending Teams may encounter trafficked children who have 
been charged with criminal offences. A child’s reluctance to disclose the real 
circumstances in which he or she arrived in the country will have implications for a 
number of youth criminal justice processes. Parenting and carer assessments may be 
difficult as adults presenting as carers may be implicated in the trafficking process and 
would not be acting in the best interests of the child.  
Police 
Under section 46 of the Children Act 1989, when the police are concerned that unless 
they take action the child is likely to suffer significant harm, they may use their powers to 
either remove a child to a safe place or prevent the child's removal from a safe place, for 
example a hospital. There are a number of specialist teams, which are separate from the 
child abuse investigation teams, in police services across the UK that have expertise in 

Page 55



Appendix 2 

dealing with trafficking cases. There are also joint intelligence teams in key locations 
across the country comprising immigration, police and other agencies which help to 
identify child protection concerns. Police services should take all necessary steps to 
ensure that children at risk of being trafficked do not fall through the gap between 
operational teams. 
 
Crown Prosecution Service 
The CPS policy guidance Safeguarding Children: Guidance on children as victims and 
witnesses provides detailed practical and legal guidance to prosecutors dealing with 
cases that involve children and young people as victims and witnesses.  
 
UK Borders Agency (UKBA) 
UKBA is an executive agency of the Home Office which has assumed responsibility for 
managing immigration control in the UK. It may be the first official agency to have 
contact with child victims of trafficking. Its interventions may be triggered by the 
particular circumstances of the case or by international intelligence about trafficking. 
UKBA is likely to be a source of referrals to child welfare agencies.  
The immigration officer’s role, alongside considering the eligibility of the child for entry 
into the UK, is to be alert to the need to keep children safe from harm. They should 
ensure that immigration processes and decisions made in respect of children take into 
account their individual situation, views and welfare. 
 
UK Human Trafficking Centre (UKHTC) 
The UKHTC was established in October 2006, following a proposal from ACPO. It 
comprises staff from various disciplines bringing a multi-agency approach to the Centre’s 
response to trafficking both into and within the UK.  
It aims to improve and co-ordinate the law enforcement response to human trafficking, 
working closely with its partners in delivering a diverse set of programmes. A number of 
these will be targeted campaigns on preventing and reducing human trafficking and 
improving knowledge and understanding of the problem through best practice and 
training. A key element in the UKHTC’s approach to preventing and reducing human 
trafficking is to ensure that victims are adequately safeguarded and protected from harm.  
 
Specific to Gloucestershire 
 
Gloucestershire Public Protection Bureau 
The Gloucestershire Public Protection Bureau (GPPB) was formed on 20th April 2009 to 
make Gloucestershire a safer place by working in partnership to reduce harm to both 
individuals and communities. The launch of the Bureau was a significant step towards 
enhancing partnership working and the essential sharing of information. There are 
specific portfolio dealing with child protection and Prostitution and Human Trafficking  
 
They work in partnership with the following agencies and their success depends on multi 
agency cop-operation. 
   

Page 56



Appendix 2 

• Gloucestershire Probation Service  
• Gloucestershire Safeguarding Team  
• Gloucestershire Primary Trust  
• CPS  
• HM Prison Service  
• Strategic Coordinator for Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence  
• The Independent Domestic Violence Advisory Service (IDVA)  
• Gloucestershire Domestic Abuse Support Service (GDASS) 

 
Role of Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cheltenham Borough Council recognises that it has a duty of care towards all children 
and vulnerable adults who are involved in the services it provides, and that it has a 
responsibility to safeguard the well-being of such children and adults.  
The council has a safeguarding children and vulnerable adults policy.  
In terms of vulnerable adults, the council works within the Gloucestershire Multi Agency 
Safeguarding Adult Policy and Procedures.  
Links with the licensed sex industry and other venues 
The Council has a statutory duty to control the “sex industry” in its district in the interest 
of public safety, maintaining law and order and to, in so far as it is possible, ensure that 
issues highlighted in this review do not occur. 
 
As a district council , CBC has no statutory duties or powers in relation to trafficking 
however it can contribute to dealing with issues relating to the sex industry in partnership 
with other agencies.  
CBC, as Licensing Authority, does have the powers to regulate and control sex shops, 
sex cinemas and sexual entertainment venues.   
 
It does so by way of policies (for example, the Council considers it inappropriate to 
licence a sexual entertainment venue in the vicinity of residential areas, schools or near 
shops used by or directed to families or children) and through strict conditions (for 
example a normal sex establishment licence is subject to 36 standard conditions). 
 
For other premises not specifically licensed as sex establishments, the Council already 
consults with, inter alia, the Gloucestershire Children Safeguarding Board on all new and 
variation applications thereby giving them opportunity to make representations where 
they consider it necessary in the interest of promoting the licensing objectives (i.e. the 
prevention of crime and disorder, prevention of public nuisance, public safety and the 
protection of children from harm). 
 
 
Gloucestershire Domestic Violence Support and Advocacy Project (GDVSAP) 
Amanda Wilson heads up a countywide project to raise awareness of trafficking and 
grooming and attends a quarterly national forum. She works closely with the Police and 
the Public Protection Bureau. She recently ran a film event in October and gave a 

Page 57



Appendix 2 

presentation to the Cheltenham Safeguarding forum.  She would be happy to come and 
talk  to the scrutiny task group.  
 
Gloucestershire Action for Refugees and Asylum Seekers (GARAS) 
 
Gloucestershire Safeguarding Children Board (GSCB) 
GSCB is a key statutory mechanism for agreeing how the partner agencies co-operate 
to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and young people in Gloucestershire, 
and for ensuring the effectiveness of what they do. Their website Gloucestershire 
Safeguarding Children Board (GSCB). provides a valuable resource of information, 
advice and guidance on all child protection and safeguarding matters. 
 
Cheltenham Safeguarding Forum 
CBC and CCP set up the forum in partnership in 2011 and as a result of its popularity it 
meets bi monthly.  The purpose of the forum is for front line workers from different 
sectors to come together to discuss all aspects of safeguarding.  The forum invites 
speakers to update the forum on current issues and help resolve issues identified by the 
forum.  The forum also gives workers the opportunity to share best practice and 
communicate concerns to relevant groups. 
 
 
October 2012  

Page 58



Lis
t o

f a
ll s

cru
tin

y t
as

k g
rou

ps
 an

d o
the

r a
pp

oin
tm

en
ts 

rel
ate

d t
o O

ve
rvi

ew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y

Ov
erv

iew
 an
d 

Sc
ru
tin
y

Pu
rp
os
e

Ag
ree

d 
no
mi
na
tio
ns
/m
em
be
rsh

ip
Ch
air
s i
n b

old

Ta
rg
et 
for
 re
po
rti
ng
 re
cs

Up
da
te

Bu
dg
et 
sc
rut
iny
 

wo
rki
ng
 gr
ou
p

Th
e w

ork
ing

 gr
ou
p’s
 ro
le 
is 
to 
de
ve
lop

 th
e 

bu
dg
et 
pro

ce
ss
, s
up
po
rt t
he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
Me

mb
ers

’ s
cru

tin
y r
ole

 an
d t
o c

on
sid
er 

ide
as
 fro

m 
Me

mb
ers

 fo
r re

du
cin
g t
he
 

bu
dg
et 
ga
p.

Cll
rs 
Co
lem

an
, H
arm

an
, 

Wa
ll, 
Hib

be
rt, 
Ma

ss
ey
, 

Su
db
ury

Cll
r P
rin
ce
 (s
ub
). 

Ca
bin

et 
Me

mb
er 
Fin

an
ce
 to
 

att
en
d b

y i
nv
ita
tio
n. 

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 re
ga
rin
g t
he
 

bu
dg
et 
for
 20

13
/14

 w
ill b

e i
np
ut 
to 
the

 
bu
dg
et 
pro

ce
ss
 

Th
e g

rou
p i
nte

nd
s t
o f
oc
us
 on

 th
e p

ote
nti
al 
big

 sa
vin
gs
 fro

m 
ma

jor
 pr
oje

cts
 th
at 

for
m 
pa
rt o

f th
e M

TF
S. 
Th
ey
 ha

ve
 al
rea

dy
 lo
ok
ed
 at
 th
e l
eis
ure

 an
d c

ult
ure

 
rev

iew
 an

d t
he
 IC
T r
ev
iew

 in
 th
eir
 Ja

nu
ary

 m
ee
tin
g. 
Th
ey
 ha

ve
 in
vit
ed
 th
e C

hie
f 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
 an

d t
he
 Le

ad
er 
to 
the

ir m
ee
tin
g o

n 9
 Ap

ril 
to 
ou
tlin
e t
he
ir v

isio
n f
or 
the

 
ne
xt 
ye
ar 
an
d t
he
y w

ill a
lso
 be

 ha
vin
g a

n u
pd
ate

 on
 th
e B

rid
gin

g t
he
 ga

p.

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Go
ve
rna

nc
e r
ev
iew

 
(S
TG

)

Co
un
cil 
in 
De
ce
mb

er 
20
11
 ag

ree
d t
o s

et 
up
 a 
cro

ss
 pa

rty
 w
ork

ing
 gr
ou
p t
o r
ev
iew

 
the

 Pa
ris
h C

ou
nc
il b
ou
nd
ari
es
 ah

ea
d o

f 
the

 PC
 el
ec
tio
ns
 in
 20

14
. 

Cll
rs 
Ba
rba

ra 
Dr
ive
r a
nd
 

Kla
ra 
Su
db
ury

 an
d 3

 Pa
ris
h 

Co
un
cil 
me

mb
ers

. M
em

be
r 

ch
air
 no

t a
pp
oin

ted
.

Th
e O

&S
 co

mm
itte
e r
ep
ort
ed
 to
 

Co
un
cil 
in 
De
ce
mb

er 
fol
low

ing
 re
ce
ipt
 

of 
the

 ta
sk
 gr
ou
p r
ep
ort
 in
 N
ov
em

be
r. 

O&
S d

id 
no
t s
up
po
rt t
he
 re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 fro

m 
the

 ta
sk
 gr
ou
p w

he
n t
he
y 

rev
iew

ed
 th
em

 in
 N
ov
em

be
r a
nd
 m
ad
e a

lte
rna

tiv
e r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s t
o C

ou
nc
il. 

Th
e t
as
k g

rou
p w

ill b
e r
ec
on
ve
ne
d i
n J

an
ua
ry 
20
14
 w
he
n t
he
 sc
op
e a

nd
 te
rm
s o

f 
ref
ere

nc
e w

ill b
e r
ed
efi
ne
d. 
Th
e L

ea
de
r is

 be
ing

 co
ns
ult
ed
 on

 ho
w 
he
 w
ish
es
 to
 

ca
rry
 ou

t th
e r
ev
iew

. 
JC
S a

nd
 Pl
an
nin

g 
Lia

so
n G

rou
p (
ST
G)

To
 pr
ov
ide

 a 
ve
hic
le 
wit
h w

hic
h t
o 

en
ga
ge
 w
ith
 el
ec
ted

 m
em

be
rs 
on
 

str
ate

gic
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
iss
ue
s i
n l
igh

t o
f th

e c
ha
ng
es
 to
 th
e 

pla
nn
ing

 fra
me

wo
rk.
 

Cll
rs 
Bic

ke
rto
n, 
Ha
rm
an
, 

W
all
, G
od
win

, M
cC
los
ke
y 

an
d T

ea
kle
. 

A s
eri
es
 of
 m
ee
tin
gs
 ha

ve
 be

en
 

arr
an
ge
d t
o m

ee
t th

e t
arg

et 
of 

ag
ree

ing
 th
eir
 fin

al 
rep

ort
 on

 14
 

Ja
nu
ary

 20
13
. 

Th
e t
as
k g

rou
p f
orw

ard
ed
 th
eir
 fin

al 
rep

ort
 on

 ho
us
eh
old

 fo
rm
ati
on
 ra
tes

 to
 th
e 

JC
S j
oin

t m
em

be
r s
tee

rin
g g

rou
p o

n 3
1 J

an
ua
ry 
20
13
. T
he
 or
igi
na
l te
rm
s o

f 
ref
ere

nc
e s

et 
by
 O
&S
 in
 Ju

ly 
sti
ll s
tan

d a
nd
 th
e g

rou
p w

ill n
ee
d t
o c

on
sid
er 
the

ir 
ap
pro

ac
h i
n c

om
ple

tin
g t
he
 re
st 
of 
thi
s w

ork
 .

Ev
en
t S
ub
mi
ss
ion

s 
tas

k g
rou

p (
ST
G)

Re
vie
w 
an
d m

ak
e r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s f
or 

the
 pr
oc
es
s f
or 
org

an
ise
rs 
 of
 ev

en
ts 
to 

su
bm

it p
rop

os
als
.

Cll
rs 
Re
ga
n, 
Ha
ll, 
Br
itte
r, 

Hib
be
rt a

nd
 Se

ac
om

e a
nd
 

Co
un
cill
or 
Su
db
ury

 .

Re
po
rt t
o O

&S
 in
 Ja

nu
ary

 an
d t
he
n 

Ca
bin

et 
on
 12

 M
arc

h. 
Th
e C

ab
ine

t re
ce
ive
d t
he
 fin

al 
rep

ort
 on

 5 
Fe
bru

ary
 20

13
. C
ab
ine

t c
on
sid
ere

d 
the

 ta
sk
 gr
ou
p r
ep
ort
 an

d a
sk
ed
 th
e C

ab
ine

t M
em

be
r H

ou
sin
g a

nd
 Sa

fet
y t
o 

bri
ng
 ba

ck
 a 
rep

ort
 to
 a 
fut
ure

 C
ab
ine

t re
ga
rdi
ng
 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 th
e 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s b

efo
re 
the

y c
ou
ld 
ap
pro

ve
 th
em

. T
he
 Ev

en
ts 
Co
ns
ult
ati
ve
 

Gr
ou
p a

pp
roa

ch
 re
co
mm

en
de
d b

y t
he
 ta
sk
 gr
ou
p i
s a

lre
ad
y b

ein
g p

ilo
ted

. 

Yo
uth

 pr
ov
isio

n (
ST
G)

A p
ote

nti
al 
ST
G 
to 
rev

iew
 C
BC

 
inv
es
tm
en
t in
 C
CP

 to
 de

ve
lop

 re
sili
en
ce
 

in 
VC

S Y
ou
th 
pro

vis
ion

 an
d a

ss
es
s t
he
 

im
pa
ct 
of 
the

 G
CC

 gr
an
t a
llo
ca
tio
ns

Cll
r A
nn
e R

eg
an
, C
hri
s 

Co
lem

an
, S
uz
an
ne
 

W
illia

ms
, R
ob
 R
eid

, J
o 

Te
ak
le 
an
d B

arb
ara

 D
riv
er 

on
go
ing

An
 up

da
te 
ha
s b

ee
n p

rov
ide

d t
o O

&S
 on

 18
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
13

IC
T r
ev
iew

 (S
TG

)
A p

ote
nti
al 
to 
rev

iew
 IC
T s

erv
ice
s a

nd
 

res
ile
nc
e. 
Is 
the

 in
fra
str
uc
tur
e s

uff
icie

ntl
y 

rob
us
t, i
s a

 sh
are

d I
CT

 th
e r
igh

t a
pp
roa

ch
 

an
d d

o w
e h

av
e t
he
 rig

ht 
de
liv
ery

 m
od
el 

in 
pla

ce
.   

Cll
rs 
An
dre

w 
Ch
ard

, A
nd
rew

 
W
all
, S
im
on
 W
he
ele

r a
nd
 

Co
lin
 H
ay
.

Re
po
rt t
o O

&S
 in
 M
arc

h a
nd
 th
en
 

Ca
bin

et 
if n

ec
es
sa
ry.

Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 al
l a
cc
ep
ted

 by
 C
ab
ine

t. M
os
t b
ein

g p
ick
ed
 up

 by
 IC
T 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re
vie
w.
 D
em

oc
rat
ic 
Se
rvi
ce
s h

av
e w

ritt
en
 to
 m
em

be
rs 
reg

ard
ing

 
IC
T s

up
po
rt a

s a
gre

ed
 in
 on

e o
f th

e r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s i
n t
he
 re
po
rt. 

A f
uth

er 
rem

it h
as
 be

en
 se

t to
 re
vie
w 
the

 IC
T v

iru
s o

utb
rea

k a
nd
 th
is 
is 
no
w 
in 

pro
gre

ss
 an

d t
he
 ta
sk
 gr
ou
p e

xp
ec
ted

 to
 m
ee
t b
y t
he
 en

d o
f F
eb
rua

ry.
 

UB
IC
O 
(S
TG

)
To
 re
vie
w 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 po

st 
im
ple

me
nti
on
 

of 
UB

IC
O 
an
d b

en
efi
ts 
rea

lisa
tio
n.

Cll
rs 
Ja
ck
y F

let
ch
er,
  

Su
za
nn
e W

illia
ms

, T
im
 

Ha
rm
an
, A
nd
rew

 C
ha
rd
, 

Ch
arl
ie 
Ste

wa
rt a

nd
 Pa

t 
Th
orn

ton

Re
po
rt r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s t
o O

&S
 in
 

Ma
rch

 th
en
 C
ab
ine

t o
n 1

6 A
pri
l.

Tra
de
 w
as
te 
wil
l b
e s

ub
jec
t to

 re
vie
w 
in 
Ja
nu
ary

 to
ge
the

r w
ith
 a 
cu
sto

me
r s
erv

ice
 

se
ss
ion

 be
for
e t
he
y s
tar
t d
raf
tin
g t
he
ir f
ina

l re
po
rt.

A s
pe
cia
l m
ee
tin
g h

as
 be

en
 to
 co

nv
en
ed
 to
 re
vie
w 
wa
ste

 an
d r
ec
yc
lin
g 

op
era

tio
ns
 du

rin
g t
he
 re
ce
nt 
ba
d w

ea
the

r. 

Se
x t
rad

e i
n 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
(S
TG

)
Co
un
cil 
at 
its
 m
ee
tin
g o

n 2
5 J

un
e 

ref
err
ed
 th
is 
ma

tte
r to

 O
&S
 w
ith
 a 
vie
w 
to 

bri
ng
ing

 ba
ck
 a 
rep

ort
 to
 C
ou
nc
il in

 
De
ce
mb

er.

Cll
rs 
Ch
ard

, D
riv
er,
 R
eg
an
, 

Se
ac
om

e a
nd
 M
as
se
y

Re
po
rt t
o O

&S
 in
 Fe

bru
ary

 th
en
 

Co
un
cil

Re
po
rtin

g t
o O

&S
 on

 18
 Fe

bru
ary

All
otm

en
ts 
(S
TG

)
Re
vie
w 
all
otm

en
t s
tra
teg

y
Ide

nti
fy 
les
so
ns
 le
arn

t fr
om

 W
ea
ve
r's
 

Fie
ld.

Cl
lrs
 R
eg
an
, S
mi
th,
 

Mc
Clo

sk
ey
, B
ritt
er 
, S
tew

art
 

an
d H

ay

O&
S i
n J

an
ua
ry 
fol
low

ed
 by

 C
ou
nc
il 

the
n C

ab
ine

t. 
Th
e t
as
k g

rou
p's
 re
po
rt w

as
 en

do
rsd

ed
 by

 O
&S
 in
 Ja

nu
ary

 th
en
 th
e g

rou
p a

re 
ke
en
 th
at 
the

ir r
ep
ort
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 co

ns
ide

red
 by

 C
ou
nc
il in

 Fe
bru

ary
. 

Gr
as
s v
erg

e c
utt
ing

 
(S
TG

)
Re
vie
w 
gra

ss
 cu

ttin
g p

oli
cy
 an

d 
op
era

tio
na
l is
su
es
.

Cll
rs 
Ha
ll, 
Fle

tch
er 
an
d 

Br
itte
r,

O&
S i
n N

ov
em

be
r fo

llo
we
d b

y 
Ca
bin

et 
in 
De
ce
mb

er.
Re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y C
ab
ine

t in
 D
ec
em

be
r. 

Sh
are

d S
erv

ice
s

Co
un
cill
or 
Sm

ith
 su

gg
es
ted

 th
at 
a r
ev
iew

 
co
uld

 be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
of 
the

 jo
int
 se

rvi
ce
s 

wit
h O

ne
 Le

ga
l a
nd
 th
e C

hie
f E
xe
cu
tiv
e 

su
gg
es
ted

 th
at 
it m

ay
 be

 w
ort
h l
oo
kin
g a

t 
Bu
ild
ing

 C
on
tro
l a
s t
his
 al
so
 a 
sh
are

d 
se
rvi
ce
 w
ith
 Te

wk
es
bu
ry 
Bo
rou

gh
 

Co
un
cil 
wh
ich
 w
as
 se

t u
p a

t th
e s

am
e 

tba
Co
un
cill
or 
Sm

ith
 to
 w
ork

 w
ith
 of
fic
ers

 to
 pr
od
uc
e a

 on
e-p

ag
e s

tra
teg

y w
hic
h c

an
 

the
n b

e c
on
sid
ere

d b
y t
he
 O
&S
 co

mm
itte
e f
or 
inc
lus
ion

 in
 th
e w

ork
pla

n w
he
n 

res
ou
rce

s b
ec
om

e a
va
ila
ble

.

De
pri
va
tio
n

Co
un
cill
or 
Dr
ive
r s
ug
ge
ste

d a
 re
vie
w 

sh
ou
ld 
be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
of 
sm

all
 po

ck
ets

 in
 

the
 to
wn
 w
hic
h m

ay
 su

ffe
r fr
om

 
de
pri
va
tio
n b

ut 
ma

y n
ot 
ge
t th

e 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 th
at 
the

 m
ore

 ob
vio
us
 

de
pri
ve
d a

rea
s g

et.

tba
Co
un
cill
or 
Dr
ive
r h
as
 w
ork

ed
 w
ith
 of
fic
ers

 to
 pr
od
uc
e a

 on
e-p

ag
e s

tra
teg

y w
hic
h 

wil
l b
e c

on
sid
ere

d b
y t
he
 O
&S
 co

mm
itte
e f
or 
inc
lus
ion

 in
 th
e w

ork
pla

n w
he
n 

res
ou
rce

s b
ec
om

e a
va
ila
ble

.

Agenda Item 9
Page 59



Page 60
This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 

SCRUTINY TASK GROUP UPDATE 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
18 February 2013 

 
Suspension of refuse & recycling collections (18 January – 25 January) 

 
The Ubico scrutiny task group agreed to hold an urgent meeting to better understand the 
rationale behind the decision to suspend refuse & recycling collections in Cheltenham 
between 18 January and 25 January 2013 due to the inclement weather.  They felt that it 
was important to hold a timely meeting and report back to this committee so that 
members of the public and councillors could be assured that the council was concerned 
about the impact the service disruption had on individuals and communities.  Some of 
the findings will be pertinent to the full report which will be presented to this committee at 
a later date but the task group felt it was important to brief the committee on this specific 
aspect of the review at this time. 
 
During the meeting the task group heard from the managing director and waste and 
recycling manager of Ubico who both presented the issues relating to undertaking 
collections during snow and ice.  The task group also heard from a driver whose lorry 
had skidded on the ice and one of his  loaders’ nearly crushed by a car which had lost 
control on the ice.  The task group also questioned the director of commissioning and 
the cabinet member sustainability about the decision making process. 
 
1. TASK GROUP CONCERNS 
 
1.1 The task group on hearing the evidence from Ubico fully understood the decision 

to suspend services when there was snow on the ground.  Their concern 
however was around the decision made on the Wednesday to suspend the 
service for the full week and on the catch up arrangements. 
 

1.2 Members understood that the decision was based on evidence at the time and 
was done to provide a clear message to the public but it had the opposite effect 
and angered many residents who, in areas where roads were clear, could see no 
justification for the continued suspension of collections. 

 
1.3 Members also felt that more could be done to catch up where collections had 

been missed and with fortnightly collections recognised that it creates difficulties 
for residents. 

 
1.4 The main concern of the task group related to communication during the period.  

Members felt that there had been an over reliance on the use of the website and 
that it should be recognised that a large proportion of the elderly population of 
Cheltenham did not have a computer or access to the internet.  They also felt 
that messages such as “double collections” were confusing and also that the lack 

Page 61



 

of clarity where catch up collections were taking place caused confusion with 
residents who may have taken their refuse back into their premises. 

 
2. SUGGESTIONS OF THE TASK GROUP 
 
2.1 Members were prepared to accept that a full review of the issue would be 

considered by the Cabinet Member Working Group which had been tasked with 
reviewing the decision making process and formulating ‘lessons learnt’ and as 
such did not feel it appropriate to make any recommendations at this stage.  
They did, however, decide to make the following suggestions for consideration of 
the Cabinet Member Working Group.  The Cabinet Member Sustainability was 
happy for the working group to consider this and any other suggestions of the 
task group.   

 
2.2 The Cabinet Member Working Group should collate their report and 

recommendations in a timely manner and this should be forwarded for 
consideration by the overview and scrutiny committee , following which we 
recommend that it should go to full council for debate before the end of April 

 
2.3 As with School closures, information regarding the suspension of refuse and 

recycling collections should be communicated to the public via local radio.  
Officers assured members that local radio stations were advised of any such 
decisions as a matter of course but the council was somewhat powerless as to 
whether individual stations decided to run the story.  The suggestion was that the 
Cabinet Member Working Group could re-evaluate the current procedure and to 
task the Communications Team with investigating whether it would be possible, 
in these circumstances, to pay for air time.   

 
2.4 Members felt strongly that residents were less interested in getting a clear 

message from the council, especially if this was that all collections were 
suspended, than they were in seeing collections continue wherever possible.  
They accepted that either approach i.e. full suspension or part collections where 
possible, would result in some residents being frustrated but felt that it was more 
important for the council to be seen as doing something rather than nothing.   

 
   

Report author Councillor Andrew Chard, Chair of the scrutiny task group 
Contact officer:  Saira Malin, Democracy Officer 
 saira.malin @cheltenham.gov.uk  01242 775153 

Appendices A. Rationale behind the operational decisions 
B. Timeline of events and decisions taken 
C. Refuse & Recycling Operations in Snow/Icy Conditions 
D. Ubico Snow/Ice procedure 
E. Severe Weather Arrangements policy 
F. The relevant section of the SLA between Ubico and CBC 

Background information N/A 
 

Page 62



 

  
 
         
RATIONALE BEHIND THE OPERATIONAL DECISIONS 
 
1.1 The council and Ubico have a number of operational and policy documents that 

they refer to during periods of ice and snow,; 
 

• Refuse & Recycling Operations in Snow/Icy Conditions (Appendix C) 
• Ubico Snow/Ice procedure (Appendix D) 
• Severe Weather Arrangements policy (Appendix E) 
• The relevant section of the SLA between Ubico and CBC (Appendix F) 

 
1.2 The SLA indicates that Ubico’s Managing Director, or his nominee, must inform 

the Council’s Strategic Client Officer immediately when they become aware of 
any serious problem affecting the Borough’s waste and recycling collections 
service.  The Strategic Client Officer and the Managing Director, or his nominee, 
will agree on how the Company should deal with the problem.  This may be by 
attempting to make collections with all vehicles, making collections in limited 
areas or postponing the service.  Once the decision is made, the Strategic Client 
Officer is responsible for informing the relevant council officers and members.  
Should the operational situation change, which it may do several times in a short 
period of time under such circumstances, the Managing Director or his nominee 
must inform the Strategic Client Officer immediately.   

 
1.3 In the event of a single day’s collections being missed, this must be caught up by 

the following Saturday.  Should multiple days of disruption occur, the Managing 
Director, Strategic Client Officer, Director of Commissioning and Portfolio Holder 
will agree if emergency waste collection services are necessary and in which 
locations.   

 
1.4 Ubico’s policy, Refuse & Recycling Operations in Snow/Icy Conditions, gives 

guidance to help decide whether operations should be suspended, and who 
makes that decision.   

 
1.5 The duty supervisor or officer will make a decision based on the best information 

available to them at the time.  The Snow/Ice Procedure outlines nine actions 
steps to be taken in making this decision and step one outlines the information 
sources the supervisor should consider when making their decision.   

 
1.6 Once a decision has been taken, the supervisor must inform the senior 

management of the decision and the current situation.  The senior manager will 
then liaise with the Strategic Client Officer at the council and they will consider all 
the information available to them and agree whether service delivery should 
continue or be suspended in whole or part.   

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 

Page 63



 

 
 
TIMELINE OF EVENTS AND DECISIONS TAKEN 
 
1.1 Staff had been monitoring forecasts all week as snow was predicted any time 

from 3am on 18 January 2013.  As a result of the predictions, a meeting was held 
on 17 January 2013 to ensure that the Ubico Waste and Recycling management 
team, which included the Strategic Client Officer from the council, were familiar 
with the snow and ice procedure and understood their role and the requirements 
of them should the inclement weather affect collection services.   

 
1.2 On Friday 18 January 2013, after snow had started to settle and crews had 

begun to report hazardous conditions for loaders and vehicles, supervisors had 
undertaken on-site inspections to assess the situation.  Conditions were found by 
the supervisors to be unsafe to operate in and crews were instructed to return to 
the depot and the Strategic Client Officer was informed of the situation.  As snow 
clearance was not yet taking place and there were no other duties to which the 
staff could be safely diverted, the collection crews were sent home and told that 
their hours would be banked and used to catch up with missed collections on the 
Monday (21 January).  Residents were advised that the days missed collections 
would be made on Monday 21 January if weather conditions had improved over 
the weekend.  This was communicated to residents via the website.   

 
1.3 Conditions did not improve over the weekend and on Monday 21 January 

supervisors and the Waste and Recycling Manager assessed conditions as being 
unsafe.  Whilst main access roads were clear, the pavements of those roads 
remained in too poor condition for collections to be undertaken safely.  The 
Strategic Client Officer was contacted and it was agreed that the service would 
be suspended in full for the day.  Throughout the day Ubico had received calls 
from customer facing officers at the council asking for a clear message regarding 
when collections would resume and what catch-up plan would be implemented.  
It was not deemed possible to provide such a message at this time given that an 
update from the Met Office suggested that another weather system which would 
bring more snowfall was expected overnight and as a result an amber weather 
warning issued.   

 
1.4 Inspections on Tuesday 22 January 2013 identified that conditions on pavements 

and side roads remained icy and too dangerous to undertake full collections.  The 
Strategic Client Officer was consulted with a view to Ubico sending out crews to 
main roads only.  Given that it would be impossible to service anything other than 
arterial roads, it was decided that this option would only serve to confuse 
residents and as such it was reported that there would be no waste or recycling 
collections that day in Cheltenham.  Calls were again received from customer 
facing staff requesting that a clear decision be taken when collections would be 
resumed and again, it was not possible to do so given that an amber warning for 
more snowfall was in place from 13:45 on 22 January until 09:00 on 21 January.  
In addition to this it was forecast to be cold and icy throughout Wednesday and 
Thursday with a switch to milder conditions on Friday and rain over the weekend.    

 
1.5 On Wednesday 23 January 2013, following snowfall over night and as a result of 

the continuing freezing weather and the requirement of the council to provide a 

Appendix B 

Page 64



 

clear message to resident, Cheltenham Borough Council and Ubico decided to 
cancel all collections for the rest of the week.  Residents were advised, via the 
website, that those that had missed collections from Friday 18 January to Friday 
25 January would receive a ‘double collection’ a fortnight later on their scheduled 
collection date.  On this date, a Q&A sheet was circulated to all Councillors by 
email which aimed to aid them in dealing with any residents’ queries or concerns.     

 
1.6 However, on Thursday 24 January 2013 it was clear to supervisors and mangers 

that the predicted low temperatures of the night before had not materialised and 
in fact a thaw was underway.  Side roads and some pavements looked 
significantly better and considered safely passable, with care and main roads and 
their pavements, where footfall was highest, had returned to normal conditions.  
However, outlying and higher areas were still found to be dangerous and 
impassable.  Crews were brought in to begin catch-up collections.  One refuse 
collection vehicle was able to collect from the main roads, whilst smaller, caged 
vehicles were utilised in other areas off the main highways as these were the 
only safe option.  It was reported that work to clear some of the black bag side 
waste would start in areas of the borough where routes had improved.   

 
1.7 Crews were asked to clear black bag waste from alongside bins, staring in areas 

where waste had potentially been at the kerbside for the longest.  The Council 
asked that priority also be given to areas with high levels of HMO’s, terraced 
properties (where large amounts of waste cannot be stored off the highway) and 
hotspot areas where problems with large amounts of excess black bag waste 
existed under normal circumstances.  The RCV and caged vehicles continued to 
collect black bag waste throughout Thursday, Friday and Saturday.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



 

 
 
 
 
 
Refuse & Recycling Operations in Snow / Icy Conditions 
 
Following significant inclement winter weather, it may be necessary to consider 
suspending collection operations to ensure the safety of members of the public, 
employees and property. 
 
To ensure a consistent approach by Ubico the following should be used as a guide to 
help decide whether operations should be suspended. Due to the different types of 
terrain encountered between urban and rural areas and operational differences (i.e. stop 
– start in urban areas, more people and traffic, manual handling considerations) the 
decision taken may be different for each area or contract; however the means of 
decision making will be consistent. 
 
Conditions when it may be necessary to suspend operations. 
If the road conditions across the district, or certain areas of the district, are such that to 
send out large collection vehicles would create an additional hazard and a threat to 
personal safety (e.g. in bad snow or ice on untreated roads or treated traffic routes with 
high volumes of traffic). If road conditions are passable, but snow or ice on footpaths etc. 
create an unacceptable hazard to loaders. 
 
Who Decides 
The duty supervisor / officer will make a decision based upon the best information 
available to them at the time.  Consultation should take place with other supervisors, 
local health and safety reps and employees.  The operators of the landfill sites, recycling 
facility and composting facility should also be consulted to confirm they are able to 
receive waste and materials collected.  The decision to continue or suspend collections 
should be based on information gained through a combination of; 
 
• Physical inspection of the local road networks 
• Reports form Gloucestershire Highways or Police (note – collections should not 

be made from treated roads if when doing so they cause traffic congestion) 
• Reports from employees who have travelled to work 
• Reports from teams already working (e.g. street cleaning) 
• Local weather forecasts 
• Current weather conditions 
• Visibility (natural light, fog, driving snow) 

 
Depending upon the weather conditions and information received, it may be appropriate 
to initially delay the start of collections until more robust information is available to 
determine whether it is safe for vehicle to work. If a decision is made to suspend 
collections, refer to the Ubico Snow/Ice procedure. 
 
If collections are to continue as scheduled each driver must be given clear instruction on 
how to proceed and regular contact must be maintained throughout the day to 

Appendix C 

Page 66



 

continuously re-evaluate ground conditions.  Where practical, management should 
conduct on site assessments of worst affected areas. 
 
Resuming Collections 
Prior to recommencing collections, it is essential to ensure that safe access is available 
to and on the landfill site, recycling and composting facilities.  Appropriate media 
message should be released via the council’s communications team, identifying when 
waste and recycling collections will be undertaken. 

Page 67



 

 
 
 
 
SNOW / ICE PROCEDURE 
 
Step 1 The Senior operations supervisor collates and records information and 

local knowledge on weather conditions.  The information and will be 
gained through a combination of: 
 
• Local weather forecasts 
• Current weather conditions 
• Reports from teams already working (e.g. street cleaning) 
• Physical inspection of the local road network 
• Visibility (natural light, fog, driving snow) 
• Reports from Gloucestershire Highways or Police 

 
Step 2 The senior operations supervisor consults with colleagues, local health 

and safety representatives and employees and records outcomes. 
 

Step 3 The senior operations supervisor makes a decision to continue or 
suspend the service, in whole or in part.  All employees to remain at work. 
 

Step 4 The senior operations supervisor informs Ubico senior management of 
the decision and the current situation. 
 

Step 5 The senior manager informs the strategic client officer (or the service 
commissioner) of the current situation. 
 

Step 6 The senior manager and the strategic client officer will, having considered 
all the relevant information, agree on whether service delivery should 
continue or be suspended in whole or in part. 
 

Step 7 The strategic client officer will communicate the facts and agreed action 
to: 
 
• Service commissioners 
• Customer services 
• Communications 
• Cabinet member 
 

Step 8 The senior manager will decide whether employees are to be redeployed 
to other duties (e.g. snow clearance) or stood down from all duties and 
sent home. 
 

Step 9 The senior manager and the strategic client officer to continuously review 
the situation until fair weather conditions return (refer to service contracts 
– section F or G). 

 

Appendix D 
Page 68



 

 
 
 
Severe Weather Arrangements 
 
If bad weather, flooding or disruption to the transport system makes travel to work 
impossible, difficult or dangerous, management will try to work with employees to agree 
ways in which they can work the time back or take the missed time as holiday. 
 
If the conditions are considered so bad that a decision is made to suspend the service, 
in full or in part, management may; 
 

a. redeploy employees onto other work or onto emergency response (e.g. snow 
clearance or sand bag filling). 

or 
 

b. stand employees down from their duties. In this instance the employee will 
continue to be paid but the hours are banked and deducted from any overtime 
required to clear the backlog and return the service to normal operations. 

 
 
 
 

Appendix E 
Page 69



 

 
 

WASTE AND INCLEMENT WEATHER PROCEDURE AND POLICIES 
This plan should be put into action during an emergency which causes the Council’s 
waste and recycling collection service to be disrupted, such as heavy snowfall. The plan 
is set out in chronological order in terms of the steps which would need to be taken. 

A. Establish the facts 
1. The Company’s Managing Director (or his nominee if the Company’s Managing 

Director is unavailable) to immediately inform the Council’s Strategic Client 
Officer (or the Council’s Director of Commissioning if the Strategic Client Officer 
is unavailable) of any serious problem affecting the Borough’s waste and 
recycling collection service. The Strategic Client Officer will then establish the 
exact nature of the problem, which areas of the Borough are affected and how it 
will impact on the normal operation of the waste service in the Borough. 

B. Decide on course of action 
1. The Strategic Client Officer and the Company’s Managing Director to agree on 

how the Company should deal with the problem i.e. attempt to make collections 
with all vehicles, attempt to make collections in limited areas or postpone all 
collections. 

C. Communicate the message 
1. Strategic Client Officer to relay all the facts and the agreed action to the Director 

of Commissioning and the Portfolio Holder for Sustainability (or Council Leader if 
the Portfolio Holder for Sustainability is unavailable). 

2. Strategic Client Officer contact Customer Services, Communications Officer and 
the Webmaster to relay all the facts and explain the agreed action. 

3. Strategic Client Officer  to prepare and send a media release to all the relevant 
local papers, radio and TV stations, ensuring information is accurate, 
unambiguous and in accordance with the message that has been agreed in C2 
above (wording of media release to be agreed by relevant officers and Members 
as appropriate ). 

Appendix F 
Page 70



 

4. Communications Officer to email all Members, Parish/Town Councils and all staff 
with details of the media release (Parish clerks not on email should be sent a 
copy of the media release by post and also contacted by telephone if possible). 

5. Webmaster to display details of the press release on the Council’s website and 
intranet. 

6. Customer Services to provide an automated telephone message  

D. Update information 
1.  In an emergency, the situation regarding collections could change several times 

over a short period of time. The Company’s Managing Director  must inform the 
Strategic Client Officer  immediately of any changes to the situation (and vice-
versa). If the situation does change, the above procedure should be repeated so 
that an updated message can be displayed on the website, sent out to members, 
Town/Parish Councils and the media as quickly as possible. 

2.   Weather forecasts will be monitored to enable predicted conditions over the 
coming week to be incorporated in the service planning and contingency 
arrangements, 

F. Follow-up once collections have resumed 
1.  Communications Officer to send out another press release to all the relevant 

local papers, radio and TV stations, members, Town/Parish councils once the 
collection service is back to normal. 

2. Strategic Client Officer to send update information to Customer Services and 
Webmaster when the waste collection service is back up and running. 

G. Waste Collection Catch-up 
1. A singular days missed collections due to inclement weather will be caught up by  

the following Saturday at an extra cost to the Council.  
2. During multiple days disruption the Company’s Managing Director the Strategic 

Client Officer,  the Director  of Commissioning and Portfolio Holder will agree if 
the emergency waste collection service should be implemented and at which 
locations (subject to being able to safely gain access).  

 

Page 71



Page 72
This page is intentionally left blank



   
Youth Provision Task Group Page 1 of 2 Last updated 08 February 2013 
 

 
 
 

SCRUTINY TASK GROUP REPORT 
 

Scrutiny task group  - Provision of services for young people  
18 February 2013 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
1.1 This report sets out a brief update on the work of the “Provision of services for young people 

scrutiny task group.” 
 
2. MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 
2.1 Membership of the task group: 

� Cllr. Chris Coleman 
� Cllr. Barbara Driver 
� Cllr. Anne Regan 
� Cllr. Rob Reid 
� Cllr. Jo Teakle 
� Cllr. Suzanne Williams 
� Cllr. Rowena Hay – Cabinet lead by invitation 
 

2.2 The task group was asked to addressed two issues: 
� A review of the “Building Resilience” contract that the Borough Council has with County 

Community Projects; 
� Oversight to the allocation of the county council’s positive activities funds that are 

allocated via the Borough Council. 
 

2.3 Beyond this, members agreed two key issues for future scrutiny: 
� How do we best allocate scarce resources across the whole of Cheltenham to deliver 

better outcomes for all young people; and 
� How do we ensure the effective engagement of young people in public life. 

 
2.4 The Terms of reference were agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 10 October 

2012. 
 

3. PROGRESS MADE 
3.1 Following the review work carried out by the Scrutiny Task Group, the council subsequently 

agreed to fund County Community Projects to undertake year 2 of the building resilience project 
against a set of outcomes with themes including: 
� Mapping activities and facilities for young people; 
� Connecting and linking youth clubs together and to sources to support; 
� Engaging with young people; 
� Encouraging more volunteers; and 
� Delivering effective training for youth workers 

 
3.2 The 2012 Positive Activities funding for voluntary and community youth groups has been agreed 

and 12 projects supported. 
 

3.3 A meeting was held on 19th December to discuss a strategy for activities and facilities for young 
people between partners and providers of activities for young people to which the Scrutiny Task 
Group members were invited. The group agreed the following: 

 

Page 73



   
Youth Provision Task Group Page 2 of 2 Last updated 08 February 2013 
 

� CCP to focus on completing the mapping work of existing activities and facilities for young people 
and to make this available via the web. This will then enable us to identify gaps and 
vulnerabilities in current provision and identify where new provision would make the most 
difference.  

� However, the project should not be just about filling gaps - to make a real difference, the project 
has to focus on communities where there is a willingness to do something to support their young 
people.  

� The group also felt that youth work does not have to be delivered from a building and that 
detached street-based youth work can play an important role, particularly in engaging with more 
vulnerable young people.  

� The project should adopt a strengths-based approach as we can join-up the skills and expertise 
of residents, CCP, other support agencies and get everyone involved to make a real difference. 

� The group also suggested that setting up a network of peer-to-peer support would also be a 
valuable legacy from the project.  

� The group received offers of support from the University that provide a range of youth work 
courses, the Boys Brigade and from many councillors. 

 
3.4 A follow-up meeting has been planned for Monday 25 February 2013, again to which Scrutiny 

Task Group members will be invited; suggested agenda items are: 
• Update on the year 2 project actions - especially the mapping work  
• Agreeing how we map other assets that we can use to help deliver better outcomes for young 

people  
• Preparing for year 3 of positive activities funding  
• Hearing about what other support is available - eg through the targeted youth support service 

 
3.5 The invite list to these two meetings has been quite wide taking in partners from the public sector, 

VCS sector, youth workers, trustees of youth clubs as well as all elected members.  
 
3.6 Members of the committee might want to reflect if they would want the group to continue meeting 

or whether they are happy that the wider meetings – such as that on the 25th February are 
providing adequate opportunity to engage them in the discussions about the issues identified in 
paras 2.2 and 2.3 of this report. 

 
 
Report author Contact officer: 

Richard Gibson 
Strategy and Engagement Manager 
richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 235354 

Appendices None 
Background information None 
 
  

Page 74



O&
S C

om
mi
tte
e 2

01
2/1

3 w
ork

 pl
an
    

    
    
    
    

    
    
    

    
    

    
    
    
    

    
    
    
    

    
    
    
    
    

  
 

Ite
m  

Pu
rp

os
e 

Ou
tco

me
 

Wh
at 

is 
req

uir
ed

? 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt
em

Do
cs
\1\

4\1
\AI

00
00

51
41

\$p
0ta

45
5l.
do
c 

 
 

 
 

 
ME

ET
IN

G 
DA

TE
: T

hu
rsd

ay
 10

 Ja
nu

ary
  2

01
3 

ST
G-

 Al
lot

me
nts

 G
rou

p 
Sc

rut
iny

 
En

do
rse

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s f

rom
 

ST
G 

an
d f

orw
ard

 to
 

De
ce

mb
er 

Ca
bin

et 
 

Re
po

rt o
f S

TG
 

Be
ve

rly
 Th

om
as

, D
em

oc
rac

y O
ffic

er 
Ch

air
, C

ou
nc

illo
r A

nn
e R

eg
an

 

ST
G-

Ev
en

t S
ub

mi
ss

ion
 

Gr
ou

p 
Sc

rut
iny

 
En

do
rse

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s f

rom
 

ST
G 

an
d f

orw
ard

 to
 

Ca
bin

et  
Re

po
rt o

f S
TG

 
Sa

ira
 M

ali
n, 

De
mo

cra
cy

 O
ffic

er 
Ch

air
, C

ou
nc

illo
r P

en
ny

 H
all

 

Bu
dg

et 
pro

po
sa

ls 
20

13
/14

 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Ma

ke
 an

y 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s t

o 
Ca

bin
et 

A p
res

en
tat

ion
   

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
, D

ire
cto

r o
f R

es
ou

rce
s 

 

ME
ET

IN
G 

DA
TE

: W
ed

ne
sd

ay
 23

 Ja
nu

ary
 20

13
 

ST
G 

– J
CS

 & 
Pla

nn
ing

 
Lia

isio
n 

Sc
rut

iny
 

En
do

rse
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s f
rom

 
the

 ST
G 

an
d f

orw
ard

 to
 

Jo
int

 m
em

be
r s

tee
rin

g 
gro

up
  

Re
po

rt o
f S

TG
 

Ro
sa

lin
d R

ee
ve

s, 
 

Ch
air

, C
ou

nc
illo

r T
im

 H
arm

an
 

Ca
ll in

 of
 R

ick
sh

aw
 de

cis
ion

 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Co

ns
ide

r th
e c

all
 in

 an
d 

ma
ke

 re
co

mm
en

da
tio

ns
 

to 
the

 de
cis

ion
 m

ak
er 

Ca
ll in

 re
qu

es
t 

an
d w

itn
es

se
s 

Ro
sa

lin
d R

ee
ve

s, 
De

mo
cra

tic
 Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
 

ME
ET

IN
G 

DA
TE

: M
on

da
y 1

8 F
eb

ru
ary

 20
13

 
DR

AF
T C

orp
ora

te 
Str

ate
gy

 
20

13
-14

 
Sc

rut
iny

 
 

Re
vie

w 
DR

AF
T s

tra
teg

y 
pri

or 
to 

Ca
bin

et 
Re

po
rt 

in 
Ma

rch
 

Ric
ha

rd 
Gi

bs
on

, S
tra

teg
y a

nd
 

En
ga

ge
me

nt 
Ma

na
ge

r 

ST
G-

 Se
x t

rad
e i

n 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

 
Sc

rut
iny

 
En

do
rse

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s f

rom
 

ST
G 

an
d f

orw
ard

 to
 

Ca
bin

et/
Co

un
cil 

 
Re

po
rt o

f S
TG

 
Ro

sa
lin

d R
ee

ve
s, 

De
mo

cra
tic

 Se
rvi

ce
s 

Ma
na

ge
r 

Ch
air

, C
ou

nc
illo

r B
arb

ara
 D

riv
er 

Agenda Item 10
Page 75



O&
S C

om
mi
tte
e 2

01
2/1

3 w
ork

 pl
an
    

    
    
    
    

    
    
    

    
    

    
    
    
    

    
    
    
    

    
    
    
    
    

  
 

Ite
m  

Pu
rp

os
e 

Ou
tco

me
 

Wh
at 

is 
req

uir
ed

? 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt
em

Do
cs
\1\

4\1
\AI

00
00

51
41

\$p
0ta

45
5l.
do
c 

ME
ET

IN
G 

DA
TE

: M
on

da
y 1

8 M
arc

h 2
01

3 

ST
G 

– I
CT

 
(V

iru
s o

utb
rea

k) 
Sc

rut
iny

 
En

do
rse

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s f

rom
 

the
 ST

G 
an

d f
orw

ard
 to

 
Ca

bin
et 

Re
po

rt o
f S

TG
 

Ro
sa

lin
d R

ee
ve

s, 
De

mo
cra

tic
 Se

rvi
ce

s 
Ma

na
ge

r 
Ch

air
, C

ou
nc

illo
r C

oli
n H

ay
 

ST
G-

UB
IC

O 
Sc

rut
iny

 
En

do
rse

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s f

rom
 

ST
G 

an
d f

orw
ard

 to
 Ap

ril 
Ca

bin
et  

Re
po

rt o
f S

TG
 

Sa
ira

 M
ali

n, 
De

mo
cra

cy
 O

ffic
er 

Ch
air

, C
ou

nc
illo

r, t
o b

e a
dv

ise
d 

 
 

 
 

 
ME

ET
IN

G 
DA

TE
: T

hu
rsd

ay
 16

 M
ay

 20
13

 
 

 
 

 
 

ME
ET

IN
G 

DA
TE

: T
hu

rsd
ay

 11
 Ju

ly 
 20

13
 

 
 

 
 

 
ME

ET
IN

G 
DA

TE
:  S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
3 

ST
G-

 G
ras

s c
utt

ing
 

Fo
llo

w 
up

 
Re

vie
w 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

of 
an

y r
ec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

ag
ree

d b
y C

ab
ine

t in
 

De
ce

mb
er 

20
12

 
Up

da
te 

rep
ort

 
Ro

sa
lin

d R
ee

ve
s, 

DS
M 

Ch
air

, C
ou

nc
illo

r P
en

ny
 H

all
 

ME
ET

IN
G 

DA
TE

:  N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

3 
 

 
 

 
 

ST
G-

 Ev
en

ts 
Fo

llo
w 

up
 

Re
vie

w 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
of 

an
y r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
ag

ree
d b

y C
ab

ine
t in

 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
13

 
Up

da
te 

rep
ort

 
Ro

sa
lin

d R
ee

ve
s, 

DS
M 

Ch
air

, C
ou

nc
illo

r P
en

ny
 H

all
 

ME
ET

IN
G 

DA
TE

:  F
eb

ru
ary

  2
01

4 

Page 76



O&
S C

om
mi
tte
e 2

01
2/1

3 w
ork

 pl
an
    

    
    
    
    

    
    
    

    
    

    
    
    
    

    
    
    
    

    
    
    
    
    

  
 

Ite
m  

Pu
rp

os
e 

Ou
tco

me
 

Wh
at 

is 
req

uir
ed

? 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r 
 \\m

ud
ata

\m
gd

ata
roo

t\A
ge

nd
aIt
em

Do
cs
\1\

4\1
\AI

00
00

51
41

\$p
0ta

45
5l.
do
c 

 

ST
G-

 Al
lot

me
nts

 G
rou

p 
Fo

llo
w 

up
 

Re
vie

w 
im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
of 

an
y r

ec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
ag

ree
d b

y C
ab

ine
t in

 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
13

  
 

Up
da

te 
rep

ort
 

Be
ve

rly
 Th

om
as

, D
em

oc
rac

y O
ffic

er 
Ch

air
, C

ou
nc

illo
r A

nn
e R

eg
an

 

ST
G-

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
go

ve
rna

nc
e r

ev
iew

 
Sc

rut
iny

 
Se

t re
vis

ed
 te

rm
s o

f 
ref

ere
nc

e a
nd

 ap
po

int
 

me
mb

ers
 

Up
da

te 
rep

ort
 

He
len

 D
ow

n, 
 

Page 77



Page 78
This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
SCRUTINY TOPIC REGISTRATION 

 
Date:  18 February 2013 
Name of person proposing topic: Councillor Barbara Driver 
Contact:  01242 243862 
Suggested title of topic: Hidden deprivation in our town centre 
What is the issue that scrutiny needs to address? 
As elected members of the council we are aware that there are areas of multiple 
deprivation in Cheltenham. Parts of St. Pauls, St. Marks and Hesters Way are in the 10% 
most deprived areas nationally and parts of Oakley are not far behind. 
 
I am becoming increasingly aware of the issues of deprivation that affect those people 
living in the town centre – though as the numbers are much smaller, this does not get 
picked up in the maps of deprivation. Hence the title – “hidden deprivation.” 
 
I feel that living conditions in the town centre might be characterised by the following 
issues: 
� Crime and disorder associated with the night-time economy. 
� Transient communities which can impact on community resilience and cohesion. 
� Residents living in private rented accommodation in buildings that have been sub-
divided into houses in multiple-occupation or in flats above shops. 

� Higher than average unemployment rates 
� Poor physical and mental health. 

 
I would like to use the latest census data to understand more about living conditions in the 
town centre and also take time to interview local residents, businesses and other public 
sector partners (like the police) to build up our knowledge.  
 
What do you feel could be achieved by a scrutiny review (outcomes) 
 
At this stage, we would like to understand the issues facing people living in the town 
centre; we will bring our findings back to Scrutiny in July to get a steer on the next stage of 
the review. 
 
Having a better understanding of the issues may assist the council and partners in 
considering how services are delivered to people living in the town centre; and make 
changes so we are not disadvantaging these residents.  
 
If there a strict time constraint? No 
Is the topic important to the people of 
Cheltenham?   

Yes 
Does the topic involve a poorly 
performing service or high public 
dissatisfaction with a service?  

No 

Is it related to the Council’s corporate 
objectives?  

Yes 
Any other comments: 
 

Page 79



 

OFFICER IMPLICATIONS (for office use only) 
 
 

Date: 1 Feb 2013 
Officer name: Richard Gibson 
Officer title:  Strategy and Engagement Manager 
Contact:  01242 235354 
Please give your comments on this proposed topics, for example is there any other 
similar review planned or in progress, are there any potential resources constraints 
etc 
 
Officers would support this review; and research carried out by the task group will help us 
with the planned commissioning review of private sector housing. 
 
Also, local partners have identified that there are large numbers of vulnerable people living 
in private rented sector accommodation and are willing to support the council take action to 
understand and do something to help. 
 
 

Page 80



 

 

Proposed boundary for Scrutiny Review of hidden deprivation 
P

age 81



Page 82
This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	7 Draft Corporate Strategy 2013/14
	2013_02_18_O&S_draft_corporate_strategy_Appendix

	8 Final report of the scrutiny task group on sex trade in Cheltenham
	STG  one page strategy_O&S
	RolesandResponsibilities, 24/10/2012 Scrutiny task group - Sex trade in Cheltenham

	9 Updates from scrutiny task groups
	2013_02_18_O&S_cancellation of waste collections
	2013_02_18_O&S_STG_Youth_Services_update

	10 Review of scrutiny workplan
	2013_02_18_O&S_Scrutiny_registration_hidden_deprivation


